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eco Growth and Momentum |

Salary.com has a proven track record of growth. Revenue has
grown at a compound annual growth rate of 73% over the past
five years. Qur enterprise customer base now exceeds 2,100
subscribers and includes 24% of the Fortune 500.

24 consecutive quarters of revenue growth
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Kent Plunkett
President, CEQ and Chairman of the Board
Salary.com, Inc.

To Our Shareholders:

Thanks to our customers, investors and employee-owners, Salary.com was able to deliver a championship performance
this year. We strengthened our position as the leader in on-demand compensation management with record growth in
revenue and cash flow from operations, launched several new products and expanded our data offerings to include
executive and global pay data. We capped our year by completing a successful initial public offering in February. | am
pleased to share with our new public shareholders some of the key highlights of a successful year.

Financial Highlights

Our leadership position in compensation management resulted in strong financial results for the 2007 fiscal year. We
pested our twenty-fourth consecutive quarter of revenue growth and fourth consecutive year of positive cash flow from
operations. Our full year revenue increased 51% to $23.0 miillion, continuing our pace of record sales growth. While
continuing to invest to support future growth objectives, we increased cash flow from operations by 71% to $3.1 million
and expanded our cash flow margin to 13%. We also continued to increase our future business bookings at a faster
rate than our revenue growth, driving deferred revenue to $16.4 million at the end of the fiscal year, a 55% increase over
the same period last year.

Our subscription-based, on-demand business model provides a high degree of visibility and predictability into our
financial results. The economies of scale generated by our more mature product lines continue to provide the earnings
leverage to support both ongoing investment in the next generation of compensation management solutions and
increasing cash flow margins. We strengthened our balance sheet with the completion of our initial public offering in
February 2007 and finished the fiscal year with $49 million in cash.

Market Drivers Continue To Support Growth

It was a good year to be the leader in on-demand compensation management. We believe the macroeconomic trends
have and will continue to drive market growth. Wage inflation, increased turnover and tightening labor markets have led
corporations to increase funding for human resources departments. Regulatory and public pressure concerning
pay-for-performance, executive compensation, visibility, accountability and control have also contributed to increased
adoption of compensation management best practices and demand for supporting software and data services. Finally,
human capital technology budgets are on the rebound after a long drought and on-demand software solutions are now
widely accepted as viable options by corporate buyers. Salary.com revenues grew faster than the overall compensation
management technology market in the fiscal year 2007. We expect to continue to benefit disproportionately from these
macroeconomic trends in fiscal year 2008 and continue to outpace the category.




Leadership

Salary.com continued to assert its overall leadership as a compensation technology firm and invest in those niche areas
where it can build best-of-breed software and proprietary data sets. Our sales efforts continued our momentum in new
customer acquisition, retention and cross-selling. Salary.com extended its market share lead in on-demand
compensation management software, market pricing data, small business compensation and interactive solutions. In
the emerging market for talent management software, a premier analyst firm named Salary.com as one of the top-rated
pay-for-performance vendors. We expect the talent management market to evolve substantially and the group of top

vendors to consolidate over the next 18 months.

We also established a strong position in two new business areas through acquisitions. In April 2006, we acquired the
executive compensation product line of AON Consulting, Inc. Additionally, we closed the acquisition of ICR Limited, the
premier survey house for compiling and reporting global technology industry compensation data in May 2007. With
these acquisitions, we added hundreds of new customers and took a leadership position in two attractive growth
markets. We remain committed to our philosophy of pursuing product and market share leadership in fiscal year 2008
and plan to continue our emphasis on cross-selling and up-selling preducts across our large customer base.

Product Righlights

Since our inception, we have been dedicated to designing innovative products that integrate data with software and
help our customers win the war for talent. In fiscal year 2007, we added significant new data assets to our foundation
and invested heavily to re-write our applications on a new technology platform that takes advantage of the capabilities
that Ajax and other newer technologies offer to web-based application developers. We expect to launch a number of
these products in fiscal year 2008 and keep Salary.com at the forefront of compensation technology.

Enterprise Compensation Management

CompAnalyst®, our flagship product offering, continues to experience strong demand and this year we introduced
advanced capabilities in the areas of pay analytics and executive compensation. In May 2006, we launched
CompAnalyst Executive™, creating the largest on-demand source of executive compensation data for over 10,0600
public companies and 50,000 named executives. We expanded our compensation expertise globally with the
acquisition of ICR Limited and its premier IPAS survey of global technology industry compensation data. Over
5,000 companies now participate in Salary.com surveys and report data for over 3.4 million incumbents across 70
countries. We intend to extend our premier product position in proprietary compensation data and software and

add new applications that meet the needs of our compensation analyst customers.

Enterprise Talent Managerment

In fiscal year 2007, we reached a critical mass of over fifty customers in the pay-for-performance market. We offer
employers the ability to integrate compensation with performance through goal setting, automated performance
management and compensation planning. We believe our ability to align corporate goals with employee
performance and reward programs will be a critical advantage in this developing marketplace. There is significant
activity in this emerging category and we are committed to continuing to build a great talent management solution

for our customers.




Small Business

Salary.com is pioneering the underdeveloped market for on-demand compensation software and data solutions for
small business owners. We sell enterprise-guality data and software solutions at prices that fit the budgets of
smaller businesses. We plan to continue developing this market and our customer base, and expect our small
business product line to be one of our faster growing businesses in fiscal year 2008.

Media

The Salary.com website continues to be one of the most powerful infiluencers in the human capital management
industry. We generate up to three million unigue monthly visitors across our destination site and on the 500+
co-branded compensation sections of sites we power such as Monster.com, Yahoo! HotJobs and The New York
Times Company. We redesigned our entire destination site in fiscal year 2007. We plan to build relationships with
more visitors, members and advertisers in fiscal year 2008. We believe that Salary.com is today the industry's best
known compensation brand and we expect that recognition to continue into fiscal 2008,

Customer Success

Today, our large and growing enterprise customer base exceeds 2,100 subscribers and includes 24% of the Fortune
500. We added 231 enterprise customers in the fourth quarter alone, including many marquee clients such as Black &
Decker (US) Inc.; Chico's Retail Services, Inc.; eBay, Inc.; Ford Foundation; PricewaterhouseCoopers and Target
Corporation. Our customer retention rates remain exceptional and Salary.com continues to succeed because we make
our customers winners in the war for talent.

Looking Ahead

Our commitment for fiscal year 2008 is to expand on our market leadership position and continue to deliver
best-of-breed, on-demand compensation solutions. We expect to grow our business by innovating new software
applications, expanding our proprietary datasets, enhancing cur sales capabilities and selectively acquiring key
companies. Our large, diverse and loyal customer base provides a strong foundation for recurring and up-sell revenue,
and we plan to continue investing to maintain our reputation as an excellent partner to our customers.

Our performance this year was made possible by our talented and committed employees —most of whom are
shareholders themselves. It is their hard work and relentless focus on execution, innovation and customer care that built
this business and provides the foundation for our continued success. Every time that a Salary.com employee walks into
our building, they look into the eyes of other employee-owners. That is a constant and powerful reminder to all of us of
the importance of executing at a level that measures up to expectations and sustains our success. | believe that
Salary.com is well positioned to continue to deliver strong growth and long-term value creation to our shareholders,
customaers and employees, and we thank you for your continued support.

Yours truly,

SRS SIS /S v

Kent Plunkett
Chief Executive Officer
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PARTI

ITEM 1, BUSINESS
Overview

Salary.com is a leading provider of on-demand compensation and performance management solutions. Cur
comprehensive on-demand software applications are integrated with our proprietary data sets to automate the
essential elements of our customers’ compensation management processes, link pay to performance and help
drive business results. As a result, our solutions can significantly improve the effectiveness of our customers’
compensation spending and help them become more productive in managing their employees. We enable
employers of all sizes to replace or supplement inefficient and expensive traditional approaches to compensation
management, including paper-based surveys, consultants, internally developed software applications and
spreadsheets.

Our on-demand solutions, which incorporate market compensation intelligence from our proprietary data
sets, enable companies to determine how much to pay new and existing employees, research executive pay and
manage overall compensation programs. Our data sets contain base, bonus and incentive pay data for positions
held by more than 74% of U.S. employees and similar data for the top executives in over 10,000 U.S. public
companies. Qur flagship offering is CompAnalyst, a suite of on-demand compensation management applications
that integrates our data, third-party survey data and a customer’s own pay data with a complete analytics
offering. In addition, we provide a salary qualification service called PayScore to help mortgage professionals
gain efficiencies in the application process. PayScore combines data and software to enable lenders to better
qualify applicants’ salary claims, improve credit decision making and provide an audit trail for compliance
purposes. In May 2007, we acquired ICR Limited, L.C. and ICR International Limited (ICR) and expanded our
compensation data services for the specialty consumer goods industry across four key retail sectors (apparel,
footwear, luxury goods and specialty retail) and the global technology industry covering technology jobs in over
70 countries.

Our expertise in compensation and technology provides additional opportunities to help our customers
become more productive in managing their most critical asset — their people, Qur on-demand talent management
solutions offer customers effective and measurable ways to attract and inspire outstanding employee
performance. We launched TalentManager, our employee life-cycle performance management application, to
help businesses automate performance reviews, streamline compensation planning and link employee pay to
performance. In addition to our on-demand enterprise software offerings, we also provide a series of applications
through our website, which allows us to deliver salary management comparison and analysis tools to individuals
and small businesses on a cost effective, real-time basis.

We offer our solutions principally on an annual or multi-year subscription basis. Qur direct sales group
markets and sells our solutions primarily using the telephone and web-based demonstrations. From the
introduction of our solutions in 2000 through March 31, 2007, our enterprise subscriber base has grown to more
than 1,850 companies who spend from $2,000 to more than $100,000 annually, including companies such as
Wal-Mart, Home Depot, Procter & Gamble, Merrill Lynch, UPS and Cisco Systems. We also sell to both
individual consumers and smaller businesses through our Salary.com website. According to comScore Networks,
the amount of website traffic received by Salary.com over the twelve months ended March 31, 2007 places our
website in the top 10 for Career Services and Development websites and in the top 10 for Financial
Information and Advice websites during the twelve months ended September 30, 2006. Salary.com’s network of
sites generated an average of more than three million unique visitors in the three months ended March 31, 2007.

From April 2001 through March 31, 2007, we achieved 24 consecutive quarters of revenue growth. During
the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we achieved positive operating cash flows of $3.1 million, $1.8
million and $0.9 million, respectively. During these periods, we have consistently incurred operating losses,
including $8.3 million for 2007, $3.0 million for 2006 and $1.9 million for 2005. As of March 31, 2007, we had
an accumulated deficit of $29.4 million.




Initial Public Offering

On February 14, 2007, we completed our initial public offering in which we sold an aggregate of 5,248,200
shares of our common stock, including 349,757 shares sold pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of their over-
allotment option on February 27, 2007, at a price of $10.50 per share. The net proceeds to us from our initial
public offering aggregated approximately $48.0 million after deducting underwriting commissions and offering
expenses. We used approximately $2.5 million of the net proceeds of our initial public offering to repay all
outstanding borrowings under the Company’s revolving line of credit and term loan. We used approximately
$10.3 million of the net proceeds of our initial public offering for our acquisition of ICR Limited. L.C. in
May 2007. We intend to use the balance of the net proceeds from our initial public offering for general corporate

purposes.

Industry Background
Compensation Management

For most organizations, the primary goal of compensation management is to design a compensation
program that allows the employer to effectively and efficiently attract, motivate and retain employees. According
to a February 2006 survey by CFQ Magazine, 91% of companies ranked the management of “human capital” as
one of the most important factors in the success of their business. Optimizing pay is a priority as compensation
remains one of the largest expense categories for most companies, Also, it is widely believed that compensation
is one of the most important factors influencing employee performance. The best managed companies typically
are analytical and deliberate in establishing and monitoring their compensation programs and seek to understand
compensation practices and levels at the organizations that compete with them for talent.

To execute their pay strategies, most large organizations rely on their internal compensation functions.
Whether formal or informal, the compensation group’s role is to manage the organization’s full breadth of pay
practices. Analytical professionals develop the overall compensation philosophy and specific pay programs;
build the organization’s salary structures and manage the overall compensation budget; typically define how to
link pay to performance and often work with line managers to cascade that linkage to each individual employee.
They also report and make recommendations to senior management and the board of directors. The foundation
for all this work is a true understanding of the appropriate compensation practices for specific jobs, departments,
groups, and entire organizations.

The predominant appreach used by companies to determine appropriate compensation is “market pricing.”
Market pricing is the process of comparing positions and pay in a company against aggregated, statistically
significant compensation data from companies of comparable size, industry and location. To conduct a market
pricing analysis for a particular position at a particular company, an internal compensation specialist or an
outside consultant compares the job at that company with the closest matching “benchmark” jobs found in
compensation surveys. When ample market data has been identified (generally from three or more third party
sources), the compensation specialist or consultant weights, adjusts and averages the data to form an opinion of
the market price for the job, Through the use of market pricing, the development of salary structures, and
execution of pay programs (for example, base pay, commissions and incentives), organizations can effectively
manage their compensation costs and link pay to performance.

Although most organizations are in agreement regarding the importance of market pricing in compensation
management, there is wide variation regarding the processes and tools employed to make compensation
decisions. Some organizations employ in-house compensation professionats who purchase surveys and use them
to price the positions themselves, whereas others hire compensation consultants to market price their positions
and recommend appropriate salary ranges. Many large companies will take a combination approach, using
in-house resources for a majority of positions and engaging consulting firms to market price the jobs that are
most critical to the success of the organization or for which data is more difficult to obtain. It is also common for
large orgamizations to purchase data from more than one source and use one or more software packages to
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manage different parts of the process. Smaller organizations do not typically have dedicated compensation
specialists and therefore often rely on a human resource, or HR, generalist to manage the compensation analysis
duties for the organization as part of a larger job.

Traditional Approaches to Compensation Management

Companies have traditionally used a variety of approaches for managing the compensation function. Many
continue to use relatively simplistic internally developed software tools, often based on generic desktop programs
such as Microsoft Excel. Some companies utilize broad HR and/or enterprise resource planning, or ERP,
software offerings, which include some compensation management capability but typically lack the specialized
functionality to adequately address compensation management. Many of these solutions must be installed on
clients’ servers and maintained by their information technology, or IT, departments and do not seamlessly
incorporate compensation data. Larger organizations also engage outside third parties to assist them in managing
their compensation processes. Traditional third-party solution providers include HR business process
outsourcers, or HR BPOs, such as Hewitt Associates, Affiliated Computer Services, and HR consultants, such as
Mercer, Watson Wyatt Worldwide, Towers Perrin and Hay Group. HR consultants provide full service market
pricing, comparison analysis and compensation management process assistance, but at a high cost—up to
$200,000 annually for a typical company with 500 positions.

Larger organizations are faced with the challenges of compiling and managing large amounts of
information, analyzing and reporting on actual and proposed compensation programs, collaborating among large
or geographically dispersed teams and increasing the organizational effectiveness of their compensation plans.
Although larger organizations typically have well-staffed HR departments and dedicated budgets and resources
for compensation management, the need to manage information and data from multiple internal and external
constituencies and integrate those inputs within a single system creates significant difficulties.

For small and mid-sized organizations, professional compensation management is often prohibitively
expensive and time-consuming. These organizations are typically faced with a decision either to use external
consulting firms, the cost of which often exceeds available budgets, or to commit scarce internal resources. In
addition, HR responsibilities for these organizations are often assigned to only one or two dedicated staff or, in
many cases, shared across non-dedicated staff who have other full-time responsibilities and may lack
compensation expertise. Furthermore, these companies do not possess sophisticated interactive tools and
information for making compensation decisions or administering compensation programs.

On-Demand Software and Compensation Management

Recent innovations in information technology have created opportunities to deliver software applications
directly to users over the Internet in a subscription-based, on-demand business model. This model is made
possible by the proliferation of high-speed, broadband Internet connectivity, open standards for application
integration and advances in network availability and security. For the user, on-demand software eliminates the
need for expensive hardware, software and internal IT support.

For HR. personnel, who may not have large capital spending budgets, the often minimal (if any) upfront
expenditure required to implement on-demand solutions and the minimal need for IT department involvement is
particularly attractive. In addition, the hosted architecture helps ensure that the software and vendor-supplied
content is kept current and secure, without requiring any user involvement. On-demand solutions also permit
rapid deployment of and training for new applications, resulting in faster product adoption and increased
productivity, especially for users who may have little or no technological background. These benefits typically
result in a lower total cost of ownership and, in our belief, an increased return on investment. Finally, the
on-demand model enables multiple users, including geographically dispersed executives, HR departments,
departmental managers and employees, to easily coordinate and collaborate within a single application. These
factors make the compensation management market well-suited for the on-demand software business model.
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Market Opportunity

Employee compensation is one of the largest expense categories for corporations in the U.S., with total
compensation expense in 2006 approximating $7.26 trillion, according to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. As
a result, managing compensation expense is critically important to organizations of all sizes. The compensation
management technology market, which includes software and online compensation data offerings, is estimated to
grow from approximately $320 million for 2006 to approximately $460 million for 2008, according to an April
2006 study by independent market research firm Yankee Group. This projection from Yankee Group is focused
on the market for software and related data offerings. However, we believe our total addressable market is larger,
as our products provide a solution which replaces, in part or in full, not only sofiware and data offerings, but also
service offerings addressing the compensation management market such as those provided by compensation
consulting firms and HR BPOs. Yankee Group has estimated the market for service offerings to be
approximately $960 million for 2006. In sum, the markets for software, data and service offerings totaled
approximately $1.28 billion for 2006, which we believe provides a better estimate of our total addressable
market.

Our Solutions

Salary.com is a leading provider of on-demand compensation management solutions. Our web-based-
software suites help organizations of all sizes optimize compensation, manage employee performance and qualify
salaries. Our integrated software applications provide extensive features and broad functionality that address the
critical functions of compensation analysis and planning, goal setting and performance management. By
automating and integrating essential elements of compensation management, our solutions allow our customers
to reduce costs, save time and increase the effectiveness of their compensation spending.

Our unique combination of software and data addresses the various stages of the compensation management
lifecycle—ranging from benchmarking positions to establish the market price of equivalent positions to
managing the compensation review and goal setting process between operating managers and front-line
employees. We deliver our compensation management solutions to customers through our CompAnalyst suite of
on-demand software applications, which are tightly integrated with our proprietary data sets. OQur PayScore
product provides salary qualification services targeted to the specific needs of the mortgage lending industry. In
addition to our compensation management solutions, we offer our TalentManager suite to deliver employee
lifecycle performance management solutions, which help crganizations establish goals throughout the
organization and link employee pay to performance of those goals.

Our acquisition of ICR in May 2007 expanded our compensation product offering with the addition of two
new services: IPAS®, the largest single source of international technology compensation data and software,
including all relevant job titles in over 70 countries, and ICR Specialty Consumer Goods, a leading source of
U.S. compensation data for apparel, footwear, luxury goods and specialty retail jobs.

Our comprehensive suite of integrated software applications provides the following key benefits:

Facilitates more effective compensation spending. Our solutions enable companies to deliver more
effective and consistent compensation programs by reducing the risk of high turnover caused by underpaying
employees and the risk of reduced profitability caused by overpaying employees. By making better compensation
decisions, our customers are able to better attract, motivate and retain their employees, which we believe can lead
to improved business execution and financial performance.

Enables Human Resource professionals to be more strategic. Our solutions incorporate features and best
practices that automate compensation management to reduce or eliminate manual, paper-based and discrete
business activities. As a result, our solutions help maximize the effectiveness of HR departments by enabling
compensation professionals to focus on more strategic, high-value corporate-wide initiatives.




Provides access to proprietary market-driven compensation intelligence. Companies have traditionally
made compensation decisions based on a limited number of surveys that are updated only once a year. By
contrast, our proprietary data sets provide market-driven compensation information that is derived from
numerous sources and which is updated monthly. We believe that the current nature, as well as the breadth and
depth, of our data sets provide our customers with significant advantages as they set their compensation levels.
To build and update our data sets, our compensation professionals apply proprietary comparative algorithms and
sophisticated statistical analysis to the data to provide the most up-to-date, comprehensive and useful information
to our customers.

Provides ability to price technology jobs around the world using the same methodology and
participants. Market pricing technology jobs across countries has traditionally been a challenging process
complicated by multiple surveys, different job titles, inconsistent job matching, different participants per country
and no centralized source to compare across countries. Through our IPAS product, we offer a uniform set of job
benchmarks in a single source of comprehensive data that enables consistent benchmarking capabilities across all
countries in the survey. Customers participate in a single, web-based survey and receive access to every job from
clerk to executive for over 70 countries. For example, a customer can determine what an accountant makes across
all countries in the survey, with the same source, same methodology, same participants, and same currency.

Reduces compensation management costs. We believe that our solutions are more cost-effective than other
available offerings. Our on-demand model significantly reduces or eliminates the installation and maintenance
costs associated with on-premise solutions. Qur intuitive user interfaces allow our customers to find the right
data, manage its application and configure overall compensation plans with little or no technical assistance.
Furthermore, by integrating our software with our proprietary data sets, we provide our customers with a
significantly less expensive compensation management solution than the traditional approach of separately
purchasing combinations of consulting services, surveys and software applications.

Allows for rapid deployment and scalability. Our on-demand software can be deployed rapidly and
provisioned easily, without our customers having to make a large and risky upfront investment in software,
hardware, implementation services or dedicated IT staff. The delivery platform for our software allows the
solution to scale to suit customers’ needs. Additional users with defined privileges can be granted access with
minimal implementation time, and new applications, such as analytics, can be deployed quickly and transparently
to existing customers.




Data

Our proprietary data sets are a core differentiator of our solutions. By providing comprehensive data within
our applications, we are able to assist corporate customers in achieving their compensation management
objectives faster and more efficiently. The following diagram illustrates how we gather and process data and
make it available to our enterprise customers through our software applications:

Data Development Process for Enterprise Data Sets
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To develop our data sets, we begin with raw data we obtain from numerous sources. We purchase data
directly from industry associations, compensation consulting firms, economic analysis firms and other sources.
We also collect data directly from employers, partners and government agencies (for example, the U.S. Bureau of
Labor Statistics, Department of Labor and SEC). Qur team of certified compensation professionals also conducts
proprietary compensation surveys on emerging jobs such as Corporate Ethics Officers and Six Sigma jobs.
Through our acquisition of ICR in May 2007, we expanded both our custom survey capabilities to include
consumer goods surveys across four main sectors—Iluxury goods, apparel, footwear and specialty retail—and
also our data-filled software capabilities into global technology jobs with the addition of the IPAS product. Cur
team of compensation professionals processes data from these sources to derive our own proprietary data sets of
compensation and other job-related information.

QOur Market Pricing Data Processes

For our proprietary market pricing data sets, we use both standard and proprietary algorithms, which provide
our customers with complete and consistent data that is representative of nearly all relevant markets and
reasonable combinations of jobs, industries, locations and organization sizes. The completeness and consistency
of our data sets provides our enterprise and consumer customers with market-driven compensation intelligence
that we believe they could not procure or easily derive from alternate sources. In addition, our market pricing
data processes and data sets also reduce the problems corporate compensation departments face from their lack of
standardized processes for analyzing and combining multiple survey sources and maintaining the consistency of
those sources year-over-year.

Enterprise and Consumer Data Sets

We have one proprietary data set for our enterprise customers and one for consumer customers. Our
enterprise data set contains base, bonus and incentive pay data for positions held by more than 74% of U.S.
employees and our consumer data set currently addresses the jobs held by more than 80% of the U.S. workforce.
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Qur enterprise solutions report data based on the most reliable sources available, Our enterprise customers
may also incorporate data sources that they have independently acquired, which are then available for their
exclusive use. Cur enterprise data set is also augmented by compensation data from our customers, which they
provide to us through surveys we conduct and which we do not include in our consumer data set. In addition, we
provide a module in which an enterprise customer can store its own employee records to maich to its preferred
market sources and compare actual compensation, target compensation and market compensation.

Our lower priced and free consumer products report data designed to provide a reasonably accurate estimate
of the compensation pay levels for thousands of jobs in various types of organizations throughout the United
States and Canada. The jobs reported in our consumer tools are primarily the major benchmark jobs available
from numerous public data sources. The purpose of the consumer tools is to educate the individual employee
regarding the compensation decision-making process and to provide a reasonable approximation of the market
for that individual’s job. We believe the best way for an employee and employer to have a productive
conversation regarding compensation and pay for performance is for both to be educated about the process and
current market values.

SEC Data Set

In addition to our proprietary market pricing data sets described above, we also maintain a complete data set
of executive compensation and related data for more than 10,000 U.S. publicly-traded companies. All
compensation data included in this data set is obtained directly from filings made by these companies with the
SEC. Our SEC data set also contains data on director compensation from approximately 3,000 of the largest
publicly-traded companies. Our SEC data set is updated daily to reflect new public filings and we maintain the
historical data in our SEC data set to facilitate comparisons.

We also include basic financial data on public companies in our SEC data set, which we purchase from
Standard & Poors. This data is used to allow our customers to place compensation data in the context of a
company's financial performance.




Products

We offer a suite of compensation management applications for enterprise customers that helps companies
determine how much to pay new and existing employees and manage overall compensation programs, We also
offer a suite of performance management applications to assist customers to establish performance goals
throughout their organizations and link each employee’s pay to performance against these goals
(“pay-for-performance”). Along with our application suites, we provide our customers with implementation and
data configuration services as well as assistance with the application of our compensation and performance
management solutions to their organization. In addition to our enterprise offerings, we also provide a series of
consumer and e-cominerce solutions through our website to provide compensation information and tools
designed for the consumer, We provide our solutions on a subscription, transaction or ad-sponsored basis. For the
years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, our subscription revenues derived from our TalentManager
products comprised less than 15% of our total revenues, with the remainder of our subscription revenues being
derived from our compensation management and data products. Qur solutions consist of the following products:

Product Category Product Name Principal Revenue Type
Enterprise Solutions—Compensation CompAnalyst Suite Subscription
Management Products Job Analyzer Subscription
Survey Center Subscription
Salary Structures - Subscription
Reporting & Analysis Subscription
CompAnalyst Executive Subscription
CompAnalyst Professional Subscription
Edition
Salary.com Professional Subscription
Edition
PayScore Subscription
Job Valuation Reports Subscription
Compensation Market Studies  Transaction
Salary.com Survey Transaction
Enterprise Solutions—Performance TalentManager Suite Subscription
Management Products PerformanceManager Subscription
CompPlanner Subscription
IncentivesManager Subscription
StockOptionManager

Consumer & E-Commerce Solutions

Enterprise Solutions

Compensation Management Products

www.salary.com

Subscription/Ad-sponsored

Salary Wizard Subscription/Ad-sponsored

Salary Center Subscription/Ad-sponsored
. Personal Salary Report Subscription

Subscription

CompAnalyst is a suite of on-demand compensation management solutions for use by the compensation
professional in an enterprise. CompAnalyst is built around a core data set of market pricing information and
includes access to several analytics applications, including the following:

Job Analyzer:  Allows large enterprise customers easy access to our U.S. benchmark data set of market
pricing for approximately 3,300 positions in companies of all sizes, across 20 industries and all U.S. geographies
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(including regions, states and major metropolitan areas). Customers can also quickly find the market price for
any benchmark job or create and price a “hybrid job™ by mixing multiple positions together.

Survey Center: Provides customers with a centralized, online repository for managing and performing
market pricing with third-party surveys that they acquire and own themselves. Easy to use tools enable customers
to age, weight, adjust and combine data from multiple sources to produce market rates for use in compensation
program design and analysis. Customers can use this functionality when they have specific data sources and
weightings they choose to employ in determining market pricing. The Survey Center module also simplifies and
speeds up the customer’s survey participation process by leveraging data typically used within the module’s core
functionality—including employee pay and demographic data and company job to survey job matches—and
exporting survey participation files in the specific survey vendor’s preferred format.

Salary Structures: Provides tools for analyzing current pay structures and for modeling the cost of
proposed changes. The Salary Structures module enables customers to assess the alignment of pay practices with
the external market and internal targets, and to perform “what if” analysis to support recommendations for
changes in compensation program design. - :

Reporting & Analysis: Enables organizations to assess external competitiveness against internal equity by
comparing actual pay practices to market data developed in Job Analyzer or Survey Center. Customers may
analyze trends by year, compare pay practices across groups of employees (for example, by region, business unit,
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission protected class) and create custom queries to meet their analysis
needs. Customers can also store data and use it to conduct historical comparisons.

CompAnalyst Executive:  This application allows CEOs, CFOs, executive compensation specialists, board
members and consultants to analyze and review compensation information disclosed in filings with the SEC for
more than 10,000 public companies. The data available with this product, which is updated daily, includes pay,
incentive compensation, Black-Scholes values, benefits, director compensation, financial and stock performance
data and more. CompAnalyst Executive’s functionality includes the ability to build and analyze peer groups by
industry, size and location, as well as company financial performance measures and executive and director pay
measurces. '

CompAnalyst Professional Edition: This application is similar to Job Analyzer, except with less data and
functionality. Our sales force sells this application to smaller businesses.

PayScore:  This product is a salary qualification service which helps mortgage professionals gain
efficiencies in the application process. PayScore combines data and software to enable lenders to better qualify
applicants’ salary claims, improve credit decision making and provide an audit trail for compliance purposes.

Salary.com Professional Edition: This data product is similar to CompAnalyst Professional Edition, but
contains data only on small companies. We sell this application online through our website and our partners’
websites directly to businesses that typically have fewer than 100 employees.

Job Valuation Reports:  This report is designed for use by HR departments to price a single position. It
allows users to view a report on the appropriate market compensation data for that job and, if they desire,
recommend adjustments to reflect the particular experience, education and other factors specific to an employee
currently in the job. The job valuation report also includes basic explanations of how to use the data and how to
explain market pricing practices to an employee. We sell this application to employers through-our website and
our partners’ websites.

Compensation Market Studies: These survey-like reports aggregate the data, generally for 50 to 200
related job titles within an industry group, typically within the same job family (for example, finance and
accounting) or the same level (for example, executives). Salary.com has more than 100,000 of these reports that
we update each month and sell to employers through our website and our partners’ websites.
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Salary.com Surveys: Salary.com runs and manages compensation and benefits surveys, some of which are
sponsored directly by Salary.com and others of which are sponsored in partnership with industry associations or
other external sponsors. To conduct a survey, Salary.com solicits companies to submit actual pay data for their
employees to us. We analyze, aggregate and anonymize their data and report the results back to participating
companies. Typically, we charge participants a fee and we also may sell final reports to non-participants for a
higher fee.

Performance Management Products

TalentManager is a suite of on-demand solutions that provides the essential workflow to link pay to
performance across the enterprise. TalentManager enables an organization to manage goal setting, performance
reviews and incentive programs, and to link those elements to relevant compensation programs within a single
integrated application. Our TalentManager suite includes the following:

Performance Manager: Enables the communication and setting of goals by employees and managers and
tracks performance against those goats. The system uses the goals as the basis for managing the performance
review process. Performance Manager is fully integrated with CompPlanner, IncentivesManager and
StockOptionManager and can link a virtually unlimited number of pay plans to an individual or to a particular
goal.

CompPlanner: Enables organizations to automate and control the process of allocating salary increases,
budget pools, lump sum adjustments and basic bonus plans. Within CompPlanner, HR and finance departments
can set rules or guidelines that dictate the limits and the approval process for any component of the compensation
decision-making process. By setting all of the niles in one system, which programmatically enforces the process,
the entire organization can easily and efficiently adhere to policies and control procedures.

IncentivesManager: A configurable and customizable application capable of managing incentive plans.
Incentive plans vary significantly among and within organizations and can have very complex management and
payout structures. Although CompPlanner includes features to address basic incentive plans, many organizations
need the additional sophisticated performance measures and calculations available in IncentivesManager.

StockOptionManager: Provides an environment and business rules for managing the atlocation of stock
and stock options as part of the compensation cycle. The granting of equity incentives within a company can be a
simple or complex process, depending on the company’s philosophy and internal rules. Like IncentivesManager,
StockOptionManager addresses the complexity necessary to accommodate an organization’s equity allocation
rules and processes. The StockOptionManager module accommodates both publicly-traded and private company

equity.

Professional Services

Our CompAnalyst professional services teams handle new customer implementations, training and general
help desk services for the CompAnalyst product line and all data products. The TalentManager professional
services team handles all new customer implementations, configurations, training, and general help desk services
for the TalentManager suite of applications. For implementations that are not strictly “plug and play,” our
preduct-specific implementation teams provide initialization, configuration, training and general help-desk
services. We also train our customers so that they can be more self-sufficient for future implementations.
TalentManager customers generally require more professional services than do CompAnalyst customers.
Professional services in most cases are included as part of our subscription agreements and, to a lesser extent, are
offered on an as-needed basis.
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Consumer and E-Commerce Solutions

Our consumer and e-commerce family of products consists of free-to-user applications that are
ad-sponsored, as well as certain premium products that are sold directly to individuals visiting our website. We
also generate indirect revenue from these products through advertisers that pay for space on our website and our
partners’ websites.

Our consumer and e-commerce products include:

www.salary.com: Our destination website and marketing face of the company is an advertising and online
subscription sales channel. Our internet media traffic has grown to an average of more than three million unique
monthly visitors over the three months ended March 31, 2007. According to comScore Networks, the amount of
website traffic received by Salary.com over the twelve months ended March 31, 2007 places it in the top 10 most
visited for Career Services and Development websites and in the top 10 most visited for Financial
Information and Advice websites during the twelve months ended September 30, 2006. According to a search we
performed using Google, more than 9,000 websites currently link directly to www salary.com. The site includes
calculators, memberships, newsletters and content around the topic of career and pay management for
individuals, as well as related business content for small business and enterprise audiences. We believe that more
than 90% of Salary.com’s traffic is organically generated and is not the result of substantial direct advertising and
_ marketing on our part.

Salary Wizard: Salary Wizard is an ad-sponsored salary calculator designed to provide non-scoped,
national average base pay and total annual cash compensation ranges for the positions we track. Users may adjust
the national average information to their desired location by selecting a2 metropolitan area or zip code, and the
results will be adjusted using a geographic adjustment factor to estimate the pay level for that location. Salary
Wizard also attracts visitors to our website and our syndicated partner network of sites and serves as an entry
point for consumers and employers to purchase a report or subscription product from us. The product is used
more than 3 million times per month by both individuals and businesses.

Salary Center: Qur syndicated product is a fully functional set of applications that deploy onto our
partners’ websites to power the compensation section of their websites in a co-branded manner. For example,
AOL Career Channel’s salary area is populated with Salary.com tools and the content is hosted and managed by
Salary.com. The syndicated Salary Center product typically includes advertising inventory and e-commerce
reports for which partnters share revenue with Saldry.com. Salary.com partners include AOL, Monster, CNN
Money, Yahoo! Hotjobs, Dice, Business Week, the New York Times, ADP and 500 other companies
representing more than 2,500 discrete websites.

Personal Salary Report Subscription:  This application is a premium 14-page report providing individuals
with an HR-quality assessment of their worth in the job market. The report also educates the subscriber about
how employers determine compensation and also advises the subscriber on how to negotiate salary for a win-win
outcome.

In addition to these online offerings, we also sell space for third party advertisers to deliver their messages
to users of Salary.com’s website. Advertisers will pay for targeted inventory space adjacent to content that will
be viewed by certain types of consumers. We believe our advertising inventory is attractive to advertisers
because we provide a large volume of exposure opportunities and we can link those opportunities to a variety of
consumer demographic factors, such as job title, location and income. Advertisers that purchase this inventory
include job boards, recruiters, colleges and universities and financial services firms.

Compensation Team

We believe that one of the most significant differentiators between us and our software competitors is our
compensation team. In addition to hiring experienced compensation professionals from industry, most of whom
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are certified compensation professionals, we train our technology personnel about compensation and our
compensation personnel about technology, so that each group possesses both the HR and the technological
expertise essential to our products. We believe that this combined expertise allows us to design our software and
data sets in a sophisticated and useful manner for our customers. We also try to ensure that employees with
compensation experience are deployed throughout our organization. Historically, we have moved compensation
professionals into roles within sales, product management, and professional services. In this way we are able to
embed compensation knowledge, skills and abilities in all aspects of what we do, and we believe this allows us to
position our domain expertise as a true competitive advantage.

Research & Development

Our research and development efforts are focused on improving and enhancing our existing on-dernand
service offerings as well as developing new products, features and functionality. Expansion of our solutions into
new areas often involves a multiple year commitment to enter a new business, and we seek new product
opportunities related to compensation, performance and talent management. When we extend an existing
application or data set, our development costs are relatively low. When we innovate in an area requiring the
development of a new data set, our development costs increase due to the high initial fixed costs of entering the
new area and also building original seftware functionality. Once the initial investment in a new area has been
made, however, the ongoing costs to maintain a data set and extend a product are often significantly less than the
costs of maintaining the typical installed software product. Research and development expense for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $4.1 million, $2.2 million and $1.4 million, respectively.

Technology

We were a pioneer in hosted, multi-tenant, on-demand software, launching our first product in 2000. Our
on-demand software is a highly scalable, multi-tenant application platform written in CSS, XML, DHTML,
Visual Basic, C++, Java and C# for the NET framework and COM+ and MSMQ for the Windows operating
systems. We use commercially available hardware and a combination of proprietary and commercially available
software, including Microsoft SQL Server, Microsoft IIS Server and Microsoft Windows,

Our on-demand software treats our customers as separate tenants in central applications and data sets. As a
result, we are able to spread the cost of delivering our service across our user base, In addition, because we do
not have to manage thousands of distinct applications with their own business logic and database schemas, we
believe that we can scale our business faster than traditional software vendors, even those that have modified
their products to be accessible over the Internet.

Our TalentManager products are built on our proprietary, highly scalable Salary.com FlexTenant platform,
which enables us to customize the business logic, data flow, workflow and user interfaces of our enterprise
applications for clients and yet continue to operate in the same multi-tenant application shared by our other
customers. '

Operations

We serve all of our customers from a third-party network operations facility located in Watertown,
Massachusetts, operated by AT&T. This facility provides around-the-clock security personnel, photo ID/access
cards, biometric hand scanners and sophisticated fire systems. The overall security of each data center (inside and
outside) and network operations center are monitored by digital video surveillance cameras 24 hours a day, seven
days a week. Additionally, redundant bandwidth, on-site electrical generators and environmental control devices
are used to keep servers up and running. We continuously monitor the performance of our service. We have a
comprehensive security infrastructure, including firewalls, intrusion detection systems and encryption for
transmissions over the Internet. We monitor and test this security infrastmicture on a regular basis, Our site
operations team provides system management, maintenance, monitering and back-up. We run tests regularly to
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ensure adequate response from our sites and conduct production environment reviews for hosting capacity,
expansion and upgrade planning. We also monitor site availability and latency. We own or lease and operate all
of the hardware on which our applications run in the network operations facility.

To facilitate high availability of our solutions and loss recovery, we operate a multi-tiered system
configuration with redundant bandwidth, load balanced web server pools, replicated and clustered database
servers and fault tolerant storage devices. Data sets are restored to hot standby database servers using transaction
logs shipped from primary production database servers. This solution is designed to provide near real-time fail-
over service in the event of a malfunction with a primary clustered database or server. Full backups of all data
sets take place nightly and are archived to tapes. These tapes are rotated offsite to a separate facility managed by
Iron Mountain. We also maintain a fully redundant site, located within our headquarters, which would serve as
our primary site in the event that a disaster was to render the network operations facility inoperable. Qur real-
time backups are stored on servers in our corporate headquarters. Although we have not experienced a failure of
our third-party network operations facility, we believe that if such facility became inoperable, most of our
products would be available to our customers with minimal interruption in service.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our enterprise solutions primarily through our direct sales organization and to a lesser extent
through indirect channels. As of March 31, 2007, our direct sales force consisted of 68 employees, including 38
account executives. We employ business development representatives to call potential enterprise customers o
book initial demonstrations and to qualify customer leads. Once a lead is qualified, our account executives assess
customer needs, complete demonstrations and close sales, primarily by telephone and via web-based product
demonstrations. We also employ account managers who maintain on-geing or post-sale relationships with
subscribers, manage renewals and generate interest from existing customers to purchase additional products.
Additionally, our sales engineers and compensation professionals assist with sales to custorners with particularly
complex needs and provide post-sales customer support. Most of our sales personnel are located in our
headquarters in Waltham, Massachusetts. We also have an advertising and syndication sales team, which works
much in the same way as our enterprise product sales tearn, but focuses its efforts on selling and marketing
advertising on our website and syndication of our consumer offerings to other websites. Although we have
relationships with many partners, including websites and consulting firms, these partners accounted for less than
10% in the aggregate of our total revenue in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006.

Our marketing program is anchored by an integrated communications strategy that supports the core of our
brand and value proposition. Qur marketing programs include direct mail and email campaigns, using our
website to provide product and company information, advertising in both print and online media, search engine
marketing, issuing press releases on a regular basis and launching events to publicize our service to existing
customers and prospects. We build our brand through our website, syndication and public relations, all of which
are intended to increase market awareness of Salary.com as a top-tier provider of on-demand compensation
management solutions, as well as a leading website for free information about compensation. Furthermore, our
spokespersons are frequently sought as expert commentators by major media, including television, radio,
newspapers and mainstream and trade magazines. We believe that this is a critical component of our branding
program and positions Salary.com as an expert in the compensation field. In the fiscal year ended March 31,
2007, our television and radio appearances were viewed more than 50 millicn times and our print appearances
were viewed more than 140 million times. We also conduct seminars, participate in trade shows and industry
conferences, publish white papers on HR issues and develop customer reference programs.
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Customers

As of March 31, 2007, we had more than 1,850 enterprise subscribers, in various industries, who spend from
$2,000 to more than $100,000 annually. No single customer accounted for more than 3% of our revenue in the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 or 2007. Below is a representative list of companies who were customers as of

March 31, 2007, grouped by industry category and number of employees in the business unit we serve.

Industry

Retail ...........

Consumer Products

Financial Products and Services

Manufacturing . ..

Technology

Competition

More than 500 Full-Time

500 or Fewer Full-Time

Cisco Systems

Thermo Fisher Scientific
Trimble Navigation
Mitsubishi Electronics USA
SRA International

Employees Employees

Toys R’ Us Dial-a-Mattress
Home Depot Hickory Farms
Abercrombie & Fitch Honey Baked Ham
Linens ‘N Things Red Envelope
Hallmark Zappos.com
Campbell Soup LaCrosse Footwear
"Procter & Gamble Premier Agenda
Kohler Birds Eye

_ Royal Caribbean Waterford Wedgwood USA'
Avon Bunn-O-Matic .
Equifax American Capital Strategies
Merrill Lynch Cole Taylor Bank
PricewaterhouseCoopers Cascade Bancorp
M&T Bank Ocean First Financial
MasterCard Juniper Bank
Raytheon Wagner Spray Technology
Bosch Royal Appliance
Honeywell Rockford Corporation
BASF Troy Corporation
Goodrich JSP International

Sycamore Networks
Powerwave Technologies
Digit 1Globe

SiRF Technologies
Omron Components

The market for on-demand compensation management and performance management solutions is
fragmented, competitive and rapidly evolving, and there are low barriers to entry to some segments of this

market. Within our markets, the most common applications in use today are generic desktop software tools and
solutions that are not specifically designed for compensation management or performance management. We also
compete with software vendors that offer solutions through either traditional on-premise delivery'methods_ ortoa
lesser extent, on-demand solutions, and established consulting firms that continue to offer a diversity of services
and software products. We also expect to encounter new and evolving competition as the market for on-demand
compensation management software and services consolidates and matures and as organizations become
increasingly aware of the advantages and efficiencies that can be attained from the use of compensation
management software and data solutions.
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We believe the principal factors that generally determine a company’s competitive advantage in the
compensation management and performance management markets include the following:

¢ 2 large installed customer base;
+  a well-known and respected brand,;
*  breadth and depth of proprietary content;

+  the ability to offer both powerful software and technology and accurate compensation data in a single
offering;

*  ease of deployment;
*  low cost of ownership;
¢ asuite of products (rather than individual point solutions}; and

«  anintegrated platform (e.g., in which pay and performance software and data are linked).

We face competition primarily from five sources:
«  generic desktop software and in-house or custom-developed solutions;

"« established software vendors offering products specificaily designed for compensatibn management,
performance management and/or talent management,

»  established compensation and HR consulting firms;
+  other websites and advertising venues; and

e existing and future start-up companies offering software, data, and e-commerce compensation
solutions,

Generic desktop software and in-house or custom- developed solutions. Perhaps the most common
applications in use today are generic desktop software tools such as Microsoft Excel and Microsoft Access, as
well as other commercially available software solutions not specifically designed for compensation or
performance management. Compensation professionals at organizations of all sizes routinely use these generic
software tools to develop in-house or home-grown solutions. Although we believe our CompAnalyst and
TalentManager offerings are superior to these home-grown, partially-automated solutions, some potential
customers may be reluctant to switch both because of the cost of our solution and because of the perceived risk
they face in giving up direct control over their sources of data.

Established software vendors. Established HR software vendors compete with both our CompAnalyst and
TalentManager solutions. In addition, the market for our TalentManager solution is extremely competitive and
includes several companies that are more established and have greater financial, technological and marketing
resources than we do. As a result, we expect to face intense ongoing competition in this segment of our business,
which could affect our ability to increase or maintain market share in the performance management arena.

We also expect that new competitors, such as enterprise software vendors that have traditionally focused on
enterprise resource planning, or ERP, or back office applications, will enter, or greatly expand their offerings in,
the on-demand compensation and performance management software market as it develops and matures. In
addition, there are a number of companies that have products in the broader talent management market, which
includes not only compensation and performance management, but also learning and recruitment management.
We expect over time that certain of these companies may also seek to offer compensation and performance
management products in competition with us. These large, traditional players in the HR space could focus their
considerable financial, technical, marketing and sales resources on various segments of our business, either by
developing their own products in-house or purchasing a smaller company. To the extent such efforts are
successful, it is possible that these new competitors could rapidly acquire significant market share.
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Established compensation and HR consulting firms. The market for compensation management data and
services has traditionally been dominated by large consulting firms, all of which have greater financial, sales and
marketing, management, service, support and other resources than we have. Such firms have traditionally offered
an expensive but fully customized compensation management solution to the nation’s largest enterprises.
Additionally, in recent years such firms have begun to reinvest in their software-based compensation
management tools. We thus face two types of competition from established consulting firms:

* First, their customized consulting services represent a challenge to our CompAnalyst suite, particularly
in larger organizations, which frequently have long-standing and well-entrenched relationships with
compensation and HR consulting firms. This challenge is particularly acute for our CompAnalyst
Executive product line, as HR and compensation executives are often reluctant to change the processes
used to determine their bosses’ pay. '

0

e Second, some established HR. consulting firms offer software that competes directly with certain
modules of both our CompAnalyst and TalentManager product lines. While we believe that our
software products compete favorably with those offered by consulting firms, these firms have far
greater resources than we do and as a result may compete successfully with our CompAnalyst and
TalentManager solutions.

Other websites and advertising venues. Our advertising-sponsored offerings (Salary Wizard,
www.salary.com, and Salary Center) compete with a wide variety of other websites and online media for
advertising dollars. To the extent these competitors are able to offer advertisers more effective or cost-efficient
means of marketing their product and services, we may be unable to grow, or face reduced revenues from some
or all of our advertising-based products,

Existing and future start-up software, data, and e-commerce companies. A number of smaller, early-stage
companies offer products that compete directly with one or more of our product lines. Although many of these
young companies may have fewer resources than we do, to the extent they are successful in their efforts, we
expect to face more effective competition from them in the future, and our financial performance may suffer as a
result. in addition, because the market for compensation and performance management software and services, as
well as e-commerce compensation products, is nascent and rapidly evolving, we expect additional, as yet
unformed, companies to enter our markets in the future. To the extent this occurs, some or all of our product lines
will face greater competition in the future, which may materially adversely affect our financial performance.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Content

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws in the United States and
other jurisdictions as well as confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions to protect our proprietary
technelogy and our brand. We have one U.S. issued patent (for our proprietary methods for calculating market
pricing across our data sets) which expires in 2022 and three pending U.S. patent applications, as well as related
patents and patent applications in other jurisdictions. We also enter into confidentiality and proprietary rights
agreements with our employees, consultants and other third parties and control access to software,
documentation, data and other proprietary information.

We pursue the registration of our trademarks in the United States. Currently, our CompPlanner and Salary
Wizard marks are federally registered in the U.S. In addition, we have applied for registration of the following
trademarks: Salary.com, CompAnalyst, CompAnalyst Executive, Survey Center, PayScore, TalentManager and
FlexTenant.

We currently license some of the content used to build our compensation data sets from numerous providers
pursuant to data reseller, data distribution, and license agreements with these providers. Qur data sets are
generally derived from market data as collected in salary surveys. This information is used as one of several
inputs to our data set calculation methodology. Most of the licenses for this content are non-exclusive. We cannot
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assure you that the data we require for our data sets will be available from such sources in the future or that the
cost of such data will not increase. Because we have content from numerous providers, we do not believe that the
loss of any one license would materially affect the quality of our data sets, however, we cannot assure you that
any single data set will not be substantially reliant on a single source in the future. Additionally, if a third party
successfully asserted a claim that our use of data has violated our agreement with them or infringed upon their
copyright, we may be required to remove the applicable data from our data sets and regenerate our data sets
without such data.

Although the protection afforded by patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws may provide some
advantages, we believe that our ability to maintain our competitive position is largely determined by such factors
as the technical skills of our personnel, the breadth and depth of our proprietary data sets, new product
developments and product enhancements.

Substantial litigation regarding intellectual property rights exists in the software industry. From time to
time, in the ordinary course of business, we may be subject to claims relating to our intellectual property rights or
those of others, and we expect that third parties may commence legal proceedings or otherwise assert intellectual
property claims against us in the future, particularly as we expand the complexity and scope of our business, the
number of similar products increases and the functionality of these products further overlap. If a claim is asserted
that we have infringed the intellectual property of a third party, we may be required to seek licenses to that
technology. In addition, we license third party technologies, primarily from Microsoft, that are incorporated into
some elements of our services. Although we do not believe that any one license is material to our operations,
licenses from third parties may not continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost, or at all. Additionally, the
steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property rights may not be adequate. Third parties may infringe or
misappropriate our proprietary rights. Competitors may also independently develop technologies that are
substantially equivalent or superior to the technologies we employ in our services.

Employees

At March 31, 2007, we had 255 full-time and part-time employees. Our employees are not represented by
any collective bargaining agreement, and we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe we have good
relations with our employees.

Officers

Kent Plunket: founded Salary.com and has served as our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
since 1999. Prior to founding Salary.com, Mr. Plunkett was CEQ of Bumblebee Technologies Inc., a career
software publisher, from 1996 through 1999, held a leadership role at InfoSpace, Inc., an online content
syndication company, including online white and yellow pages, private-label search and mobile entertainment, in
1996 and Director of Business Development for Pro CD, Inc., a CD-ROM electronic directory publisher of white
pages, yellow pages and mapping content, from 1995 through 1996. Mr. Plunkett holds an A.B. degree from
Georgetown University and an M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School and is a Certified Compensation
Professional.

Yong Zhang has served as our Chief Technology Officer since April 2000 and as our Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer since June 2006, Mr. Zhang has been a member of our board of directors
since December 2004. Prior to joining Salary.com, Mr. Zhang held various technical leadership and project
management positions at privately held software and healthcare companies, including Iconomy.com, a pioneer of
private-label e-commerce solutions, Smart Route System, a traveler information company, and Center for Health
and Human Services, Inc., and served as consultant for Aerovox, Inc., a publicly-held capacitor manufacturer.
Mr. Zhang holds a B.S. in Physics from Shanghai University of Science and Technology, an M.B.A. from
Cornell University and an M.S. in Electrical Engineering as well as an M.S. in Physics from University of
Massachusetts at Dartmouth. Mr. Zhang is a Certified Compensation Professional and a Global Remuneration
Professional.
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William H. Coleman has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Compensation Officer since
November 2006 and served as our Senior Vice President, Compensation from November 2002 until November
2006 and as our Vice President, Compensation from May 2000 until November 2002, Prior to joining us, .

Mr. Coleman held senior compensation positions with Watson Wyatt Worldwide, a global consulting company,
and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Mr. Coleman holds a B.S. in Mathematics from the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology and is a Certified Compensation Professional.

Kenneth 8. Goldman has served as our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since
March 2006. Mr. Goldman has been a member of our board of directors since November 2006. From April 2004
to March 2006, Mr. Goldman was a Principal with Mirus Capital Advisors, an investment banking firm. From
March 2002 to March 2004, Mr. Goldman was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Lodestar
Corporation, an enterprise software company. From March 2000 through March 2002, Mr. Goldman was
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Student Advantage, a NASDAQ-traded marketing
services company. Prior to 2000, Mr. Goldman served as the chief financial officer of several companies,
including MediaMap, a provider of software and content data, ShopLink.com, an online provider of grocery
shopping and household consumables, the international division of Liberty Mutval Group, and Goldweitz &
Company, a real estate investment and development firm. Mr. Goldman started his career with KPMG and has
been a Certified Public Accountant since 1984. Mr. Goldman holds a B.S. in Business Administration from the
Whitman School of Management at Syracuse University.

Meredith A. Hanrahan has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since
September 2005. From January 2005 to September 2005, Ms. Hanrahan was a marketing consultant for Yankee
Group, a technology research and consulting firm, and also for Boston Beer Company, a publicty-traded
beverage company. From November 2003 until November 2004, Ms. Hanrahan was General Manager and Chief
Marketing Officer for AG Interactive (the interactive division of American Greetings) and from May 2000
through November 2003, Ms. Hanrahan was Vice President and General Manager for Terra Lycos, a Spanish
provider of Internet access. Prior to that, Ms. Hanrahan worked for five years as a strategy consultant for KPMG
and McKinsey & Company in New York, and for ten years in senior and management positions at General Mills,
Inc., Miller Brewing Company, and Lindt Chocolate USA. Ms. Hanrahan holds a B.A. from the University of
New Hampshire and an M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School.

Teresa A. Shipp has served as our Senior Vice President of Sales since May 2003 and served as our
Corporate Controller from November 2002 until August 2004. From November 2001 until September 2002,
Ms. Shipp was International Finance Manager for LoJack Corporation, a publicly-held provider of vehicle
recovery systems. Ms, Shipp holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the University of Notre Dame and an
M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School and is a Certified Public Accountant, a Certified Compensation
Professional and a Global Remuneration Professional.

Christopher J. Fusco has served as our Vice President of Compensation and Data Operations since July
2006 and served as our Vice President, Business Analysis, from July 2005 to July 2006, our Professional
Services Director from March 2004 to July 2005 and our Senior Compensation Consultant from February 2002
to March 2004. From July 1998 through May 2001, Mr. Fusco was a Senior Consultant with William M. Mercer,
Inc., a global consulting company. Prior to 1998, Mr. Fusco served in various compensation managetnent
positions with companies such as KPMG, an audit, tax and advisory firm, W.R. Grace & Co., a global specialty
chemicals and materials company, Towers Perrin, a professional services firm, and Interleaf, a provider of
software products used for business documents. Mr. Fusco holds a B.S. from the University of Connecticut and
an M.B.A. from Northeastern University. Mr. Fusco is a Certified Compensation Professional and Global
Remuneration Professional and has earned lifetime achievement as a Senior Professional in Human Resources
(SPHR) by the Society of Human Resource Management,

Andrew Linn has served as our Senior Vice President of Global Data Products since July 2005 and served as
our Senior Vice President of Product Management from 2000 to July 2005. Prior to 2000, Mr. Linn served in
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various capacities with One Source Information Services (and its predecessor, Lotus Development Corporation),
including Group Product Manager and Product Manager from November 1988 through January 2000, an
aggregator of business and company information. Mr. Linn holds a B.S. from the Wharton School at the
University of Pennsylvania and is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a Certified Compensation Professional.

Elliot J. Mark has served as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since October 2006.
From August 2003 until September 2006, Mr. Mark was Senior Vice President and General Counsel of Viisage
Technology, Inc., a NASDAQ-traded identity technology company. During the period from January 2001 to
March 2003, Mr. Mark was the General Counsel of eRoom Technology, Inc., an enterprise software company.
Prior to that, Mr. Mark held senior legal positions at SimPlayer Sports, Inc., a developer of interactive
applications for the sports market, Arthur D. Little, Inc., a global consulting firm, and Molten Metal Technology,
Inc., an environmental technology company. Mr. Mark started his career with Goodwin Procter LLP. Mr. Mark
holds a B.A. from Wesleyan University and a J.D. from The Georgetown University Law Center.

Mark Albrecht has served as our Vice President of Product Marketing for Talent Management Solutions
since March 2006 and from February 2004 to March 2006, he served as our Vice President of Professional
Services. From 2002 through 2004, Mr. Albrecht served as Managing Partner of Business Performance Partners,
a performance management consulting firm. During the period from 2000 through 2002, Mr. Albrecht was Vice
President of Professional Services at Commerce One, a supplier of on demand supply chain management
solutions. Mr. Albrecht holds a B.S. from Florida State University, an M.B.A. in Operations Management from
Boston University and an M.A. in Psychology from Montclair State College and is a Certified Compensation
Professional. :

Nicholas Camelio has served as our Vice President of Human Resources since June 2007. From January
2006 to March 2007, Mr. Camelio was the Vice President of Human Resources for BrassRing Inc., an enterprise
application talent management solution provider. From February 200! through January 2006, Mr. Camelio
served as Senior Director of Human Resources at BrassRing Inc., and prior to that was a Regional Human
Resources Director for Vignette Corporation, an enterprise software company. From 1992 through February,
2000, Mr. Camelio held a variety of positions at Lotus Development Corporation and International Business
Machines (IBM), including Human Resources Director for the North American Sales and Services organization.
Mr. Camelio holds a B.S. from Bentley College and is a member of the Society of Human Resource Management
and a certified MBTI professional trainer.

Joseph E. Duggan joined us in May 2007 as part of the ICR acquisition, and serves as the Vice President
and co-General Manager of our ICR division. Mr. Duggan was a founding partner of ICR in 1995, and served in
an executive role at that firm since its founding. Prior to that, Mr. Duggan held senior management positions with
Stride Rite Corporation, a publicly traded footwear company, and Data General Corporation, a computer systems
manufacturer. He has a B.S. from Suffolk University and an M.B.A. from Babson College.

Dana Freeman has ‘served as our Vice President of Product Management since March 2006. From 2003
through 2006, Mr. Freeman was Vice President of Product Management at Deploy Solutions, a human resources
management software company. From 1999 through 2003, Mr. Freeman was President and CEO of HRchitect, a
human capital management consulting company. Mr. Freeman holds a B.S. in Business Administration from the
University of Maine.

John McCammond has served as our Vice President of Business Development since May 2005. From 2001
to 2005, Mr. McCammond was Vice President of Channel Sales at Avaki, a provider of enterprise information
integration software systems. Mr. McCammond holds a B.A. from Williams College and an M.B.A. from the
Harvard Business School.

Thomas A. Samalis has served as our Vice President and Corporate Controller since August 2004. From
1994 to July 2004, Mr. Samalis was Vice President and Corporate Controller for OneSource Information
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Services, Inc., a publicly-held company and provider of business information. Prior to that, he was employed for
twenty-three years by Interactive Data Corporation, a provider of business and financial data, where he served as
Vice President and Corporate Controller for six years, and in various finance and accounting capacities, including
Director of Accounting and Accounting Manager throughout the preceding seventeen years. Mr. Samalis holds a
B.S. in Accounting from Suffolk University and an M.B.A. from Bentley College.

Roger C. Sturtevant, Jr. joined us in May 2007 as part of the ICR acquisition, and serves as the Vice
President and co-General Manager of our ICR division. Mr. Smrtevant was a founding partner of ICR in 1995.
Prior to that, he was the Manager of Compensation, HRIS and Staffing at Kendall Healthcare Products, a
healthcare producis company. Mr. Sturtevant holds a B.S. in Organizational Psychology and an M.S. in Human
Resources Management from Purdue University.

Dean Vassiliou has served as our Vice President of Professional Services since October 2006. From
November 2005 to October 2006, Mr. Vassiliou was the Vice President of Professional Services at 4DataLink
Inc., an enterprise application integration solution provider. From June 2004 to November 2005, he was the Vice
President of Product Management and Marketing at Valaran Corporation, an enterprise software company. Prior
to that, Mr. Vassiliou held a variety of positions at Lodestar Corporation, an enterprise software company, from
1998 to February 2004, including Senior Vice President of Products, Services and Support from November 2001
to February 2004. Mr. Vassiliou holds a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Hartford.

Facilities

Qur corporate headquarters, including our principal administrative, marketing, technical support and
research and development facilities, are located in Waltham, Massachusetts, where we lease approximately
62,000 square feet under an agreement that expires in 2009. Additionally, we lease approximately 7,500 square
feet of office space in Shanghai, China, which is the headguarters of SDC China Limited, our wholly foreign
owned enterprise. We primarily conduct research and development in the Shanghai office. This lease expires in
2008, but we have an option to extend it through 2010. We believe that our current facilities are suitable and
adequate to meet our current needs, and that suitable additional or substitute space will be available as needed to
accommodate expansion of our operations. See Note 7 to the notes to our consolidated financial statements and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Contractual
Obligations™ for information regarding our lease obligations.

Internet Address

The Company’s internet address is www.salary.com. The Company makes available, free of charge, on or
through its website, its Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to such reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as soon as reasonably practical after such reports are
electronically filed with the SEC. The Company’s website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains or incorporates a number of forward-looking statements within
the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Forward-looking statements relate to future events or our future financial performance. We generally
identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “ptans,”
“anticipates,” “could,” “intends,” “target,” “projects,” “contemplates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,”
“potential” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other similar words. These statements are only
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predictions. We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections
about future events and financial trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition and resuits of
operations. The outcome of the events described in these forward-looking statements is subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors described in “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this report. Accordingly, you should not rely upon
forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. We cannot assure you that the events and
circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur, and actual results could
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. We have identified below some
important factors that could cause our forward-looking statements to differ materially from actual resuits,
performance or financial condition:

»  our ability to become profitable;

« the ability of our solutions to achieve market acceptance;

*  ahighly competitive market for compensation management;

» failure of our customers to renew their subscriptions for our products;

*  our inability to adequately grow our operations and attain sufficient operating scale;

«  our inability to effectively protect our intellectual property and not infringe on the intellectual property
of others;

«  our inability to raise sufficient capital when necessary or at satisfactory valuations;
»  the loss of key personnel; and

»  other factors discussed elsewhere in this report.

The risks and uncertainties described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are not the only ones we face.
Additional risks and uncertainties, including those not presently known to us or that we currently deem
immaterial, may also impair our business. The forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form
10-K relate only to events as of the date of this report. Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to
update any forward-looking statements after the date of this report.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains market data related to our business and industry. This
market data includes projections that are based on a number of assumptions. If these assumptions turn out to be
incorrect, actual results may differ from the projections based on these assumptions. As a result, our markets may
not grow at the rates projected by these data, or at all. The failure of these markets to grow at these projected
rates may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and the
market price of our common stock ‘ —

We operate in an emerging and rapidly evolving market which makes it difficult to evaluate our business
and future prospects and may increase the risk of your investment.

We derive, and expect to continue to derive for the foreseeable future, the vast majority of our revenues
from on-demand compensation management solutions, which is a relatively new and emerging market, making
our business and future prospects difficult to evaluate. Many companies have invested substantial personnel and
financial resources in their human resource, or HR, departments or have engaged outside consulting firms or HR
Business Process Outsourcers, or HR BPOs, to obtain corporate compensation data and solutions, and may be
reluctant or unwilling to migrate to on-demand software designed to address their compensation management
needs. The market for on-demand software solutions is at an early stage of development, and it is uncertain
whether an on-demand model such as ours will achieve and sustain the high level of market acceptance that is
critical to the success of our business. Our success will depend to a substantial extent on the willingness of
companies to increase their use of on-demand software in general and on-demand compensation management
software in particular. If businesses do not perceive the benefits of on-demand software, then the market may not
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develop further, or it may develop more slowly than we expect, either of which would adversely affect our
business, financial condition-and results of operations. You must consider our business and future prospects in
light of the challenges, risks and difficulties we encounter in the new and rapidly evolving market for on-demand
compensation management. These challenges, risks and difficulties include the following:

*  generating sufficient revenue to achieve and maintain profitability;
»  developing new products and enhancing the functionality and features of existing applications;
*  attracting and retaining new customers and expanding the revenue generated from existing customers;

*  managing growth in our operations, including the expansion of our direct sales and marketing
operations; and

»  attracting and retaining key personnel.

We may not be able to successfully address any of these challenges, risks and difficulties, including the
other risks related to our business and industry described below. Failure 1o adequately do so could adversely
affect our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Our solutions are sold pursuant to subscription agreements, and if our existing customers elect either not
to renew these agreements or renew these agreements for fewer applications or at a lower price, our
business, financial condition and results of operations will be adversely affected.

Qur solutions are sold pursuant to annual or multi-year subscription agreements and our customers have no
obligation to renew these agreements. As a result, we are not able to consistently and accurately predict future
renewal rates. Our customers’ renewal rates may decline or fluctuate or our customers may renew for fewer
applications or at a lower price as a result of a number of factors, including their level of satisfaction with our
soluttons, budgetary concerns or the availability and pricing of competing products. Additionally, we may lose
customers due to the high turnover rate in their HR departments. If large numbers of existing customers do not
renew these agreements, or renew these agreements on terms less favorable to us, and if we cannot replace or
supplement those non-renewals with new subscription agreements generating the same or greater level of
revenue, our business, financial condition and results of operations will be adversely affected.

We have incurred operating losses in the past and expect to incur operating losses in the future,

‘We have incurred operating losses in the past and we expect to incur operating losses in the future. As of
March 31, 2007, our accumulated deficit is approximately $29.4 million. Our recent operating losses were
$8.3 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, $3.0 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, and
$1.9 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005. We have not been profitable since our inception, and we
may not become profitable. In addition, we expect our operating expenses to increase in the future as we expand
our operations. If our operating expenses exceed our expectations, our financial performance could be adversely
affected. If our revenue does not grow to offset these increased expenses, we may not become profitable. You
should not consider recent revenue growth as indicative of our future performance. In fact, in future periods, we
may not have any revenue growth, or our revenue could decline.

Our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate in the future. As a result, we may fail to meet or exceed
the expectations of investors or securities analysts which could cause our stock price to decline.

Our quarterly revenue and results of operations may fluctuate as a result of a variety of factors, many of
which are outside of our control. If our quarterly revenue or results of operations fall below the expectations of
investors or securities analysts, the price of our common stock could decline substantially. Fluctuations in our
results of operations may be due to a number of factors, including, but not limited to, those listed below and
identified throughout this “Risk Factors” section in this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

*  our ability to retain and increase sales to existing customers and attract new customers;
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*  changes in the volume and mix of products sold in a particular quarter;

+  seasonality of our business cycle, given that our cash flows from operating activities are typically lower
in our fiscal first and second quarters and higher in our fiscal third and fourth quarters;

«  our policy of expensing sales commissions in each year of our customer subscriptions;
+ the timing and success of new product introductions or upgrades by us or our competitors;
+  changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors;

»  competition, including entry into the market by new competitors and new product offerings by existing
competitors;

«  the amount and timing of expenditures related to expanding our operations, research and development,
or introducing new products;

»  changes in the payment terms for our products and services; and

» the purchasing and budgeting cycles of our customers.

Because our on-demand software is sold pursuant to annual or multi-year subscription agreements and generally
we recognize revenue from these subscriptions over the term of the agreement, downturns or upturns in sales
may not be immediately reflected in our operating results. Most of our expenses, such as salaries and third party
hosting co-location costs, are relatively fixed in the short-term, and our expense levels are based in part on our
expectations regarding future revenue levels. As a result, if revenue for a particular quarter is below our
expectations, we may not be able to proportionally reduce operating expenses for that quarter, causing a
disproportionate effect on our expected results of operations for that quarter.

Due to the foregoing factors, and the other risks discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, you should
not rely on quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our results of operations as an indication of our future performance.

Because we recognize revenue over the term of the applicable subscription agreement, the lack of
subscription renewals or new subscription agreements may not be immediately reflected in our operating
results.

We recognize revenue from our customers over the term of their subscription agreements with us. The
substantial majority of our quarterly revenue usually represents deferred revenue from subscriptions sold during
previous quarters. As a result, a decline in new or renewed subscription agreements in any one quarter will not
necessarily be fully reflected in the revenue for the corresponding quarter but will negatively affect our revenue
in future quarters. Additionally, the effect of significant downtums in sales and market acceptance of our
solutions may not be fully reflected in our results of operations until future periods. Our business model also
makes it difficult for us to reflect any rapid increase in our customer base and the resulting effect of this increase
in our revenue in any one period because revenue from new customers will be recognized over the applicable '
subscription agreement term.

If we fail to successfully migrate to our new accounting system, we may be unable to timely or accurately
prepare financial reports.

Historically, our accounting systems have been operated on a platform which may not be adequate to meet
our long-term needs as a public company or under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley. Asa
result, we are in the process of upgrading our accounting platform to our new accounting system which we
believe provides us with the ability to expand our accounting capabilities as our business grows while providing
the necessary accounting controls needed for compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley. Any delay in the implementation
of, or disruption in the transition to, our new and enhanced accounting platform could adversely affect our ability
to accurately report financial information, including the filing of our quarterly or annual reports with the SEC on
a timely and accurate basis. When we convert from prior systems and processes, data integrity problems or other
issues may be discovered that if not corrected could impact our business or financial results.
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If our efforts to attract new customers or to sell additional selutions to our existing customers are not
successful, our revenue growth will be adversely affected.

To grow our revenue, we must continually add new customers and sell additional solutions to existing
customers. If our existing and prospective customers do not perceive our solutions to be of sufficiently high value
and quality, we may not be able to attract new customers or to increase sales to existing customers. Our ability to
attract new customers and to sell new solutions to existing customers will depend in large part on the success of
our sales and marketing efforts. However, our existing and prospective customers may not be familiar with some
of our solutions or may have traditionally used other products and services for some of their compensation
management and talent management requirements. In addition, prospective customers may have invested
substantial personnel and financial resources in their HR departments or have engaged outside consulting firms
or HR BPOs to obtain corporate compensation data and solutions, and may be reluctant or unwilling to migrate to
our on-demand compensation management solutions to address their compensation management needs. Existing
customers and prospective customers may also decline to purchase our compensation management solutions due
to budgetary concerns or the availability and pricing of competing products. If we fail to generate additional
business from our existing customers and new customers, our revenue could grow at a slower rate or decrease,
which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we fail to successfully develop new applications, the growth of our business, our revenues and our results
of operations will be materially adversely affected.

We have developed new applications over time that have contributed to the growth of our business to date.
For example, we initially launched Job Analyzer in 2000 and have since added the Survey Center, Reporting &
Analysis, Salary Structures and CompAnalyst Executive modules to create our CompAnalyst suite. Products in
the on-demand compensation management market typically take years to develop widespread market acceptance.
We expect to rely on newly introduced applications for a substantial portion of our growth for the foreseeable
future. For example, in 2004, we introduced our TalentManager suite of enterprise pay-for-performance
applications. We anticipate that, as with any on-demand compensation management application, it may be an
extended period of time before TalentManager achieves market acceptance, If we are unable to continue to
develop and launch new applications or if our new applications are not able to achieve market acceptance, our
business, financial condition and results of operations will be materially adversely affected.

If the economy worsens or labor market conditions deteriorate materially, our business may be harmed.

To the extent that the economy or labor market conditions materially deteriorate, our existing and potential
clients may no longer consider investment in their compensation and talent management systems a necessity, or
may elect to defer purchases or reduce budgets in these areas. Either of these developments could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we do not continue to innovate and provide compensation management solutions that are useful to users,
we may not remain competitive, and our revenues and operating results could suffer.

Our success depends on providing compensation management selutions that HR decision makers may use to
make compensation decisions and individuals may use to assess their worth in the job market. Qur competitors
are constantly developing innovations in compensation management solutions. Additionally, the market for our
on-demand software is characterized by changes in customer requirements, changes in protocols and evolving
industry standards. As a result, we must continue to invest significant resources in research and development in
order to improve and enhance the responsiveness, functionality and features of our existing applications and
develop new applications so that we may offer a complete suite of solutions that are easy to use and effective. In
particular, we will need to expand our offering to more comprehensively address our customers’ compensation
management needs. If our innovations are not responsive to the needs of our users, they may become dissatisfied
and move to competitors’ products and services, which would significantly impair our revenue growth, operating
results and reputation. In addition, if we are unable to predict user preferences or industry changes, or if we are
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unable to medify our offerings on a timely basis, we may lose customers. Our operating results would also suffer
if our innovations are not appropriately timed with market opportunities or are not effectively brought to market.

Failure to effectively develop and expand our sales and marketing capabilities could harm our ability to
increase our customer base and achieve broader market acceptance of our solutions.

Increasing our customer base and achieving broader market acceptance of our solutions will depend to a
significant extent on our ability to expand our direct sales and marketing operations. We plan to continue to
expand our direct sales force in our Waltham, Massachusetts office. Competition for our direct sales personnel is
intense. Because the majority of our direct sales personnel will be located in our Massachusetts office, we will
select candidates primarily from the Massachusetts labor market. We may have difficulty hiring qualified
candidates, particularly individuals with both compensation management and sales experience, or may incur
additional costs related to training new employees without a compensation or sales background. We have from
time to time in the past experienced, and we expect to continue to experience in the future, difficulty in hiring
and retaining highly skilled direct sales personnel with appropriate qualifications.

Our sales force currently consists primarily of direct sales personnel who sell our products over the
telephone. As we expand our offerings and our customer base, it may be necessary for our sales personnel to
increase the frequency of in-person meetings with our customers in order to sell our products, which will increase
the costs incurred in the sales process, will require us to hire additional sales personnel and may extend the length
of our typical sales cycle,

Our expansion will require us to invest significant financial and other resources in the sales and marketing
functions. New sales personnel are often not profitable during their first year with us. Our business will be
seriously harmed if the expansion of the direct sales force does not generate a corresponding significant increase
in revenue. We may not achieve anticipated revenue growth from expanding our direct sales force if we are
unable to hire and develop talented direct sales personnel, if our new direct sales personnel are unable to achieve
desired productivity levels in a reasonable period of time or if we are unable to retain our existing direct sales
personnel.

If we fail to develop or maintain our brand cost-effectively, our business may suffer.

We believe that developing and maintaining awareness of our brand in a cost-effective manner is critical to
achieving widespread acceptance of our existing and future applications and is an important element in attracting
new customers and increasing business with existing customers. Successful promotion of our brand will depend
largely on the effectiveness of our marketing efforts and on our ability to provide reliable and useful solutions.
Brand promotion activities may not yield increased revenue, and even if they do, any increased revenue may not
offset the expenses we incur in building our brand. To date, we have developed our brand at a low cost primarily
by partnering with large Internet companies who drive traffic to our web site. Our strategy of partnering with
large Internet companies may not continue to build awareness of our brand at the rate we expect. If we are unable
to rely on the low cost distribution strategy of partnering with these Internet companies, we would incur costs to
replace this distribution which would adversely affect our results of operations. If we fail to successfully promote
and maintain our brand, or incur substantial expenses in an unsuccessful attempt to promote and maintain our
brand, we may fail to attract new customers or retain our existing customers to the extent necessary to realize a
sufficient return on our brand-building efforts, and our business could suffer.

We are dependent on our executive officers, and the loss of any of them may prevent us from
implementing our business plan in a timely manner if at all.

Our success depends largely upon the continued services of our executive officers and other key personnel,
particularly Kent Plunkett, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Yong Zhang, our Executive
Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Technology Officer. We are also substantially dependent on
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the continued service of our existing development personnel because of the complexity of our products and
technologies, as well as on our existing personnel with both compensation management and technical experience
because of the difficulty we have had hiring individuals who have experience in both of these ficlds. Although
we currently maintain a key man life insurance policy on Kent Plunkett, this insurance would not adequately
compensate us for the loss of his services. The loss of one or more of our key employees could seriously harm
our business.

We may not be able to attract and retain the highly skifled employees we need to support our planned
growth.

To execute our business strategy, we must attract and retain highly qualified personnel. Competition for
these personnel is intense, especially for senior direct sales personnel with compensation management experience
and engineers with high levels of experience in designing and developing on-demand software. We have from
time to time in the past experienced, and we expect to continue to experience in the future, difficulty in hiring
and retaining highly skilled employees with appropriate qualifications. Many of the companies with which we
compete for experienced personnel have greater resources than we do, In addition, in making employment
decisions, particulatly in the Internet and high-technology industries, job candidates often consider the value of
the stock options or restricted stock they are to receive in connection with their employment. Significant
volatility in the price of our stock may, therefore, adversely affect our ability to attract or retain key employees. If
we fail to attract new personnel or fail to retain and motivate our current personnel, our business and future
growth prospects could be severely harmed.

Our growth could strain our personnel and infrastructure resources, and if we are unable to implement
appropriate controls and procedures to manage our growth, we may not be able to successfully implement
our business plan,

Rapid growth in our headcount and operations may place a significant strain on our management,
administrative, operational and financial infrastructure. Between March 31, 2004 and March 31, 2007, the
number of cur full time equivalent employees increased from 68 to 255. We anticipate that additional growth will
be required in order to increase our customer base and handle an increase in the volume of our business.

Our success will depend in part upon the ability of our senior management to manage growth effectively. To
do so, we must continue to hire, train and manage new employees as needed. To date, we have not experienced
any significant problems as a result of the rapid growth in our headcount, other than occasional office space
constraints. However, our anticipated future growth may place greater strains on our resources. For instance, if
our new hires perform poorly, or if we are unsuccessful in hiring, training, managing and integrating these new
employees as needed, or if we are not successful in retaining our existing employees, we may not be able to
handle any increase in the volume of our business and our business may be harmed. As we continue to grow, we
may outgrow our current space in Waltham, Massachusetts and Shanghai, China or desire to open additional
offices domestically and internationally, which will require us to expend additional financial resources and make
it more difficult to manage employees not located at our principal headquarters and maintain uniform standards,
controls, procedures and policies across locations. If we determine that it is necessary or desirable to open
additional offices, whether domestically or internationally, management resources will be allocated to integrating
new offices, handling cultural and language issues arising from international operations and managing costs
associated with a multi-otfice organization. Such focus could divert management’s attention from managing
ongoing business operations.

To manage the expected growth of our operations and personnel, we will need to continue to improve our
operational, financial and management controls and our reporting systems and procedures. The additional
headcount and capital investments we expect to add will increase our cost base, which will make it more difficult
for us to offset any future revenue shortfalls by offsetting expense reductions in the short term. If we fail to
successfully manage our growth, we will be unable to execute our business plan.
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Our data is obtained from a variety of sources, some of which may not be available to us in the future.

Our proprietary compensation data sets are comprised of extensive data. We obtain our data from a variety
of sources, including major consulting firms and our partners, the SEC and other U.S. government agencies and
other third party providers, and through our own research efforts. We generally obtain data on a non-exclusive
basis and in a summary form. While we do not generally have an ability to resell such data in its entirety, we use
such data internally in generating our proprietary data sets. We cannot assure you that the data we require for our
proprietary data sets will be available from these sources in the future or that the cost of such data will not
increase. From time to time in the past, third parties, including Mercer Human Resource Consulting, or Mercer,
have sent us letters asserting that our use of data may have violated our agreement with them or infringed upon
their copyright, and on February 1, 2007, Mercer filed a Complaint against us in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of New York. The Complaint alleges copyright infringement, unfair competition, false
representation, fraud, breach of contract and tortious interference with business relations. Specifically, the
Complaint asserts that our use of Mercer surveys infringes upon Mercer’s copyrights, that we have breached, and
have induced our customers to breach, license agreements with Mercer, that we have attempted to deceive
Mercer in conrection with our acquisition of Mercer surveys, and that we have misrepresented our rights to use
Mercer’s surveys to our current and potential customers. The Complaint seeks injunctive relief and monetary
damages. Although we believe that our purchase and use of all third party surveys (including Mercer’s) complies
with copyright law and any applicable license agreements, we cannot assure you that we will prevail in this claim
or other claims asserted against us and any litigation, regardless of its validity, may involve significant costs and
could divert our management’s time and attention from developing our business.

If Mercer or another third party successfully asserts a claim that we have violated their copyrights or our
license agreements with them, we may be required to remove the applicable data from our data sets and
regenerate our data sets without such data. Additionally, we may no longer be able to obtain data from the
provider or other providers on reasonable terms, if at all. Any inability to obtain data may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Further, as we expand our customer base to include customers outside of the United States, we may not be
able to obtain sufficient international data on reasonable terms to support our data sets. We plan to obtain data
which we believe is sufficient to build proprietary data sets in order to support the development of an
international business. We expect to incur substantial expense to build proprietary data sets for international
markets. We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully obtain sufficient data to develop proprietary
data sets for international markets.

We may expand through acquisitions of, investments in or through business relationships with other
organizations, all of which may divert our management’s attention, result in additional dilution to our
stockholders, consume resources that are necessary to sustain our business and may not result in the
realization of the goals underlying the acquisition, investment or business relationship.

One of our business strategies is to selectively pursue the acquisition of companies that would either expand
the functionality of our compensation management and talent management solutions or provide access 1o new
customers or markets, or both. In May 2007, we acquired [CR Limited, L.C. and ICR International Ltd. (ICR), a
premier provider of specialty consumer goods and global technology compensation data and software. In April
2006, we acquired the assets of the eComp division of Aon Consulting, Inc. See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.” We also may
enter into business relationships with other organizations in order to expand our offerings, which could involve
preferred or exclusive licenses, additional channels of distribution or discount pricing or investments in other
organizations. An acquisition, investment or business relationship may result in unforeseen operating difficulties
and expenditures. In particular, we may encounter difficulties assimilating or integrating the acquired
organizations, technologies, products, personnel or operations of the acquired organizations, particularly if the
key personne! of the acquired company choose not to work for us, and we may have difficulty retaining the
customers of any acquired business due to changes in management and ownership. Acquisitions may also disrupt
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our ongoing business, divert our resources and require significant management attention that would otherwise be
available for ongoing development of our business. We also may experience lower rates of renewal from
customers obtained through acquisitions than we do from existing customers. Additionally, to the extent we
expand into new facilities, we may have difficulty maintaining uniform standards, controls, procedures and
policies across locations. Moreover, we cannot assure you that the anticipated benefits of any acquisition,
investment or business relationship would be realized or that we would not be exposed to unknown liabilities. In
connection with one or more of these transactions, we may:

*  issue additional equity securities that would dilute our existing stockholders’ ownership;
*  use cash that we may need in the future to operate our business;

*  incur debt on terms unfavorable to us or that we are unable to repay;

*  incur large charges or substantial liabilities;

»  encounter difficulties retaining key employees of an acquired company or integrating diverse business
cultures; and

*  become subject to adverse tax and accounting consequences.

Although we periodically engage in preliminary discussions with respect to acquisitions, we are not
currently a party to any agreement or commitment, and we have no understandings with respect to any
acquisition.

We face competition from a variety of sources, and our failure to compete successfully could make it
difficult for us to add new customers and retain existing customers and could reduce or impede the growth
of our business.

The market for on-demand compensation management and talent management solutions is fragmented,
competitive and rapidly evolving, and there are low barriers to entry to some segments of this market. We expect
the intensity of competition to increase in the future as existing competitors develop their capabilities and as new
companies enter our market. Additionally, as we expand our suite of compensation management and talent
management solutions and create new types of applications, we may face additional competition. Increased
competition could result in pricing pressure, reduced sales, lower margins or the failure of our solutions to
achieve or maintain broad market acceptance. If we are unable to compete effectively, it will be difficult for us to
maintain our pricing rates and add and retain customers, and our business, financial condition and results of
operations will be seriously harmed. We face competition primarily from:

*  generic desktop software and in-house or custom-developed solutions;

»  established software vendors offering products specifically designed for compensation management or
talent management;

»  established compensation and HR consulting firms;
*  other websites and advertising venues; and

*  existing and future start-up companies offering software, data and interactive compensation solutions.

Many of our current and potential competitors have longer operating histories, a larger presence in the
general corporate compensation and talent management market, access to larger customer bases and substantially
greater financial, technical, sales and marketing, management, service, support and other resources than we have,
As a result, our competitors may be able to respond more quickly than we can to new or changing opportunities,
technologies, standards or customer requirements or devote greater resources to the promotion and sale of their
products and services than we can. To the extent our competitors have an existing relationship with a potentiai
customer, that customer may be unwilling to switch vendors due to existing commitments with such competitors.
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We also expect that new competitors, including companies currently operating in the HR market, enterprise
software vendors and online service providers that have traditionally focused on enterprise resource planning or
back office applications will enter the on-demand compensation management market with competing products as
this market develops and matures. Many of these potentiat competitors have established or may establish
business, financial or strategic relationships among themselves or with existing or potential customers, alliance
partners or other third parties or may combine and consolidate to become more formidable competitors with
better resources. It is possible that these new competitors could rapidly acquire significant market share.

Mergers or other strategic transactions involving our competitors could weaken our competitive position
or reduce our revenue.

We believe that our industry is highly fragmented and that there is likely to be consolidation, which could
lead to increased price competition and other forms of competition. Increased competition may cause pricing
pressure and loss of market share, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Our competitors may establish or strengthen cooperative relationships with
HR BPO vendors, systems integrators, third party consulting firms or other parties. Established companies may
not only develop their own products but may also merge with or acquire our current competitors. In addition, we
may face competition in the future from large established companies, as well as from emerging companies that
have not previously entered the markets for compensation management and talent management solutions or that
currently do not have products that directly compete with our solutions. It is also possible that new competitors
or alliances among competitors may emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share. In addition, our
competitors may announce new products, services or enhancements that better meet the price or performance
needs of clients or changing industry standards.

If there are interruptions or delays in our on-demand services due to third-party error, our own error or
the occurrence of unforeseeable events, delivery of our solutions and the use of our service could become
impaired, which could harm our relationships with customers and subject us to liability.

All of our solutions reside on hardware that we own or lease and operate and which is currently located in a
third party operations facility maintained and operated by AT&T in Watertown, Massachusetts, We do not
maintain long-term supply contracts with AT&T, and AT&T does not guarantee that our customers’ access to our
solutions will be uninterrupted, error-free or secure, Qur operations depend on AT&T's ability to protect their
and our systems in their facilities against damage or interruption from natural disasters, power or
telecommunications failures, computer viruses or other attempts to harm our systems, criminal acts and similar
events. In the event that our operations facility arrangement with AT&T is terminated, or there is a lapse of
service or damage to such facility, we could experience interruptions in our service as well as delays and
additional expense in arranging new facilities and services.

Our disaster recovery computer hardware and systems located at our headquarters in Waltham,
Massachusetts have not been tested under actual disaster conditions and may not have sufficient capacity to
recover all data and services in the event of an outage occurring at our operations facility. In the event of a
disaster in which our operations facility was irreparably damaged or destroyed, we could experience lengthy
interruptions in our service. Moreover, our disaster recovery computer hardware and systems are located within
five miles of our operations facility and may be equally or more affected by any disaster affecting our operations
facility. Any or all of these events could cause our customers to lose access to our on-demand software.

Our on-demand compensation management and talent management solutions are accessed by a large
number of customers at the same time. As we continue 10 expand the number of our customers and applications
available to our existing clients, we may not be able to scale our technology to accommodate the increased
capacity requirements, which may result in interruptions or delays in services. In addition, the failure by the
AT&T facility to meet our capacity requirements could result in interruptions or delays in our service or impede
our ability to scale our operations.
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We design the system infrastructure and procure and own or lease the computer hardware used for our
on-demand services. Design and mechanical errors, spikes in usage volume and failure to follow system
protocols and procedures could cause our systems to fail, resulting in interruptions in our service. While we have
not experienced extended system failures in the past, any interruptions or delays in our service, whether as a
result of third-party error, our own error, natural disasters or security breaches, whether accidental or willful,
could harm our relationships with customers and our reputation. Also, in the event of damage or interruption, our
insurance policies may not adequately compensate us for any losses that we may incur. These factors in turn
could damage our brand and reputation, divert our employees’ attention, reduce our revenue, subject us to
liability, cause us to issue credits or cause customers to fail to renew their subscriptions, any of which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Material defects or errors in our on-demand software could affect our reputation, result in significant
costs to us and impair our ability to sell our solutions, which would harm our business.

The software applications forming part of our solutions may contain material defects or errors, which could
materially and adversely affect our reputation, result in significant costs to us and impair our ability to sell our
solutions in the future. After the release of our products, defects or errors may also be identified from time to
time by our internal team and by our clients. The costs incurred in correcting any material product defects or
errors may be substantial and would adversely affect our operating results, Such defects or errors may occur in
the future.

Because our customers use our solutions for important aspects of their business, any errors or defects in, or
other performance problems with, our solutions could hurt our reputation and may damage our customers’
businesses. If that occurs, we could lose future sales or our existing customers could elect not to renew their
agreements with us. Software performance problems could result in loss of market share, failure to achieve, or a
delay in achieving, market acceptance of our solutions and the diversion of development resources. If one or
more of our solutions fail to perform or contain a technical defect, a customer may assert a claim against us for
substantial damages, whether or not we are responsible for our solutions’ failure or defect. We do not currently
maintain any warranty reserves.

Product liability claims could require us to spend significant time and money in litigation or arbitration/
dispute resolution or to pay significant settlements or damages. Although we maintain general liability insurance,
including coverage for errors and omissions, this coverage may be inadequate, or may not be available in the
future on reasonable terms, or at all. Defending a lawsuit, regardless of its merit, could be costly and divert
management’s attention and could cause our business to suffer.

We may be liable to our customers and may lose customers if we provide poor service, if our solutions do
not comply with our agreements or if there is a loss of data.

The information used in our proprietary data sets may not be complete or may contain inaccuracies that our
customers regard as significant. Qur ability to collect and report data may be interrupted by a number of factors,
including the termination of agreements with third-party data providers, our inability to access the Internet, the
failure of our network or software systems or failure by our operations facility to meet our capacity requirements.
In addition, computer viruses and intentional or unintentional acts of our employees may harm our systems,
causing us to lose data we maintain and supply to our customers or data that our customers input and maintain on
our systems, and the transmission of computer viruses could expose us to litigation. Qur subscription agreements
generally give our customers the right to terminate their agreements for cause if we materially breach our
obligations. Any failures in the services that we supply or the loss of any of our customers’ data that we cannot
rectify in a reasonable time period may give our customers the right to terminate their agreements with us and
could subject us to liability. As a result, we may also be required to spend substantial amounts to defend lawsuits
and pay any resulting damage awards. In addition to potential liability, if we supply inaccurate data or experience
interruptions in our ability to supply data, our reputation could be harmed and we could lose customers,
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Although we maintain general liability insurance, including coverage for errors and omissions, this coverage
may be inadequate, or may not be available in the future on reasonable terms, or at all. In addition, we cannot
assure you that this policy will cover any claim against us for loss of data or other indirect or consequential
damages and defending a lawsuit, regardless of its merit, could be costly and divert management’s attention.

Reductions in information technology spending could limit our ability to grow our business.

Our operating results may vary based on changes in the information technology, or IT, spending of our
clients. The revenue growth and profitability of our business depend on the overall demand for enterprise
application software and services. We sell our solutions primarily to large organizations whose businesses
fluctuate with general economic and business conditions. As a result, decreased demand for enterpnise
application software and services, and in particular on-demand compensation management solutions, caused by a
weakening global economy or otherwise may cause a decline in our revenue, Historically, economic downturns
have resulted in overall reductions in corporate IT spending. In particular, compensation management software
may be viewed by some of our existing and potential clients as a lower priority and may be among the first
expenditures reduced as a result of unfavorable economic conditions. In the future, potential clients may decide
to reduce their IT budgets by deferring or reconsidering product purchases, which would negatively affect our
operating results.

Because our products collect and analyze applicants’ and employees’ stored personal information,
concerns that our products do not adequately protect the privacy of applicants and employees could result
in liability to us and inhibit sales of our products.

Some of the features of our compensation management and talent management applications depend on the
ability to develop and maintain profiles of applicants and employees for use by our clients. Qur software
applications augment these profiles over time by capturing additional data and collecting usage data. Although
our applications are designed to protect user privacy, privacy concerns nevertheless may cause individuals and
businesses to resist providing the personal data necessary to support our products. Any inability to adequately
address privacy concerns, even if unfounded, or comply with applicable privacy laws and regulations, could
result in liability to us, damage our reputation, inhibit sales of our products and seriously harm our business,
financial condition and operating results.

As we extend our operations outside of the United States, we may become subject to various data protection
regulations such as those adopted by the European Union related to the confidentiality of personal data.

If our security measures are breached and unauthorized access is obtained to client data, clients may
curtail or stop their use of our solutions, which would harm our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Qur solutions involve the storage and transmission of confidential information of clients and their existing
and potential employees, and security breaches could expose us to a risk of loss of, or unauthorized access to, this
information, resulting in possible litigation and possible liability. Although we have never sustained such a
breach, if our security measures were ever breached as a result of third-party action, employee error, malfeasance
or otherwise, and, as a result, an unauthorized party obtained access to this confidential data, our reputation could
be damaged, our business could suffer and we could incur significant liability. Techniques used to obtain
unauthorized access or to sabotage systems change frequently and generally are not discovered until launched
against a target. As a result, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate
preventative measures. If an actual or perceived breach of our security occurs, the market perception of our
security measures could be harmed and we could lose sales and clients.
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We may increase our sales and marketing efforts to clients outside the United States and open offices
outside the United States, which would expose us to additional risks associated with international
operations.

As a part of our future business strategy, we intend to increase our operations outside the United States,
including our international sales efforts. In December 2006, we established a wholly foreign owned enterprise in
Shanghai, China primarily for software development. In connection with the ICR acquisition, we now have a
senior business development representative in Europe. While we have no additional specific plans or
commitments with respect to any further international expansion, we may open additional offices outside of the
United States in the future. We may not be successful in our efforts to establish our Chinese operations or to
expand our sales into international markets and open additional international offices. International operations and
sales subject us to risks and challenges that we would otherwise not face if we conducted our business only in the
United States including:

*  legal and regulatory restrictions;

*  challenges caused by distance, language and cultural differences and in doing business with foreign
agencies and governments;

»  difficulties obtaining additional data sources that cover international job markets at a reasonable cost;

»  difficulties obtaining the data necessary to support international customers on reasonable terms, if at
all;

»  difficulties developing algorithms that can be used to generate and analyze data on international job
markets;

*  difficulties in developing products and services in different languages and for different cultures;
»  difficulties in managing and staffing international operations;

+  challenges in protecting data and intellectual property;

*  longer payment cycles in some countries;

¢ credit risk and higher levels of payment fraud;

*  currency exchange rate fluctuations;

+  political and economic instability and export restrictions;

»  potentially adverse tax consequences, including the complexities of foreign value added tax systems
and restrictions on the repatriation of earnings; and

*  higher costs associated with doing business internationally.

Our limited experience with conducting business internationally increases our risk of operating
internationally and requires management to focus additional attention and resources on our international
operations. These risks could harm our international expansion efforts or other aspects of our business, which
would in turn harm our business, financial condition and resuits of operations.

Evolving regulation of the Internet may increase our expenditures related to compliance efforts, which
may adversely affect our financial condition.

As Internet commerce continues to evolve, increasing regulation by federal, state or foreign agencies
becomes more likely, We are particularly sensitive to these risks because the Internet is a critical component of
our on-demand business model. For example, we believe that increased regulation is likely in the area of data
privacy, and laws and regulations applying to the solicitation, collection, processing or use of personal or
consumer information could affect our clients’ ability to use and share data, potentially reducing demand for
solutions accessed via the Internet and restricting our ability to store, process and share data with our clients via
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the Internet. In addition, taxation of services provided over the Internet or other charges imposed by government
agencies or by private organizations for accessing the Internet may also be imposed. Any regulation imposing
greater fees for Internet use or restricting information exchange over the Internet could result in a decline in the
use of the Internet and the viability of Internet-based services, which could harm our business.

The success of our business depends on the continued growth and acceptance of the Internet as a business
and communications tool, and the related expansion of the Internet infrastructure.

The future success of our business depends upon the continued and widespread adoption of the Intemet as a
primary medium for commerce, communication and business applications. Our business growth would be
impeded if the performance or perception of the Internet was harmed by security problems such as “viruses,”
“worms” and other malicious programs, reliability issues arising from outages and damage to Internet
infrastructure, delays in development or adoption of new standards and protocols to handle increased demands of
Internet activity, increased costs, decreased accessibility and quality of service or increased government taxation
of Internet activity.

The Internet has experienced, and is expected to continue to experience, significant user and traffic growth,
which has, at times, caused user frustration with stow access and download times. If Internet activity grows faster
than Internet infrastructure or if the Internet infrastructure is otherwise unable to support the demands placed on
it, or if hosting capacity becomes scarce, our business growth may be adversely affected.

If we are unable to protect our proprietary technology and other intellectual pfoperty rights, it will reduce
our ability to compete for business and we may lose valuable assets, experience reduced revenue and incur
costly litigation to protect our rights.

Qur intellectual property rights are important to our business, and our success is dependent, in part, on
protecting our proprietary technology and our brand, marks and domain names. In particular, the processes we
use when working with the data we obtain, including the use of algorithms and other analytical tools, are critical
to the accuracy of our data sets and the success of our business. We rely on a combination of patent, copyright,
trademark and trade secret laws, as well as licensing agreements, third-party nondisclosure agreements and other
contractual provisions and technical measures, to protect our intellectual property rights. These protections may
not be adequate to prevent our competitors from copying our solutions or otherwise infringing on our intellectual
property rights. Existing copyright laws afford only limited protection for our intellectuat property rights and
may not protect such rights in the event competitors independently develop solutions similar or superior to ours.
In addition, the laws of some countries in which our solutions are or may be licensed may not protect our
solutions and intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States.

To protect our proprietary methods, we have one U.S. issued patent and corresponding foreign equivalents,
and currently have three U.S. patent applications pending and corresponding foreign equivalents. We cannot
assure you that the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (or its foreign equivalents) will grant these patents, or that
the patents granted will give us the protection that we seek.

To protect our trade secrets and other proprietary information, we require employees, consultants, advisors
and collaborators to enter into non-disclosure agreements. These agreements may not provide meaningful
protection for our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized use,
misappropriation or disclosure of such trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information.

We will not be able to protect our intellectual property if we do not detect unauthorized use of our
intellectual property. i we discover that a third party is infringing upon our intellectual property rights, we may
need to undertake costly and time-consuming litigation to enforce our intellectual property rights. We cannot be
sure we will prevail in any litigation filed to protect our inteltectual property, and even if we are successful in
protecting our intellectual property rights, we may incur significant legal costs and management’s attention may
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be diverted from the ongoing development of our business, which could adversely affect our business. If we are
unable to protect our intellectual property, cur competitors could use our intellectual property to market products
similar to ours, which could decrease demand for our solutions.

If a third party asserts that we are infringing its intellectual property, whether successful or not, it could
subject us to costly and time-consuming litigation or expensive licenses, and our business may be harmed.

The software and Internet industries are characterized by the existence of a large number of patents,
trademarks and copyrights and by frequent litigation based on allegations of infringement or other violations of
intellectual property rights. Third parties may assert patent and other intellectual property infringement claims
against us in the form of lawsuits, letters, or other forms of communication. If a third party successfully asserts a
claim that we are infringing their proprietary rights, royalty or licensing agreements might not be available on
terms we find acceptable or at all. As currently pending patent applications are not publicly avaitable, we cannot
anticipate all such claims or know with certainty whether our technology infringes the intellectual property rights
of third parties.

In February 2007, Mercer filed a complaint against us alleging copyright infringement, unfair competition,
false representation, fraud, breach of contract and tortious interference with business relations. See “Legal
Proceedings” for more information. Any litigation, with or without merit, could be time consuming and
expensive to litigate or settle and could divert management’s attention from our business. Any license agreement
we enter into with the patent holder could have unfavorable terms, including royalty payments, which could
adversely affect our business.

In order to obtain certain of the necessary data that serves as the backbone of our compensation management
solutions, we enter into agreements with major consulting firms and other third-party providers. We generally
receive data in a summary form. We do not generally have an ability to resell such data in its entirety, but we can
use such data internally to generate our proprietary data sets. If a third party successfully asserts a claim that our
use of its data has violated our agreement with such provider or infringed upon their copyright, we may be
required to remove the applicable data from our data sets and regenerate our data sets without such data.
Additionally, we may no longer be able to obtain data from the provider or other providers on reasonable terms,
if at all.

We expect that the number of infringement and breach of contract claims in our market will increase as the
number of solutions and competitors in our industry grows, These claims, whether or not successful, could:

*  require significant management time and attention;

*  result in costly and time-consuming litigation, and the payment of substantial damages;

*  require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements, which may not be available on terms
acceptable to us, if at all;

*  require us to remove data from our compensation management data sets and regenerate our data sets
without such data;

*  require us to expend additional development resources to redesign our solutions to avoid infringement
or discontinue the sale of our solutions;

*+  create negative publicity that adversely affects our reputation and brand and the demand for our
solutions; or

*  require us to indemnify our clients.
As a result, any third-party intellectual property infringement claims or breach of contract claims against us

could increase our expenses and adversely affect our business. In addition, many of our customer agreements
require us to indemnify our customers for third-party intellectual property infringement claims, which would
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increase the cost to us resulting from an adverse ruling in any such claim. Even if we have not infringed any third
parties’ intellectual property rights, we cannot be sure our legal defenses will be successful, and even if we are
successful in defending against such claims, our legal defense could require significant financial resources and
management’s time, which could adversely affect our business.

We might require additional capital to support business growth, and this capital might not be available.

We intend to continue to make investments to support our business growth and may require additional funds
to respond to business challenges, including the need to develop new software or enhance our existing solutions,
enhance our operating infrastructure and acquire complementary businesses and technologies. Accordingly, we
may need to complete additional equity or debt financings to secure additional funds. We cannot assure you that
further equity or debt financing will be available on acceptable terms. If we raise additional funds through further
issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution, and
any new equity securities we issue could have rights, preferences and privileges superior to those of holders of
our common stock. '

Our reported financial results may be adversely affected by changes in accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

Generally accepted accounting principtes in the United States are subject to interpretation by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Securities
and Exchange Commission, or SEC, and various bodies formed to promulgate and interpret appropriate
accounting principles. A change in these principles or interpretations could have a significant effect on our
reported financial results, and could affect the reporting of transactions completed before the announcement of a
change.

Our ability to use net operating loss carryforwards in the United States may be limited.

As of March 31, 2007, we had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $16.4 million for federal
tax purposes. These loss carryforwards expire at various dates through 2027. To the extent available, we intend to
use these net operating loss carryforwards to reduce the U.S. corporate income tax liability associated with our
operations. Section 382 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 generally imposes an annual limitation on the
amount of net operating loss carryforwards that may be used to offset taxable income when a corporation has
undergone significant changes in stock ownership. Cur ability to utilize net operating loss carryforwards may be
limited by the issuance of common stock in our initial public offering. To the extent our use of net operating loss
carryforwards is significantly limited, our income could be subject to U.S. corporate income tax earlier than it
would if we were able to use net operating loss carryforwards, which could result in lower profits.

Being a public company will increase our administrative costs.

As a public company, we have incurred and will continue to incur significant legal, accounting and other
expenses that we did not incur as a private company. Sarbanes-Oxley, as well as new rules subsequently
implemented by the SEC and the Nasdaq Global Market, have required changes in corporate governance
practices of public companies. These new rules and regulations have increased our legal and financial
compliance costs, and have made some activities more time consuming and/or costly. For example, we are
migrating our core financial systems to our new accounting system and adopting additional internal controls and
disclosure controls and procedures. We have also retained a transfer agent and a financial printer and adopted
corporate governance policies. In addition, as a public company we have all of the internal and external costs of
preparing and distributing periodic public reports in compliance with our obligations under the securities laws.
These new rules and regulations could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members
of our board of directors, particularly to serve on our audit cornmittee, and qualified executive officers.

Beginning with our annual report for the year ending March 31, 2008, Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley
requires us to include an internal control report with our annual report on Form 10-K. That report must include
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management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of the
fiscal year. Additionally, beginning with our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ending March 31, 2009,
our independent registered public accounting firm will be required to issue a report on its evaluation of the
operating effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. The significant deficiencies and any other
deficiencies in internal control that we currently have identified and that we may identify in the future will need
to be addressed as part of the evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting and may impair our
ability to comply with Section 404. If we are not able to successfully implement internal control over financial
reporting, we may not be able to accurately and timely report on our financial position, results of operations or
cash flows, which could adversely affect our business and investor confidence in us.

See Item 9A, “Controls and Procedures,” for a description of the significant deficiencies in our internal
control over financial reporting identified by our independent registered public accounting firm and the status of
our remediation efforts.

An active trading market for our commeon stock may not be available on a consistent basis to provide
stockholders with adequate liquidity. Our stock price may be extremely volatile, and our stockholders
could lose a significant part of their investment.

Prior to February 15, 2007, there was no public market for our common stock. An active trading market for
shares of our common stock may not be sustained on a consistent basis. The public trading price for our common
stock will be affected by a number of factors, including:

*  quarterly variations in our operating results;

»  seasonality of our business cycle;

. interest rate changes;

*  changes in the market’s expectations about our operating results;

*  our operating results failing to meet the expectation of securities analysts or investors in a particular
period or failure of securities analysts to publish reports about us or our business;

*  changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts concerning our company or
the on-demand software industry in general;

*  operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors deem comparabile to us;
*  news reports relating to trends in our markets;

«  announcements by us or our competitors of acquisitions, new offerings or improvements, significant
contracts, commercial relationships or capital commitments;

*  our ability to market new and enhanced offerings on a timely basis;
*  changes in laws and regulations affecting our business;

*  commencement of, or involvement in, litigation;

*  the volume of shares of our common stock available for public sale;
*  any major change in our board or management;

*  sales of substantial amounts of common stock by our directors, executive officers or significant
stockholders or the perception that such sales could occur;

*  general economic and political conditions such as recessions and acts of war or terrorism; and

. the other factors described elsewhere in these “Risk Factors.”

As a result of these factors, our stockholders may not be able to resell their shares at, or above, their purchase
price,
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In addition, prior to our public offering, we received very limited analyst coverage. The trading market for
our common stock will rely in part on the research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us
or our business. We do not control these analysts. There are many large, well-established publicly-traded
companies active in our industry and market, which may mean it will be less likely that we receive widespread
analyst coverage. Furthermore, if one or more of the analysts who do cover us downgrade our stock, our stock
price would likely decline rapidly. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of us, we could lose visibility
in the market, which in turn could cause our stock price to decline and may also impair our ability to expand our
business with existing customers and attract new customers.

The concentration of our capital stock ownership with insiders will likely limit your ability to influence
corporate matters. ’

Our employees, current 5% or greater stockholders and affiliated entities together beneficially own
approximately 40% of our common stock. As a result, these stockholders, acting together, will have control over
most matters that require approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors and approval of
significant corporate transactions. Corporate action might be taken even if other stockholders oppose them. This
concentration of ownership might also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of our
company that other stockholders may view as beneficial. In addition, Kent Plunkett, our Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer, beneficially owns approximately 24% of our common stock. Mr. Plunkett’s significant
ownership interest could adversely affect investors’ perception of our corporate governance or delay, prevent or
cause a change in control of our company, any of which could adversely affect the market price of our common
stock.

Future sales, or the availability for sale, of our common stock may cause our stock price to decline.

A total of approximately 6.9 million shares of common stock may be sold in the public market by existing
stockholders on or about August 16, 2007, subject to applicable volume and other limitations imposed under
federal securities law. Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market on or after such
date, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect the market price of our common stock
and could materially impair our future ability to raise capital through offerings of our common stock.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws or Delaware law might
discourage, delay or prevent a change of control of our company or changes in our management and,
therefore, depress the trading price of our stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that could depress the
trading price of our common stock by acting to discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company
or changes in our management that the stockholders of our company may deem advantageous. These provisions
include:

«  our board of directors is divided into three classes serving staggered three-year terms;
+  only our board of directors may call special meetings of our stockholders;
+  our stockholders may take action only at a meeting of our stockholders and not by written consent;

+  we have authorized undesignated “blank check” preferred stock, the terms of which may be established
and shares of which may be issued without stockholder approval;

»  stockholder approval of amendments of our certificate of incorporation requires a vote of a majority of
our outstanding shares and, in some cases, a vote of 75% of our outstanding shares;

+  stockholder approval of amendments of our by-laws requires a vote of a majority of our outstanding
shares or, if the amendment is not recommended by our beard of directors, a vote of 75% of our
outstanding shares;
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*  vacancies on the board of directors may be filled only by the directors;

*  stockholders may remove our directors only for cause and with the affirmative vote of the holders of
75% of the votes that all stockholders would be entitled to cast in the election of directors; and

*  we require advance notice for stockholder proposals.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may discourage, delay or prevent a change in
control of our company.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future,

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any
future earnings and do not expect to pay any dividend in the foreseeable future. As a result, you may only receive
a return on your investment in cur comumon stock if the market price of our common stock increases.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Information regarding our principal properties at March 31, 2007 is set forth below:

Location Principal Use Sq. Footage Ownership
Waltham, MA .. ....... Corporate Headquarters 62,000 Leased
Shanghai, China ....... Research and development 7,500 Leased
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On February 1, 2007, Mercer filed a Complaint against us in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York. The Complaint aileges copyright infringement, unfair competition, false
representation, fraud, breach of contract and tortious interference with business relations. Specifically, the
Complaint asserts that our use of Mercer surveys infringes upon Mercer’s copyrights, that we have breached, and
induced our customers to breach, license agreements with Mercer, that we have attempted to deceive Mercer in
connection with our acquisition of Mercer surveys, and that we have misrepresented our rights to use Mercer’s
surveys to our current and potential customers. The Complaint seeks injunctive relief and monetary damages. We
believe that our purchase and use of all third party surveys (including Mercer’s) complies with copyright law and
any applicable license agreements and we intend to vigorously defend the claims by Mercer. We have filed
several counterclaims against Mercer in the New York action, including claims for tortious interference with
business relations, breach of contract and misrepresentation. Although Mercer has made similar assertions to us
in the past, we have not received any correspondence from Mercer since 2004 on these issues and we have not
purchased any Mercer data since that time. This previously acquired data comprises a very small portion of the
data we use to generate our proprietary data sets. Our proprietary data sets are not reliant on any one data source
and we could remove the data we have historically purchased from Mercer from our data sets and regenerate
them without materially affecting the quality of our data sets. In a separate action, we filed a Complaint against
Mercer in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts on May 15, 2007. That Complaint
alleges copyright infringement, unfair competition, breach of contract and antitrust violations by Mercer based on
the unlawful spidering of our proprietary database and the repeated unauthorized use of our proprietary data sets
by Mercer employees.

On December 29, 2006, we commenced a declaratory judgment action in the Superior Court of Suffolk
County, Massachusetts against one of our former independent consultants. The former consultant was under
contract to us and assisted us in completing a strategic partnership in 2000. The contract expired by its terms in
November 2000. Pursuant to that contract, the former consultant was entitled to a success fee consisting of a right
to purchase 33,600 shares of our common stock at a price of thirty-six cents per share, which at the time
represented approximately three percent of our capital stock. In November 2006, after we commenced our initial
public offering, the former consultant informed us that he was in possession of a version of a contract that
allegedly gave him the right to purchase three percent of our equity as of an unspecified date at a price of
thirty-six cents per share. The basis for this claim appears to be certain hand-written changes to the expired
contract that we did not make or authorize, and had never seen until the former consultant sent us a copy of a
contract containing these changes in November 2006. In the court action, we are seeking to have the court
declare that the consultant is not entitled to anything other than the 33,600 options described in the expired
contract. In addition, we are seeking damages due to the former consultant’s attempt to defraud us and our
stockholders by making these hand-written changes subsequent to the contract’s execution and without our
knowledge or consent. We also are seeking damages for tortious interference with business relations as well as
for unfair and deceptive business acts and practices. To the extent we are required to issue additional shares of
our common stock or options to purchase common stock as a result of this action, we would recognize an
expense equal to the difference between the fair value of the common stock on the date of issuance and the price
paid for such stock or the exercise price of any such options, as the case may be. If such stock were issued or
such options were to be exercised, this could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and could
be dilutive to existing stockholders.

We are not currently, nor have been in the past, subject to any other material legal proceedings. From time
to time, however, we may be named as a defendant in legal actions arising from our normal business activities.
These claims, even those that lack merit, could result in the expenditure of significant financial and managerial
resources.




ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

On January 17, 2007, our stockholders approved by written consent:

an amended and restated certificate of incorporation that was filed prior to the pricing of our initial
public offering to implement provisions appropriate for a public company, including creating three
classes of directors that are elected for staggered three-year terms;

an amended and restated certificate of incorporation that was filed after the closing of the our initial
public offering to eliminate all references to the Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4 and
Series B preferred stock and establish our authorized capitalization at 100,000,000 shares of common
stock, $0.0001 par value per share, and 5,000,000 shates of undesignated preferred stock, $0.0001 par
value per share;

the adoption of the 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan under which the maximum number of shares
of common stock that may be issued is the sum total of 3,000,000 shares plus all stock option awards or
grants returned to the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan and the 2004 Stock Option and Incentive
Plan as a result of expiration or cancellation or termination of such stock option awards; and

the adoption of the 2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan under which an aggregate amount of 500,000
shares of common stock may be issued.
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED COMMON
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Price of Commeon Stock

Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “SLRY™ since
February 15, 2007. Prior to that time, there was no established public trading market for our common stock. The
following table presents the high and low sale prices of our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq Global
Market, for the period indicated.

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 High Low
Fourth quarter (from February 15,2007) ............ooviiiiiiiioannns $14.00 $10.50

The last sale price of the common stock on June 21, 2007, as reported by Nasdaq Global Market, was
$11.50 per share. As of June 21, 2007, there were 300 holders of record of the common stock.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and currently expect to retain
future earnings for use in our business for the foreseeable future.
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Performance Graph

The following line graph compares cumulative total stockholder returns for the period from February 15,
2007, the date of our initial public offering, through March 31, 2007 for (1) our common stock; (2) the Nasdaq
Composite Index; and (3) the Nasdaq Computers Index. The graph assumes an investment of $100 on
February 15, 2007, which was the first day on which our stock was listed on the Nasdag Global Market. The
calculations of cumulative stockholder return on the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Nasdaq Computers Index
include reinvestment of dividends, but the calculation of cumulative stockholder return on our common stock
does not include reinvestment of dividends because we did not pay dividends during the measurement period.
The performance shown is not necessarily indicative of future performance.

Comparison of & Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumas Initial Investment of $100
March 2007

102.00

100.00 -'K
98.00 \
e N\

AN

88.00 ——
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82.00 .

Feb 15,2007 Mar 31, 2007
[—o— Salary.com —a— NASDAC Composite - Indax —h-- NASDAGQ Computers Indeﬂ
2152007 331407

Salary.com, INC. .. ... . e $100 $89.04
Nasdag Composite . .. ...t e e 100 96.98
Nasdagq Computers Index . ...ttt 100 97.21
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 31, 2007 with respect to compensation plans
under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance:

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for
to be issued upon Weighted-average future issuance under
exercise of exercise price of equity compensation
outstanding options, outstanding options, plans (excluding
warrants and riphts  warrants and rights  securities reflected in
(a) L] column (a)) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders (1): ..o, 2,088,971 $5.9125 5,488,840(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders: ............. ... ... None None None
Total ... o e e 2,088,971 $5.9125 5,488,840

(1) Please see Note 9 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for description of our equity
compensation plans.

(2) Includes 500,000 shares that remain available for purchase under the Salary.com Employee Stock Purchase
Plan and 1,991,585 shares for stock options that have been exercised but have not vested as of March 31, 2007.

Unregistered Sales of Securities

In connection with our initial public offering, all outstanding shares of our convertible preferred stock were
converted into an aggregate of 1,758,599 shares of common stock.

During the fiscal year 2007, the Company issued stock options for the purchase of an aggregate of
1,559,145 shares to employees under the 2004 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. All such stock options had
exercise prices ranging from of $6.607 to $11.133 per share, which was the fair market value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of issuance.

In November 2006, we issued a warrant to purchase 44,800 shares of our common stock at an exercise price
of $6.61 per share to Lyric Ventures, L.P., an entity that is affiliated with Terry Temescu, one of our directors.

In December 2006, we issued 30,270 and 7,567 shares of common stock to Kent Plunkett, our Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, and Yong Zhang, our Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer
and Chief Technology Officer, respectively, as payment of bonuses earned in respect of fiscal 2006. The number
of shares issued to Mr. Plunkett and Mr. Zhang was based on a per share value of our common stock of $6.61.

No underwriters were involved in these transactions, and there were no underwriting discounts or
commissions. The issuance of securities described above were deemed to be exempt from registration under the
Securities Act of 1933 in reliance on Section 4(2) or Rule 701 of the Securities Act of 1933. The recipients of
securities in each such transaction represented their intention to acquire the securities for investment only and not
with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof and appropriate legends were affixed to the
share certificates and other instruments issued in such transactions. The sales of these securities were made
without general solicitation or advertising.

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On February 21, 2007, we issued and sold 4,898,443 shares of our common stock that we registered under a
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-138646), which was declared effective by the SEC on
February 14, 2007, in an initial public offering at an offering price of $10.50 per share, less underwriting
discounts and commissions. On February 27, 2007, the underwriters exercised the option to purchase an
additional 349,757 shares of common stock from us at the offering price of $10.50 per share less underwriting
discounts and commissions. The offering of the common stock (including the exercise by the underwriters of
their over-allotment option) resulted in gross proceeds of $55.1 million and net proceeds of approximately $48.0

44




million to us after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately $3.9 million and related
offering costs of an estimated $3.2 million. The foregoing proceeds do not include proceeds to selling
stockholders from their sale of an aggregate of 1,306,800 shares of our common stock. The book-running
manager for the offering was Thomas Weisel Partners LLC, the co-lead manager was William Blair & Company,
L.L.C. and Needham & Company, LLC, Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC and Pacific Crest Securities Inc. acted
as representatives of the underwriters. No payments were made to directors, officers or persons owning ten
percent or more of our common stock or to their associates, or to our affiliates, other than proceeds from the
offering to those selling stockholders who are officers of the company in respect of their shares sold in the
offering, and payments in the ordinary course of business to officers for salaries and to non-employee directors as
compensation for board or board committee service.

As of Jure 21, 2007, $38.2 million of the net proceeds remained available and were primarily invested in
money market accounts or marketable securities. Pending any use, as described below, we have invested the net
proceeds in investment-grade, short-term, interest-bearing securities.

There has been no material change in the planned use of proceeds from our initial public offering as
described in our final prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b).

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Pursuaat to the terms of our 2000 Stock Option Plan and our 2004 Stock Option Plan (collectively referred
to as our “Stock Plans”), options may typically be exercised prior to vesting, We have the right to repurchase
unvested shares from employees upon their termination, and it is generally our policy to do so. The following
table provides information with respect to purchases made by us of shares of our common stock during the three
month period ended March 31, 2007:

Maximum Number (or
Approximate Dollar
Total Number of Shares  Value) of Shares that
Average Price  Purchased as Partof  May Yet Be Purchased

Total Number of Shares Paid per Publicly Announced Undler the Pians or
Period Purchased (1) Share Plans or Programs Programs
Janvary 1 =31 ............. 15,650 $0.223 — —
February 1 -28 ............ 12,162 $0.223 —_ —
March1-31.............. 25,328 $0.223 —_ —
Total ................ 53,140 $0.223 — —

(1) All shares were originally purchased from us by employees pursuant to exercises of unvested stock options.
During the months listed above, we routinely repurchased the shares from our employees upon their
termination of employment pursuant to our right to repurchase unvested shares at the original exercise price
under the terms of our Stock Plans and the related stock option agreements.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes the financial data for our business and is derived from the Company’s
historical consolidated financial statements. You should read the selected financial data in conjunction with our
historical consolidated financial statements and related notes and the section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

The selected statement of operations data for the three years ended March 31, 2007, and balance sheet data
as of March 31, 2007 and 2006 have been derived from our audited financial statements appearing in this annuat
report on From 10-K. The selected statement of operations data for the year ended March 31, 2004, and balance
sheet data as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 have been derived from our audited financial statements not appearing
in this annual report on Form 10-K. The selected statement of operations data for the year ended March 31, 2003
and balance sheet data as of March 31, 2003 have been derived from our unaudited financial statements for the
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fiscal year ended March 31, 2003. These unandited financial statements include, in the opinion of management,
all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) that management considers necessary for the fair
presentation of the financial information set forth in these statements. The selected financial data set forth below
should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” set forth below and our financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in any
future period.

Years ended March 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(unaudited)
Statement of Operations:
Revenue:
Subscription Fevenues .............oovvnveene-- $20,503 $13,037 $ 8,565 $5,150 $2,699
Advertising revenues ........... oo 2,531 2,262 1,411 1,250 7835
Total TEVENUES .« vv v vi i e et i ia s 23,034 15,299 9,976 6,400 3,484
Costofrevenues (1) . ....covvrrnn it 5,334 3,108 1,831 901 690
Gross Profit . .....vviree i e 17,700 12,191 8,145 5,499 2,794
Operating expenses:
Research and development (1) . .................. 4,116 2,238 1,410 846 671
Sales and marketing (1) ......... .. ... s 12,792 8,573 5,855 3,477 2,438
General and administrative (1} .................. 3922 4,337 2,798 2,002 1,959
Amortization of intangible assets ................ 126 — — — —
Total operating eXpenses ................. e 25956 15,148 10,063 6,325 5,068
Loss from operations ...........coouiueceeeiinnnnnns (8,256) (2,957) (1,918) (826y (2,274)
Other inCOME (EXPENSE) - ..o vvvvvvrr e annaannnnnsss 174 {173) (372) (368) 64
NetlOSE . oottt ettt tis et e (8,082) (3,130 (2,290) (1,194) (2,210)
Accretion of preferred stock ... .o o (471) (515) (513) 473) (514)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders ........... $(8,553) $(3,645) $(2,803) $(1,667) $(2,724)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders per share—
basicand diluted ....... ... ... i $ (142) $ (0.89) $ (0.81) § (0.68) § (3.47)
(1) Net loss includes stock-based compensation expense, as follows:
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(unaudited)
Stock-based compensation:
COSLOFTBVENUES © v v vv e emecaaraarnnennns $ 437 § 186 3 41 $ —- £ —
Research and development . .. ............. .0 505 180 57 — —
Salesand marketing . ..........ooviriiiiann. 986 401 162 — —
General and administrative ...................- 2,437 3t 252 1 —_
$4365 $ 10718 $ 512 % 1 $ —
As of March 31,
{in thousands}
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(unaundited)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash ............. S U $49,016 $ 1814 $ 392 $ 1423 § 156
TOtAl ASSELS + v v v v vve e e e iaa e 58,675 7,028 3428 3,401 1,177
Total debt . ..o v i — 800 1,100 2,654 2,264
Total deferredrevenue . ........coovrevvnennnn 16,388 10,548 6,384 3,863 1,682
Redeemable convertible preferred stock . ......... — 10,538 9.973 9,185 8,104
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) .............. 37,983 (17,914)  (15,240) (13,0700  (11,961)
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes that appear elsewhere in this report. In
addition to historical consolidated financial information, the following discussion contains forward-looking
statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from those
discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include
those discussed below and elsewhere in this report, particularly in “Risk Factors” in Item IA.

Overview

Salary.com is a leading provider of on-demand compensation management selutions. Qur comprehensive
on-demand software applications are integrated with our proprietary data sets to automate the essential elements
of our customers’ compensation management processes. As a result, our solutions can significantly improve the
effectiveness of our customers’ compensation spending. We enable employers of all sizes to replace or
supplement inefficient and expensive traditional approaches to compensation management, including the use of
paper-based surveys, consultants, internally developed software applications and spreadsheets.

Our on-demand solutions, which incorporate market compensation intelligence from our proprictary data
sets, enable companies to determine how much to pay new and existing employees and to manage overall
compensation programs. Cur data sets contain base, bonus and incentive pay data for positions held by more than
74% of U.S. employees and similar data for the top executives in over 10,000 U.S. public companies. Our
flagship offering is CompAnalyst, a suite of compensation management applications that integrates our data,
third party survey data and a customer’s own pay data in a complete analytics offering. We have also introduced
TalentManager, an employee life-cycle performance management application that links employee pay to
performance. We offer these solutions principally on an annual or multi-year subscription basis. In addition to
our on-demand enterprise software offerings, we also provide a series of applications through our website, which
allows us to deliver salary management comparison and analysis tools to individuals and small businesses on a
cost-effective, real-time basis.

We were organized as a Delaware corporation in 1999. As of March 31, 2007, our enterprise subscriber base
has grown to more than 1,850 companies who spend from $2,000 to more than $100,000 annually. We have
achieved 24 consecutive quarters of revenue growth since April 2001. During the years ended March 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, we achieved positive operating cash flows of $3.1 million, $1.8 million and $0.9 million,
respectively. During these periods, we have counsistently incurred operating losses, including $8.3 million for
2007, $3.0 million for 2006 and $1.9 million for 2005. As of March 31, 2007, we had an accumulated deficit of
$29.4 million.

Acquisition of Business

On May 15, 2007, the Company acquired the membership interests of ICR Limited, L.C. and the
outstanding share capital of ICR International Ltd., (collectively, referred to as ICR), a leading provider of
industry-specific market intelligence for employee pay and benefits for the global technology and specialty
consumer goods markets. Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreements, we paid $10.3 million to the owners
of ICR, of which $1 million has been placed in escrow for 12 months. The escrow fund will be available to
compensate us for any losses we may incur as a result of any breach of the representations or warranties of the
owners of ICR contained in the purchase agreements, and certain liabilities arising out of the ownership or
operation of ICR prior to the acquisition.

On April 3, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets of the eComp Data Services Division (“eComp™)

from Aon Consulting, Inc., a global human capital consulting firm located in New York City. eComp Data
Services is a leading provider of executive compensation data. The assets acquired included the eComp database
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and certain software and proprietary assets, including all intellectual property rights. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement, the Company paid $585,000 with $292,500 due at the closing date of April 3, 2006, and the
remaining balance due no later than September 30, 2006. Included in the acquisition was $75,000 which was paid
by the Company to a former principal of eComp for a noncompete agreement. Accordingly, the purchase price
was allocated based upon the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company allocated
$266,000 of the purchase price to goodwill based upon the estimated fair value of the assets acquired in the
acquisition. The results of operations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 include the impact of this
acquisition since April 3, 2006.

The Company has allocated the purchase price based upon the estimated fair value of the net assets
acquired, as follows:

Amount
Non-compete (amortization period S years) ............coovioiiiiian. $ 365,000
Customer relationships (amortization period S years) ..................... 120,000
Hosting and servicing (amortization period 2 months) .................... 29,000
Assumed Habilities .. ..ottt e e e (120,000)
LT 1o 21 | I AU 266,000
Total purchase PriCe ... ..........veeenumonreiiaanrnnenaareeennnns $ 660,000

Sources of Revenues

We derive our revenues primarily from subscription fees and, to a lesser extent, through advertising on our
website. For the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, subscription revenues accounted for 89%, 85% and
86%, respectively, of our total revenues and for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, advertising
revenues accounted for 11%, 15% and 14%, respectively, of our total revenues. For the years ended March 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, our subscription revenues derived from our TalentManager products comprised less than
15% of our total revenues, with the remainder of our subscription revenues being derived from our compensation
management and data products.

Subscription revenues are comprised primarily of subscription fees from enterprise and small business
customers who pay a bundled fee for our on-demand software applications and data products and implementation
services related to our subscription products, as well as syndication fees from our website partners and premium
membership subscriptions sold primarily to individuals. Subscription revenues are primarily recognized ratably
over the contract period as they are earned. Our subscription agreements for our enterprise subscription customer
base are typically one to five years in length, and as of March 31, 2007, approximately 39% of our contracts were
more than one year in length. We generally invoice our customers annually in advance of their subscription (for
both new products and renewals), with payment due upon receipt of invoice. Deferred revenue consists primarily
of billings or payments received in advance of revenue recognition from our subscription agreements and is
recognized over time as the revenue recognition criteria are met. Changes in deferred revenue generally indicate
the trend for subscription revenues over the following year as the current portion of deferred revenue is expected
to be recognized as revenue within 12 months. To a lesser extent, subscription revenues also include fees for
professional services which are not bundled with our subscription products and revenue from the sale of our
Compensation Market Study and Salary.com Survey products, which are not sold on a subscription basis.

Advertising revenues are comprised of revenues that we generate through agreements to display third party
advertising on our website for a fixed period of time or fixed number of impressions. Advertising revenues are
recognized as the advertising is displayed on the website.

Cost of Revenues and Operating Expenses

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues consists primarily of costs for data acquisition and data development,
fees paid to our network provider for the hosting and managing of our servers, related bandwidth costs,
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compensation costs for the support and implementation of our products and amortization of capitalized software
costs. As we continue to implement and support our new and existing products and expand our data sets, we
expect that over the next few years cost of revenues will continue to increase as a percentage of revenue and on
an absolute dollar basis. Over the longer term, we expect our cost of revenues to decrease as a percentage of
revenue as our business grows and our new data products gain market acceptance.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses consist primarily of compensation for
our software and data application development personnel. We have historically focused our research and
development efforts on improving and enhancing our existing on-demand software and data offerings as well as
developing new features, functionality and products. We expect that in the future, research and development
expenses will increase on an absolute dollar basis as we upgrade and extend our service offerings and develop
new technologies.

Sales and Marketing.  Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of compensation for our sales and
marketing personnel, including sales commissions, as well as the costs of cur marketing programs. We capitalize
our sales commissions at the time a subscription agreement is executed by a customer and we recognize the
initial year sales commission expense ratably over one year. In the case of multi-year agreements, upon biiling
the customer for each additional year, we incur a subsequent sales commission and recognize the expense for
such commission over the applicable year. Typically, a majority of the sales commission is recognized in the
initial year of the subscription term. In order to add new customers and increase sales to our existing customers,
we plan to continue to invest heavily in our sales efforts by increasing the number of direct sales personnel. We
also plan to expand our marketing activities in order to extend brand awareness and generate additional leads for
our sales staff. As a result, we expect that our sales and marketing expenses will increase on an absolute dollar
basis as we grow our business.

General and Administrative.  General and administrative expenses consist of compensation expenses for
executive, finance, accounting, administrative and management information systems personnet, professional fees
and other corporate expenses.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses and related
disclosures. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions. Our actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe that of our significant accounting policies, which are described in the notes to our financial
statements, the following accounting policies involve a greater degree of judgment, complexity and effect on
materiality. A critical accounting policy is one that is both material to the presentation of our financial statements
and requires us to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments for uncertain matters that could have a
material effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Accordingly, these are the policies we believe
are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our financial condition and results of operations.

Revenue Recognition. In accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition
in Financial Statemenis,” as amended by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition,” we
recognize revenues from subscription agreements for our on-demand software and related services when there is
persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the service has been provided to the customer, the collection of the fee is
probable and the amount of the fees to be paid by the customer is fixed or determinable. Amounts that have been
invoiced are recorded in accounts receivable and deferred revenue. Our subscription agreements generally
contain multiple service etements and deliverables. These elements include access to our software and often
specify initial services including implementation and training. Except under limited circumstances, our
subscription agreements do not provide customers the right to take possession of the software at any time.
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In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables, or EITF 00-21, issued by the Emerging Issues Task Force of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, or FASB, in May 2003, we define all elements in our multiple element subscription agreements as a
single unit of accounting, and accordingly, recognize all associated revenue over the subscription period, which
is typically one to five years in length. In the event professional services relating to implementation are required,
we generally do not recognize revenue until such implementation is complete. In applying the guidance in EITF
00-21, we determined that we do not have objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the subscription to
our on-demand software after delivery of specified initial services. We therefore account for our subscription
arrangements and our related service fees as a single unit.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes,” or SFAS 109, which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized using
enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of recorded assets and
liabilities. SFAS 109 also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely
than not that some portion of all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The realization of the deferred tax
assets is evaluated quarterly by assessing the valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of the allowance,
if necessary. As of March 31, 2007, the Company has a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets.

Software Capitalization Costs. 'We capitalize certain internal software development costs under the
provisions of Statement of Position No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use (“SOP 98-1""). SOP 98-1 requires computer software costs associated with internal use
software to be charged to operations as incurred until certain capitalization criteria are met. Costs incurred during
the preliminary project stage and the post-implementation stages are expensed as incurred. Certain qualifying
costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized as property, equipment and software.
These costs generally consist of internal labor during configuration, coding, and testing activities. Capitalization
begins when the preliminary project stage is complete, management with the relevant authority authorizes and
commits to the funding of the software project, and it is probable that the project will be completed and the
software will be used to perform the function intended. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of the software, generally three years.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. 'We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from our customers’ inability to pay us. The provision is based on our historical experience and for
specific customers that, in our opinion, are likely to default on our receivables from them. In order to identify
these customers, we perform ongoing reviews of all customers that have breached their payment terms, as well as
those that have filed for bankruptcy or for whom information has become available indicating a significant risk
of non-recoverability. In addition, we have experienced significant growth in the number of our customers, and
we have less payment history to rely upon with these customers. We rely on historical trends of bad debt as a
percentage of total revenue and apply these percentages to the accounts receivable associated with new customers
and evaluate these customers over time. To the extent that our future collections differ from our assumptions
based on historical experience, the amount of our bad debt and allowance recorded may be different.

Stock-Based Compensation. Effective April 1, 2005, we adopted FASB Statement No. 123-revised,
“Share-Based Payment” or SFAS 123R, which revises SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” or SFAS 123 and supersedes Accounting Principles Board or APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees” or APB 25. SFAS 123R requires that all stock-based compensation be
recognized as an expense in the financial statements over the vesting period and that such expense be measured
at the fair value of the award.

We adopted SFAS 123R using the prospective method of application, which requires us to recognize
compensation expense on a prospective basis; therefore, prior period financial statements have not been restated.
Compensation expense recognized includes the expense of stock options granted on and subsequent to April 1,
2005. Stock options granted by us prior to that time are specifically excluded from SFAS 123R and will continue
to be accounted for in accordance with APB 25. These options were valued using the minimum value method.
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Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the fair value of stock-based payment awards
require the use of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the stock-based payment awards
and stock price volatility. In the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, we used the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model to value our option grants and determine the related compensation expense. The
assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based payment awards represent management’s best
estirnates, but the estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a
result, if factors change and we use different assumptions, our stock-based compensation expense could be
materially different in the future. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we had adopted SFAS 123, but in
accordance with SFAS 123, we had elected not to apply fair value-based accounting for awards under our
employee stock incentive plan through March 31, 2005. Instead, we measured compensation expense for our
stock plans using the intrinsic value method prescribed by APB 25 and related interpretations and provided pro
forma disclosures as permitted under SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition
and Disclosure an amendment of SFAS 123",

In fiscal years 2007 and 2006, we have employed the following key assumptions to determine fair values of
option grants pursuant to the Black-Scholes option pricing model:

March 31,
2007 2006
Expecteddividend yield ......... ... ... o i 0% 0%
Risk-freeinterestrate . ... ...ttt 4454.80% 3.72-4.82%
Expected optionterm (inyears) ........... ... iiiiiiiiinenan, 5 5
Volatility ... ... i 62-65% 60-75%

‘We estimate our expected volatility based on that of our publicly traded peer companies and expect to
continue to do so until such time as we have adequate historical data from our traded share price. Management
believes that the historical volatility of the Company’s stock price does not best represent the expected volatility
of the stock price. Until February 2007, we were a private company and therefore lack sufficient company-
specific historical and implied volatility information. We intend to continue to consistently use the same group of
publicly-traded peer companies to determine volatility in the future until such time that sufficient information
regarding the volatility of our share price becomes available or that the selected companies are no longer suitable
for this purpose.

The risk-free interest rate used for each grant is equal to the U.S. Treasury yield curve in cffect at the time
of grant for instruments with a similar expected life.

The expected term of the options granted was determined based upon review of the period that our share-
based awards are expected to be outstanding and is estimated based on historical experience of similar awards,
giving consideration to the contractual term of the awards, vesting schedules, employee tumover and
expectations of employee exercise behavior.

The stock price volatility and expected terms utilized in the calculation of fair values involve management’s
best estimates at that time, both of which impact the fair value of the option calculated under the Black-Scholes
methodology and, ultimately, the expense that will be recognized over the vesting period of the option.

SFAS 123R also requires that we recognize compensation expense for only the portion of options that are
expected to vest. Therefore, we have estimated expected forfeitures of stock options with the adoption of

SFAS 123R. In developing a forfeiture rate estimate, we have considered our historical experience, our growing
employee base and the historical limited liquidity of our common stock. If the actual number of forfeitures differs
from those estimated by management, additional adjustments to compensation expense may be required in future
periods.

Prior to our initial public offering in February 2007, we historically granted stock options at exercise prices
equivalent to the fair value of our common stock as estimated by our board of directors, with input from
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management, as of the date of grant. Because there was no public market for our common stock, our board of
directors determined the fair value of our common stock by considering a number of objective and subjective
factors, including our operating and financial performance and corporate milestones, the prices at which we sold
shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock, the superior rights and preferences of securities senior to our
common stock at the time of each grant and the risk and non-liquid nature of our common stock. In years prior to
fiscal 2006, we had not historically obtained contemporaneous valuations by an unrelated valuation specialist
because, at the time of the issuances of stock options, we believed our estimates of the fair value of our common
stock to be reasonable based on the foregoing factors.

In anticipation of our public offering and solely for the purposes of accounting for stock-based
compensation for financial statement purposes, during 2006 we reassessed the valuation of our commeon stock at
various selected dates from April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2006. The difference between the original estimated
fair value and the reassessed valuation of the underlying common stock related to the grants made during those
timeframes has been booked as additional compensation expense in our financial statements. Reassessed values
are inherently uncertain and highly subjective. We made retrospective adjustments to our financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2005 related to these valuations. Prior to April 1, 2004, no expense was recorded as we
determined that the estimated fair value of our stock at the date of grant did not exceed the exercise price.

Additionally, for fiscal 2005, prior to adoption of SFAS 123R, we have revised the Black-Scholes fair value
of the stock option grants to reflect the reassessed fair value of our common stock, which is included in the pro
forma compensation expense per our financial statement footnote. Upon adoption of SFAS 123R during fiscal
2006, the Black-Scholes calculations reflect the reassessed fair value of our commeon stock and the fair value of
these grants will be recognized as compensation expense on a straight line basis over the vesting period of the
options. The compensation expense on unvested options at March 31, 2007 that will be recognized in future
periods net of forfeitures is as follows:

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
123R Stock-based compensation charge ... .. $2,157,000 $2,102,000 $2,004,000 $1,593,000 $546,000

We account for stock compensation arrangements with non-employees in accordance with Emerging Issues
Task Force No. 96-18, or EITF No, 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are 1ssued to Other Than
Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services,” using a fair value approach. For
stock options granted to non-employees, the fair value of the stock options is estimated using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. Stock-based compensation expense is recognized over the period of expected service by the
non-employee. As the service is performed, we are required to update these assumptions and periodically revalue
unvested options and make adjustments to the stock-based compensation expense using the new valuation. These
adjustments may result in additional or lesser stock-based compensation expense than originally estimated or
recorded, with a corresponding increase or decrease in compensation expense in the statement of operations.

Significant Factors, Assumptions, and Methodologies Used in Determining Fair Value. Determining the
fair value of our stock prior to the Company’s initial public offering in February 2007 required making complex
and subjective judgments. Prior to our initial public offering in February 2007, our approach to the valuation of
our company was based on a weighted average of the guideline public company method and the discounted
future cash flow method. '

We estimated our enterprise value under the guideline public company method by comparing cur company
to publicly-traded companies in our industry group. The companies used for comparison under the guideline
public company method were selected based on a number of factors, including but not limited to, the similarity of
their industry, business model, and financial risk to those of ours. We used those companies that we believed
were closely comparable to ours, based on the above factors. In determining our enterprise value under this
method, we utilized a risk adjusted enterprise value multiple to sales ratio, which ranged from 1.9 to 3.5 during
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the period from September 30, 2004 through November 6, 2006, based on the median of the guideline companies
and applied the ratio to the sales of our company.

We also estimated our enterprise value under the discounted future cash flow method, which involves
applying appropriate discount rates to estimated cash flows that are based on forecasts of revenue and costs. Our
revenue forecasts are based on expected market growth rates ranging from 25% to 58% over the next five years
as well as assumptions about our future costs during the next five years. There is inherent uncertainty in making
these estimates. These assumptions underlying the estimates are consistent with the plans and estimates that we
use to manage the business. The risks associated with achieving our forecasts were assessed in selecting the
appropriate discount rates, which ranged from 22.31% to 33.33% during the period from September 30, 2004
through November 6, 2006. If different discount rates had been used, the valuations would have been different.

In order to allocate the enterprise value determined under the guideline public company method and the
discounted future cash flow method to our common stock, we used the probability-weighted expected return
method. Under the probability-weighted expected return method, the fair market value of the commeon stock is
estimated based upen an analysis of future values for our company assuming various future outcomes. The
anticipated timing of these future outcomes is based on the plans of our board and management. Stock value is
based on the probability-weighted present value of expected future investment returns, considering each of the
possible cutcomes available to us as well as the rights of each class of stock.

The fair market value of our common stock was estimated using a probability-weighted analysis of the
present value of the returns afforded to our stockholders under each of four possible future scenarios. Three of
the scenarios assume a stockholder exit, through our initial public offering, sale or dissolution. The fourth
scenarto assumes operations continue as a private company and no exit transaction occurs.

For each of the first three scenarios, estimated future and present values for our common stock were
calculated using assumptions including: the expected pre-money valuation (pre-offering or pre-sale); the
expected dates of the future expected initial public offering or sale; and an appropriate risk-adjusted discount
rate. An estimated present value for our common stock was calculated for the fourth scenario (private company
with no exit scenario) using a weighted average of the discounted cash flow method and the guideline public
company method. Finally, the present values calculated for our common stock under each scenario were
weighted based our management’s estimates of the probability of occurrence of each of the scenarios. The
resulting value indications represent the estimated fair market value of our common stock at each valuation date.

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets.  We follow the guidance of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” or SFAS 142, In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill and certain intangible assets
are no longer amortized, but instead we assess the impairment of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets on at
least an annual basis and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the
goodwill or intangible asset is greater than its fair value. Factors we consider important that could trigger an
impairment review include significant underperformance relative to historically or projected future operating
results, identification of other impaired assets within a reporting unit, the disposition of a significant portion of a
reporting unit, significant adverse changes in business climate or regulations, significant changes in senior
management, significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall
business, significant negative industry or economic trends, a significant decline in our stock price for a sustained
period, a decline in our credit rating, or a reduction of our market capitalization relative to net book value.
Determining whether a triggering event has occurred includes significant judgment from management.

The estimation of the fair values of goodwill and the reporting units to which it pertains requires the use of
discounted cash flow valuation models. Those models require estimates of future revenue, profits, capital
expenditures and working capital for each unit. These estimates will be determined by evaluating historical
trends, curment budgets, operating plans and industry data. Determining the fair value of reporting units and
goodwill includes significant judgment by management and different judgments could yield different results.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth selected statements of operations data for each of the periods indicated as a
percentage of total revenues.

Year Ended March 31,

2007 2006 2005
Revenues:
Subscription Revenues . ...... ... .. i i e 89% 85% 86%
Advertising Revenues . ... ... i i n 15 14
Total ReVEIMUES . ...ttt e e ettt et e e 100 100 100
Cost Of REVEIUES ... vttt e e ee et s e ee e e iaa et nn et 23 20 18
Gross Profit .. ... o e 77 80 82
Operating Expenses:
Research and Development ................ oottt eeens 18 15 14
Salesand Marketing . .........co i i i 55 56 59
General and Administrative .. ... ... .. i i i e 39 28 28
Amortization of Intangible Assets . ... i i e 1 — —
Total Operating EXpenses . .. .. ... . .iiiiiiiireiiiaaaaarrnen.. 113 99 101
Loss from Operations .. ... .....uuuuurnneerirnuenareiiininnannnnnnnnns (36) (19) (19
Other Income (Expense), Net .. ... iaaaaaaaaann __Q } __(_1 ) G
I [ e ST U E)% 20)% Qg)%

The following table sets forth our total deferred revenue and net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities for each of the periods indicated as well as our active enterprise subscribers. We define our active
enterprise subscribers as those companies that had an active enterprise subscription license for one or more years
at an annual rate of more than $2,000 at the end of the periods indicated.

Year Ended March 31,
(in thousands, except for active subscribers) 2007 2006 2005
Total deferred [EVEIUE . .. ..o\ttt e ettt it et e e ean i e $16,388 $10,548 $6,384
Net cash provided by operating activities .............. ... .o it 3,067 1,791 939
Active enterprise subscribers .. ... ... 1,865 1,270 907

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007 Cempared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006

Revenues. Revenues for fiscal 2007 were $23.0 million, an increase of $7.7 million, or 51%, compared to
revenues of $15.3 million for fiscal 2006. Subscription revenues were $20.5 million for fiscal 2007, an increase
of $7.5 million, or 57%, compared to subscription revenues of $13.0 million for fiscal 2006. The growth in
subscription revenues was due principally to an increase of $2.6 million in renewal revenues to existing
subscription customers, an increase of $2.8 million in revenues to new subscription customers and an increase of
$1.4 million in revenues from additional products sold to existing customers in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal
2006. A contributing factor in the increase in total revenues was the result of our hiring of additional sales
personnel focused on retaining existing customers, adding new customers and selling additional products to
existing customers. Advertising revenues were $2.5 million for fiscal 2007, an increase of $0.2 million, or 12%,
compared to advertising revenues of $2.3 million for fiscal 2006. The growth in advertising revenues was
primarily due to increased advertising volume. Total deferred revenue as of March 31, 2007 was $16.4 million,
representing an increase of $5.9 million, or 55%, compared to total deferred revenue of $10.5 million as of
March 31, 2006. .

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues for fiscal 2007 was $5.3 million, an increase of $2.2 million, or 72%,
compared to cost of revenues of $3.1 million for fiscal 2006. The increase in cost of revenues was primarily due
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to a $1.5 million increase in payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 18 personnel during fiscal
2007 for our compensation and professional service teams, a $0.3 million increase in stock-based compensation
expense as well as $0.3 million of costs associated with sales of our CompAnalyst Executive Product which was
not available during fiscal 2006. As a percent of total revenues, cost of revenues increased from 20% in fiscal
2006 to 23% in fiscal 2007. The increase was primarily the result of an increase in the number of professional
service personnel in order to provide implementation services to our increasing number of customners.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses for fiscal 2007 were $4.1
million, an increase of $1.9 million, or 84%, compared to research and development expenses of $2.2 million for
fiscal 2006. The increase in research and development expenses was primarily due to a $1.1 million increase in
payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 49 personnel, 38 of which were added in our newly created
China substdiary, during fiscal 2007, an increase of $0.3 million in stock-based compensation expense and an
increase of $0.3 million in computer and software related expenses. Research and development expenses
increased to 18% of net total revenues in fiscal 2007 compared to 15% of total revenues in fiscal 2006. Our
research and development headcount increased as we hired additional personnel to upgrade and expand our
on-demand software product suite.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 2007 were $12.8 million, an
increase of $4.2 million, or 49%, compared to sales and marketing expenses of $8.6 million for fiscal 2006, The
increase was primarily due to a $2.3 million increase in payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 26
sales and marketing personnel during fiscal 2007, a $0.5 million increase in sales commissions as a result of
increased sales, and a $0.6 million increase in stock-based compensation expense. Sales and marketing expenses
was 55% of total revenues in both fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006. Our sales and marketing headcount increased as
we hired additional personnel te focus on adding new customers and increasing revenues from existing
customers.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for fiscal 2007 were
$8.9 million, an increase of $4.6 million, or 106%, compared to general and administrative expenses of
$4.3 million for fiscal 2006. The increase in general and administrative expenses was due to an increase of $0.5
million in rent expense related o taking on additional space to support the Company’s continued growth, a $2.1
increase in stock-based compensation expense, which includes $1.3 million of expense related to the acceleration
of certain of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer’s stock options in February 2007, a $0.7 million increase in
payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 7 IT, accounting and legal personnel, a $0.5 million in
legal and accounting expenses and a $0.2 million increase in depreciation expense during fiscal 2007 compared
to fiscal 2006. The increase in our general and administrative expenses, other than stock compensation expense
and rent expense, is primarily the result of additional expenses that the Company has incurred which are related
to being a publicly traded company that we did not incur as a privately owned company in fiscal 2006. General
and administrative expenses were 39% of total revenues in fiscal 2007 compared to 28% in fiscal 2006.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets for fiscal 2007 was $0.1 million. The
amortization was the result of the acquisition of certain assets of the eComp Data Services Division from Aon
Consulting in April 2006.

Interest Income. Interest income for fiscal 2007 was $0.3 million compared to $3,000 in fiscal 2006. The
increase in interest income was due to interest earned on higher invested cash resulting from the proceeds from
the Company’s initial public offering in February 2007.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $116,000 in fiscal 2007 compared to $159,000 in fiscal 2006. The
decrease in interest expense was due to both the refinancing of the Company’s existing line of credit in August
2006 to a line of credit with a lower interest rate and the repayment of all outstanding borrowings in February
2007.
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2005

Revenues. Revenues for fiscal 2006 were $15.3 million, an increase of $5.3 million, or 53%, compared to
revenues of $10.0 million for fiscal 2005. Subscription revenues were $13.0 million in fiscal 2006, an increase of
$4.4 million, or 52%, over subscription revenues of $8.6 million in fiscal 2005. The growth in subscription
revenues was due principally to an increase of $1.8 million in renewal revenues to existing subscription
customers, an increase of $1.5 million in revenues to new subscription customers and due to an increase of $0.6
million in revenues from additional products sold to existing customers in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005.
The increase in total revenues was due to our hiring of additional sales personnel focused on retaining existing
customers, adding new customers and upselling to existing customers. Although we introduced TalentManager in
2004, we have not yet recognized a material amount of revenues from this solution partly due to the requirement
1o recognize revenue over the subscription period. Advertising revenues for fiscal 2006 were $2.3 million, an
increase of $0.9 million, or 60%, compared to advertising revenues of $1.4 million in fiscal 2005. The growth in
advertising revenues was primarily due to increased advertising volume. Total deferred revenue as of March 31,
2006 was $10.5 million, representing an increase of $4.1 million, or 65%, compared to total deferred revenue of
the $6.4 million as of March 31, 2005.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues for fiscal 2006 was $3.1 million, an increase of $1.3 million, or 70%,
over cost of revenues of $1.8 million for fiscal 2005. The increase was primarily due to a $1.0 million increase in
employee related costs due to the addition of 8 personnel during fiscal 2006 to our compensation and
professional services teams and a $0.1 million increase in stock-based compensation expense. As a percent of
total revenues, cost of revenues increased slightly to 20% in fiscal 2006 as compared to 18% in fiscal 2005. We
increased the number of professional service personnel in order to provide implementation services to our
increasing number of customers. ‘

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses for fiscal 2006 were
$2.2 million, an increase of $0.8 million, or 59%, over research and development expenses of $1.4 million for
fiscal 2005. The increase in research and development expenses was primarily due to a $0.6 million increase in
employee related costs due to the addition of 5 personnel during fiscal 2006, and a $123,000 increase in stock-
based compensation expense. Our research and development headcount increased as we hired additional
personnel to upgrade and expand our on-demand software.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 2006 were $8.6 million, an
increase of $2.7 million, or 46%, compared to sales and marketing expenses of $5.9 million for fiscal 2005. The
increase was primarily due to a $1.7 million increase in employee related costs due to the addition of 20
personnel during fiscal 2006 to our sales and marketing teams, a $0.5 million increase in sales commissions as a
result of increased sales, and a $0.2 million increase in stock-based compensation expense. Our sales and
marketing headcount increased as we hired additional personnel to focus on adding new customers and
increasing revenues from existing customers.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for fiscal 2006 were
$4.3 million, an increase of $1.5 million, or 55%, compared to general and administrative expenses of
$2.8 million for fiscal 2005. The increase in general and administrative expenses was primarily due to a $0.9
million increase in employee related costs due to the addition of 5 personnel during fiscal 2006, a $0.3 million
increase in rent expense related to taking on additional space to support continued growth, and to a lesser extent,
a $60,000 increase in stock-based compensation expense. Our general and administrative headcount increased as
we hired additional personnel to support our growth. :

Other Income (Expense). Other income (expense) for fiscal 2006 was an expense of $0.2 million, a
decrease of $0.2 million from other expense of $0.4 million in fiscal 2005. This decrease in other expense was
primarily due to decreased interest expense attributable to a lower average outstanding balance on our line of
credit.

56




Selected Consolidated Quarterly Operating Results

The following table presents consolidated statement of operations data for each of the eight quarters in the
period beginning April 1, 2005 and ending March 31, 2007. This information is derived from our unaudited

financial statements, which in the opinion of management contain all adjustments necessary for a fair

presentation of such financial data. Operating results for these periods are not necessarily indicative of the
operating results for a full year. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in
future periods. You should read this data together with our financial statements and the related notes to these

financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

Three months ended
June 30  Sept. 30 Dec.31 March3l June30 Sept. 30 Dec.31  March 31
{in thousands, except per share data) 2005 2005 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 2007
(Unaudited)
Statements of Operations Data:
Revenue:
Subscription revenues . .... $2,672 $3,101 $3,48%8 $3,776 $4441 $4840 $5484 $5,738
Advertising revenues . ..... 464 502 560 736 715 602 553 661
Total revenues ....... 3,136 3,603 4,048 4,512 5,156 5,442 6,037 6,399
Costof revenues (1) ........... 688 679 797 944 1,052 1,122 1,483 1,677
Grossprofit ................. 2448 2924 3251 3,568 4,104 4320 4554 4,722
Operating Expenses:
Research and
development (1) ........ 416 502 567 753 728 899 1,180 1,309
Sales and marketing (1) .... 1,670 1915 2222 2,766 2,687 2,965 3,396 3,744
General and
administrative (1) ....... 964 1001 1,166 1,206 1,448 1,553 1,974 3,947
Amortization of intangible
assets ..........ee.... —_ —_ —_ — 53 24 25 24
Total operating expenses ....... 3,050 3418 3,955 4,725 4916 5,441 6,575 9,024
Loss from operations .......... (602) (494) (704) (1,157) (812) (1,121) (2,021) (4,302)
Other income (expense) ........ (52) (44) 37 (40) 22) (25) 27 248
Netloss ,.................... (654) (538) (741) (1,197) (834) (1,146) (2,048) (4,054)
Accretion of preferred stock . ... (129  (129) (129 (129y (129 (129) (129) (84)
Net loss attributable to common
stockholders per share ....... $ (783) § (667) § (B70) $(1,326) $ (963) $(1,275) $(2,177) $(4,138)
Net loss attributable to common
stockholders per share—basic
anddiluted ................ $¢0.21) $(0.17) $(0.20) $ (0.31) $(0.20)0 $ (0.26) § (0.43) $ (0.44)
(1) Amounts include stock-based compensation, as follows:
Three months ended
June 3¢ Sept.30 Dec.31 March3l June30 Sept.30 Dec.31 Marchil
(in thousands) 2005 2005 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 207
(Unaudited)
Stock-based compensation:
Costofrevenues ............ $10 $8 $53 3115 $28 $27 3 178 8§ 204
Research and development . . .. 7 6 65 102 19 18 170 298
Sales and marketing ......... 30 25 141 205 69 67 378 472
General and administrative . . .. 50 36 103 122 127 132 274 1,904
$97 $75 $362 $544 $243  $244 $1,000 32,878
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As percentage of revenues:

Three months ended
June30 Sept.30 Dec.31 March3l June30 Sept.30 Dec.31 March3l
2005 2005 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 2007
(Unaudited)
Statements of Operations Data:
Revenue:
Subscription revenues ........ 85% 86%  86% 84% 36% 9% 9% 90%
Advertising revenues ......... 15 14 14 16 14 11 9 10
Total revenues .......... 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Costofrevenues . ................ 22 19 20 21 20 21 25 26
Grossprofit .................... 78 81 80 79 80 79 75 74
Operating Expenses:
Research and development . .. .. 13 14 14 17 14 17 20 20
Sales and marketing .......... 53 53 55 61 53 54 56 59
General and administrative . ... 31 28 28 27 28 29 33 62
Amortization of intangible
ASSELS ... ... — — — - 1 — — —
Total operating expenses .......... 97 95 97 105 96 100 109 141
Loss from operations ............. (19) (14) a7n (26) (16} (21) (34) (67)
Other income (expense) ........... (@) ¢} __(l ) £ ) — — — __4
Netloss.....ovvveeeeiniiennn. QD)%  (15)% (18)% (27)% 16)% 2% GH% (63)%

Revenues increased sequentially in each of the quarters presented primarily due to increases in the number
of total active customers and revenue recognized from deferred revenue.

Gross profit in absolute dollars also increased sequentially for the quarters presented primarily due to
revenue growth. As a percentage of revenues, gross profit has decreased from 80% for the quarter ended
December 31, 2005 to 74% for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 due to an increase in cost of revenues as a
result of increases in the number of compensation and professional services personnel, and to a lesser extent,
increased stock-based compensation expense.

Operating expenses in absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenues have increased sequentially for the
past four quarters presented primarily due to increased sales and marketing expenses in absolute dollars resulting
from increases in the number of sales personnel and to a lesser extent, increased stock-based compensation
expense and increased sales commissions. Increased research and development expenses have also contributed to
the overall increase in operating expenses due primarily to increased headcount we have continued to hire
additional personnel to upgrade and expand our on-demand software product suite. General and administrative
expenses have increased due to a number of factors including increased headcount and rent expense to support
the Company's growth as well as an increase in stock-based compensation expense and a general increase in
expenses as a result of being a publicly traded company.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At March 31, 2007, our principal sources of liquidity were cash and cash equivalents totaling $49.0 million
and accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $3.4 miilion compared to cash and cash
equivalents of $1.8 million and accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.9 million at
March 31, 2006. The Company’s working capital as of March 31, 2007 was $34.3 million compared to a working
capital deficit of $8.5 million as of March 31, 2006.
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Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended March 31, 2007 was $3.1 million. This amount
resulted from a net loss of $8.1 million, adjusted for net non-cash charges of $5.6 million and a $5.5 million net
increase in working capital accounts. Non-cash items primarily consisted of $0.8 million of depreciation and
amortization of property, equipment and software, $0.1 million of amortization of intangible assets, $4.4 million
of stock-based compensation and $0.3 million of bonuses paid in common stock. The net increase in working
capital of $5.5 million was comprised of increases in accounts receivable of $0.5 million, prepaid expense and
other current assets of $0.7 million, deferred customer acquisition costs of $0.4 million, accounts payable of $0.3
million, accrueed expenses and other current liabilities of $1.0 million and deferred revenue of $5.7 million. The
increase in accounts receivable is primarily due to an overall increase in invoicing during fiscal 2007 compared
to fiscal 2006. The increase in prepaid expense and other current assets is due primarily to an increased level of
expenses related to both higher headcount levels in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 and additional prepaid
expenses that relate to being a publicly traded company. The increase in deferred customer acquisition costs is
due primarily to increased invoicing and revenue in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006. The increase in
accounts payable is due primarily to the company’s growth in fiscal 2007. The increase in accrued expenses is
primarily due to an increase in accrued incentive compensation. The increase in deferred revenue is primarily due
to increased invoicing less revenue recognition from our subscription customers in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal
2006. The growth in the invoiced amounts was primarily due to sales to new customers, increased sales to
existing customers, the introduction of new products, and the enhancement of existing products. Currently,
payment for the majority of our subscription agreements is due upon invoicing. Because revenue is generally
recognized ratably over the subscription period, payments received at the beginning of the subscription period
result in an increase to accounts receivable and deferred revenue. Changes in deferred revenue generally indicate
the trend for subscription revenues over the following year as the current portion of deferred revenue is expected
to be recognized within 12 months.

Cash used in investing activitics was $3.8 million and consisted primarily of $0.7 million paid for the
acquisition of the e-Comp Data Services Division from Acn Consulting, Inc. in April 2006, $1.5 million paid for
the acquisition of data underlying certain of our products, $1.3 million paid for purchases of property and
equipment for new offices, network infrastructure and computer equipment to support our growth in employee
headcount and $0.3 million of payments capitalized for the payment of software development costs. We intend to
continue to invest in our content data sets, software development and network infrastructure to ensure our
continued ability to enhance our existing software, expand our data sets, introduce new products, and maintain
the reliability of our network.

Cash provided by financing activities was $47.9 million, which consisted primarily of $48.0 million in net
proceeds from the Company’s initial public offering in February 2007, $0.4 million of proceeds from
subscription payable resulting from the early exercise of employee stock options and $0.3 million of proceeds
from subscription receivable resulting from loans granted to employees to exercise stock options. Offsetting
these financing inflows was a $0.8 million repayment of the revolving credit line from a related party.

In August 2006, the company entered into a $5.000,000 credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank. The line,
which expires in August 2008, provides for a term loan up to $1,000,000 and a $4,000,000 revolving working
capital line of credit. Borrowings on the term loan bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 1.00% and interest is
payable on a monthly basis. Borrowings on the revolving line bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 0.25%.
The credit facility is collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s assets. In addition, the facility carries an
unused revolving line facility fee of (.375% of the balance available, but not drawn down. As of March 31, 2007,
there were no outstanding borrowings under this credit facility.

On December 30, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with a vendor to obtain additional data sets
that runs for an initial one year term following the date of the initial delivery. The fee for the initial term is
$1.5 million. At the end of the initial term, the agreement shall automatically renew for up to six subsequent one
year terms unless terminated by the Company. The annual fees due to the vendor related to years two through
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seven of the agreement are $0.5 million, $0.6 million, $0.6 million, $0.7 million, $0.8 million, and $0.9 million,
respectively.

As of March 31, 2007, we had net operating loss carryforwards of $16.4 million which may be available to
offset potential payments of future federal income tax liabilities which expire at various dates through 2027 and
$6.1 million available to offset potential payments of future state income tax liabilities which expire at various
dates through 2012. In the future, we may use our net operating loss carryforwards and would begin making cash
tax payments once they are fully utilized. In addition, the limitations on utilizing net operating loss carryforwards
and other state-level minimum tax requirements may also increase our overall tax obligations.

On May 185, 2007, the Company acquired the membership interests of ICR, a leading provider of industry-
specific market intelligence for employee pay and benefits for the global technology and specialty consumer
goods markets. Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreements, we paid $10.3 million to the owners of ICR, of
which $1 million has been placed in escrow for 12 months.

Given our current cash, accounts receivable and available borrowings under our credit facility, we believe
that we will have sufficient liquidity to fund our business and meet our contractual obligations for the foreseeable
future. However, we may need to raise additional funds in the future in the event that we pursue acquisitions or
investments in complementary businesses or technologies or experience operating losses that exceed our
expectations. If we raise additional funds through the issuance of equity or convertible securities, our
stockholders may experience dilution. In the event that additional financing is required, we may not be able to
obtain it on acceptable terms or at all.

During the last three fiscal years, inflation and changing prices have not had a material effect on our
business and we do not expect that inflation or changing prices will materially affect our business in the
foreseeable future.

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

Under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States, certain obligations and commitments
are not required to be included in the consolidated balance sheet. These obligations and commitments, while
entered into in the normal course of business, may have a material impact on liquidity. The Company does not
have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as
structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating
off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. As such, the Company is not
exposed to any financing, liquidity, market, or credit risk that could arise if the Company had engaged in such
relationships. The following table discloses the Company’s contractual payment obligations as of March 31,
2007. As of March 31, 2007, we did not have any material purchase obligations, capital leases, or other material
long-term commitments reflected on our balance sheet.

The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations at March 31, 2007 and the effect such
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods:

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1-3 3.5 More than
Contractual obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(in thousands)
Operating 18ases . .. ... .oouoeviuirieane e $3.375 $1,724 $1,651 $— $—
Contractual COMMUMENTS .. v v e e ve e caesinnennnes 1,366 1,254 106 6

o 1 R S $4,741 $2978 81,757 § 6 §—
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The contractual commitment amounts in the table above are associated with agreements that are enforceable
and legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum services to be used; fixed,
minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. Obligations under
agreements that we can cancel without a significant penalty are not included in the table above.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (“SFAS 159"}, which permits entities to choose
to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The provisions of SFAS 159 are
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not yet determined the impact of
adopting SFAS 159 on its financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
The Company has not yet determined the impact of adopting SFAS 157 on its financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax
positions. This Interpretation requires that the Company recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax
position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the
position. FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is currently
evaluating what impact, if any, the adoption of FIN 48 will have on its financial position and results of
operations,
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Our results of operations and cash flows are not subject to fluctuations
due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates in any material respect.

Interest Rate Sensitivity. Interest income and expense are sensitive to changes in the general level of
U.S. interest rates. However, based on the nature and current level of our investments, which are primarily cash
and debt obligations, we believe that there is no material risk of exposure.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by Item 8 is contained on pages F-1 through F-27 of this report. *

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our managernent evaluated, with the participation of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer,
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(f) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based
on this evaluation, the chief executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Report.

Our Board of Directors, acting through its Audit Committee, is responsible for the oversight of our
accounting policies, financial reporting and internal control. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is
comprised entirely of outside directors who are independent of management. The independent registered public
accounting firm has full and untimited access to the Audit Committee, with and without management, to discuss
the adequacy of internal control over financial reporting, and any other matters that they believe should be
brought to the attention of the Audit Committee.

Remediation of Prior Year Material Weaknesses

In connection with the audit of our financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2006, our
independent registered public accounting firm identified three material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting. A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or a combination of significant deficiencies,
that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected. The material weaknesses identified during the year ended March 31,
2006 and the status of the remediation of each is as follows:

+  We did not have sufficient number of accounting personnel who possessed an appropriate level of
experience in SEC reporting requirements. This lack of enough experienced accounting personnel
increased the risk of our preparing inaccurate financial statements. As a result, the financial statement
drafts we prepared were missing or contained incomplete material footnotes {such as those related to
earnings per share, stock-based compensation under SFAS 123R and income taxes) and disclosures
required for a public company and certain adjustments for compensation expense relating to the
adoption of SFAS 123R “Share Based Payments.”
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During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 we have expanded our internal accounting and legal teams to
add additional skills and experience, specifically experience in public company reporting, including complex
financial transaction accounting and reporting, as well as the use of qualified outside professionals as necessary
to supplement our accounting expertise and enhance our internal accounting controls over financial reporting.
We have hired a new Chief Financial Officer, a new General Counsel, a new Director of Finance and a Director
of Accounting and Financial Reporting, each with a significant amount of public company reporting experience.
As of March 31, 2007, we have successfully remediated this material weakness except for the portion that relates
to the calculation of stock compensation expense under SFAS 123R. We have hired personnel resources with
knowledge and experience dealing with SFAS 123R including outside consuitants with expertise in GAAP,
including SFAS 123R, Furthermore, the Company has instituted a control in which the work performed by
outside consultants is reviewed by the Director of Accounting and Financial Reporting and/or the Director of
Finance for reasonableness and consistency. However this deficiency will not be completely remediated until we
have implemented a new software system and related controls to track stock option activity and calculate stock
compensation expense in accordance with SFAS 123R. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, we began
the implementation of new on-demand stock option management software. This automated software will
significantly reduce the potential for errors inherent in a spreadsheet based process. Although the implementation
of this system began in fiscal year 2007, it has not been complieted as of the date of this report. Based on our
remediation efforts as of the date of this report, specifically the hiring of knowledgeable and experienced
personnel, this material weakness has now been classified as a significant deficiency pending the completion of
the implementation of our new stock option accounting system and the implementation of related controls.

* In prior years, we entered into sophisticated and high dollar value equity and debt financing
transactions to finance our business, but did not have a formal policy regarding the policies and
procedures for the recording and reporting of these types of transactions (specifically related to the
beneficial conversion feature of our preferred stock issuance). In addition, we did not have a sufficient
number of accounting personnel who possessed an appropriate level of experience in the selection and
application of GAAP with respect to redeemable preferred stock.

As indicated above we have expanded our internal accounting and legal teams to add additional skills and
experience, specifically expetience in public company reporting, including complex financial transaction
accounting and reporting, as well as the use of qualified outside professionals as necessary to supplement our
accounting expertise and enhance our internal accounting controls over financial reporting. However, not all of
the enhanced review procedures had been implemented as of March 31, 2007. As a result the material weakness
identified above has been classified as a significant deficiency as of March 31, 2007.

»  We also had material weaknesses in the design and operation of our internal controls relating to
revenie accounting. In particular, because of system limitations, we did not have a process or policy to
maintain a detailed deferred revenue listing by customer to support our deferred revenue balances. As a
result of the identified deficiency, we recorded a material adjustment to reclassify from shornt-term to
long-term deferred revenue within the liability section of our balance sheet. In some instances, we also
did not maintain sufficient evidence of our customers’ completion of implementation of our products or
subscription renewals. Lastly, the documentation of our revenue recognition policy lacked sufficient
detail to suppoit how we recognize revenue in accordance with GAAP.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, we began the implementation of our new accounting system
and related controls, which we believe will alleviate the revenue accounting issues identified during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2006. This new accounting system will fully integrate our revenue accounting and general
ledger systems (as compared to our current accounting system which is not integrated with the three other
systems we use to record customer transactions and activities and the calculation of amounts recognized as
revenue) and is more sophisticated in the manner in which it handles complex revenue transactions. Although the
implementation of this system began in fiscal year 2007, it has not been completed as of the date of this report.
Subsequent to March 31, 2007, but prior to the date of this report, we have enhanced the documentation of our
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revenue recognition policy to support how we recognize revenue in accordance with GAAP to encompass a
broader range of transactions. As of March 31, 2007, we had established new processes and controls relating to
the retention of evidence of our customers’ product implementations and subscription renewals. Also, as of
March 31, 2007 we had established a policy and process to maintain a detailed deferred revenue listing by
customer to support our deferred revenue halances. As a result of these ongoing remediation efforts, this material
weakness has been classified as a significant deficiency as of March 31, 2007.

While we expect to complete the remediation of the significant deficiencies above, we cannot assure you
that we will be able to do so, which could impair our ability to accurately and timely report our financial position,
resuits of operations or cash flows,

Changes to Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management has not identified any changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during our
Fourth Quarter 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
controls over financial reporting, except as discussed above.

Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues within our company have been or will be detected. Even effective internal
control over financial reporting can only provide reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation. Furthermore, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting may vary over time. Our management, including our President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, does not expect that our controls and procedures will prevent all errors.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except as set forth under the heading “Executive Officers” in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
the information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007. ) ’

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2007
Annuai Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page Number in
this Form 10-K

(a)(1) Financial Statements, The Financial Statements requir'ed to be fited by Item 8 of Form
10-K, and filed herewith, are as follows:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .............. ...t F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets asof March 31,2007 and 2006 ...........c0viieeninaenn.n. . .F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three years ended March 31,2007 ............. F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders® Equity for the three years ended March 31,2007 .. ... E-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years endef:l March 31,2007 ............ F-6
Notes t(; Consolidated Financial Statements .. ............. e e F-7

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule:

II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves for the three years ended March 31,
74 U S-1

All other schedules are omitted because they are either not applicable or the required information is included
in the consolidated financial statements or related notes.

(a)(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number Description

2.1 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated as of May 15, 2007 by and among Salary.com, Inc.,
ICR Limited, L.C., Joseph Duggan and Roger Sturtevant, Jr. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, 2007).

22 Share Purchase Agreement dated as of May 15, 2007, by and among Satary.com, Inc., John Cunnell
and Valerie Cunnell (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 filed with the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, 2007).

31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form §-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646).

32 Form of Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1,
dated January 19, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646).

33 Amended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 filed with Amendment
No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration
No. 333-138646).

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with
Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007,
Registration No. 333-138646).

10.1 Second Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 filed with the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13,
2006, Registration No. 333-138646). *
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.1.1

10.2

10.2.1

103

10.3.1

10.3.2

10.3.3

10.4

10.5

10.5.1

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.8.1

2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1.1 filed with the Company’'s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated
November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646). *

First Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13,
2006, Registration No. 333-138646), *

2004 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2.1 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13,
2006, Registration No. 333-138646).*

2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 filed with
Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 9, 2007,
Registration No. 333-138646). *

2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3.1 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration No, 333-138646). *

2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3.2 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form 5-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646). *

2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Non-Employee
Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3.3 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration No.
3133-138646). *

2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 filed with
Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007,
Registration No. 333-138646). *

Second Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5
filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006,
Registration No. 333-138646).

Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5.1 filed with Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form $S-1, dated December 21, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).

Second Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.6 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006,
Registration No. 333-138646).

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 filed with the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No.
333-138646).

Agreement for Extension of Credit (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 filed with the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No,
333-138646).

Amendment to No. 1 Agreement for Extension of Credit (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8.1
filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006,
Registration No. 333-138646).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.8.2

10.9

10.10

10.10.1

10.12

10.13

10.14

211
231
23.2
24.1
311
31.2
321

Assignment Agreement for Agreement of Extension of Credit (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8.2 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13,
2006, Registration No. 333-138646).

Loan and Security Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 filed with the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).

Sublease (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed with the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).

Amendment No. 1 to Sublease (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed with the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 filed with
Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007,
Registration No. 333-138646).

Form of Employment Agreement with G. Kent Phinkett {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13
filed with Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated
February 9, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646).*

Letter Agreement Re: Employment and Compensation with Kenreth S. Goldman (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated
November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).*

Subsidiaries of the Company (filed herewith).

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP (filed herewith).

Consent of Vitale Caturano & Company, Ltd. (filed herewith).

Power of Attorney (filed herewith as part of the signature page hereto).
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer (filed herewith).
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer (filed herewith).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished
herewith).

* Compensatory plan or arrangement applicable to management.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on June 28,
2007.

SALARY.COM, INC.

By: s/ _G. KENT PLUNKETT

G. Kent Plunkett
Chalrman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Power of Attorney

Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints G. Kent Plunkett, Kenneth S. Goldman
and Elliot J. Mark, and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of
substitation in each of them, for him and in his name, place, and stead, and in any and all capacities, to sign this
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Salary.com, Inc. and any amendments thereto, and to file the same, with alt
exhibits thereto and any other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto saigd attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and autherity to do
and perform each and every act and thing requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully
and to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them or their or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be
done by virtue hereof,

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Siguature Tk Date
fs/  G. KENT PLUNKETT Chairman of the Board, President June 28, 2007
and Chief Executive Officer

. Pt it
- Kent Plunke (Principal Executive Officer)

fs/ KENNETH S. GOLDMAN Senior Vice President, Chief June 28, 2007
Financial Officer, Treasurer and
K h S. Goldman ! X
ennet Director (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)
/s!  YONG ZHANG Executive Vice President, Chief June 28, 2007
Yong Zhang Operating Officer and Director
s/ PauL R. DAQUST Director June 28, 2007
Paul R. Dagust
fst  Jomn F. GREGG Director June 28, 2007
John F. Gregg
/s/ EDwaRD F. MCCAULEY Director June 28, 2007

Edward F. McCauley
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Signature

/s/ JoHn R. SUMSER

John R, Sumser

/s TERRY TEMESCU

Terry Temescu

/s/ ROBERT A. TREVISANI

Robert A. Trevisani

Title

Director

Director

Director
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June 28, 2007

June 28, 2007

June 28, 2007




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Salary.com, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Salary.com, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) as of
March 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent. The Company is not required to have,
nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Salary.com, Inc. as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts as of March 31, 2007 and 2006 and for the years
then ended is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financiat
statemenis and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

fsf GRANT THORNTON LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
June 22, 2007




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Salary.com, Inc.
Waltham, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows of
Salary.com, Inc. (The Company), a Delaware corporation, for the year ended March 31, 2005. Qur audit also
included the financial statement schedule — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (Schedule IT) for the year ended
March 31, 2005. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audit. -

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financia! statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have,
nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
and schedule, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of
Salary.com, Inc.’s operations and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly
in all material respects the information set forth therein.

fs/ VITALE, CATURANO & COMPANY, LTD.

Boston, Massachusetts

December 23, 2005, except for the 19th and 20th paragraphs of
Note 9 as to which the date is November 4, 2006 and the 2nd paragraph of Note 9 as to which the date is
January 17, 2007




SALARY.COM, INC,
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, March 31,
2007 2006
Assets
Current assets:
Cashandcashequivalents .. ......... ... ittt it iiie i neaeeeas §$49,016,389 $ 1813715
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $179,712 and $166,316, at March 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively ... ... e 3,364,931 2,900,941
Prepaid expenses and other CUTTENI SSEES . ... .. ... iuu et iit i it ia e naneaasrnns 891,483 152,201
Deferred customer acquisition costs, CUITEnE POTHON . . .. .. ... .oiv et ia e 870,224 494110
Tolal CUTTENE 85615 L . v .ttt e e e e 54,143,027 5,360,967
Property, equipment and S0 tware, MBt ... ... ..ttt i e i 1,937,250 1,208,686
Intangible assets, net
Non-compete AZTEEMEntS, MEL . . ... ..ottt et e et et et in it 292,002 —
Customer relationships, NEL . ... ... i e e 96,000 —
2L T 35,630 —
Data acquisition CoSts, MEL . ... ... . i 1,500,000 —
Total intangible asse15, MEL .. .. ... 1,923,632 —
Goodwill .. e et e e 266,000 —
Deferred customer acquisition costs, net of CULrEnt POION . . . . ...\ vttt it vareaeeirieanearas 48,856 28,856
Security dePOSIIS L.\ e e 341,708 414,533
O T B33 L .. i it e e, 15,000 15,000
4,532,446 1,667,075
TOtAl ASSEIS . . o vt i e e et et $ 58675473 § 7,028,042
Llabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... ... e e $ 607,782 $ 290,062
Accrued COMPENSAUON . . . .1\ verasternannsaiassansaansssnsnasassssarsrncaciisassessernssnn 1,898,529 1,287,238
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . . ..., ... it e i 1,104,714 667,703
Subscription payable ... ... .. e e e e 693,638 811,069
Revolving line of credit, related party ... ... et e e i e — 800,000
Deferred revenue, CUmTERt POTHOM .. .. ii it iiia ittt aiinr e ctaranrnintasaneenstararnasasans 15.506,966 9,966,057
Total carrent liabilities ................ e e e 19,811,629 13,822,129
Deferred revenue, net of clulment POTHON .. ... ..ottt ettt et et e e amit i 880,688 582,027
Total liabilities .,......., e e e e e e e 20,692,317 14,404,156
Redeemable conventible preferred stock:
Serics A-1, $0001 par value, 808,251 shares anthorized; 808,251 shares issuted and outstanding, liquidation
preference of $120,780 at March 31, 2006 .. ... .. it e e — 120,780
Series A-2, $0001 par value, 1,350,000 shares authorized; 1,350,000 shares issued and outstanding,
liquidation preference of $308,813 at March 31,2006 . ... ... ... . .o iii i, —_ 308,813
Series A-3, $0001 par value, 6,000,000 shares authorized; 3,568,720 shares issued and outstanding,
liquidation preference of $1,632,687 atMarch 31,2006 ... ... ... 0o itiitiir i riaiiianenns — 1,632,687
Series A-4, 30001 par value, 6,000,000 shares authorized; 3,730,500 shares issued and outstanding,
liquidation preference of $1,054,369 at March 31,2006 . .. ... .. ..ottt i iainr e iinaess — 1,054,369
Series B, $0001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 5,805,719 shares issued and outstanding,
liquidation preference of $7,460,114 at March 31,2006 . ... .. ... ..ot iirivieiair i nierrens — 7.421 458
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7} ... ..ottt n ., et — —
Stockholders’ deficit:
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued or outstanding ........... — —
Common stock, $.0001 par value; 100,000,000 and 80,000,000 shares authorized at March 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively; 13,315,580 issued and owtstanding at March 31, 2007; 4,658,312 issued and
4,653,832 outstanding at March 31,2006 .. ...... ... ittt i i i 1,331 466
Additional paid-incapital . ...... ... 67,378,802 3,209,141
Treasury stock, 4480 shares atcostat March 31, 2006 . . .. .. .. ettt it iit e iiaens —_ (1,000)
Subscription receivable ................ L e e e e e e e e ey —_ (279,139)
Accumulated other comprehensive 108 ... ... ... e i (666) —
Accumulated defiCit .. .. ot e e e e et (29,396,311)  (20,843,689)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) ... ... e e 37983156  £17.914221)
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders™ deficit .. .............coooveus, $ 58675473 § 7.028.042

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SALARY.COM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended March 31,
2007 2006 2005
Revenue:
SUbSCTIPtION [EVENUES ... .. .\ivvureeeesreaitieoreens £20,502,788 $13,037,339 $ 8,565,055
Advertising FEVenUEs ... ...\t ieaiiiiii e 2,531,259 2,262,031 1,410,523
TOtal TEVEIUES o o oo ottt eine e v ae e enaaasnns 23,034,047 15,299,370 0,975,578
Costofrevenues (1) ... ..o eemiinnriiirianan 5,334,018 3,107,889 1,830,872
Gross Profit .. ...covivinrennn et 17,700,029 12,191,481} 8,144,706
Operating expenses:
Research and development (1) ........coovveiiiiinnn 4,115,635 2,238,095 1,410,183
Marketing and sales (1) . ........ooevi i 12,792,121 8,573,582 5,854,492
General and administrative (1} . ..... ..o 8,922,186 4,336,859 2,798,430
Amortization of intangible assets . .......... ... ol 125,998 — —
Total operating EXPENSES . . ... vvveeuccraannesneres 25,955,940 15,148,536 10,063,105
L0ss fTOm OPErations . . .. ...vvvviiecennens s s (8,255911) (2,957,055) (1,918,399)
Other income (expense):
INtereSt INCOMMIE .+ o vt v et ie e i mma e ranamraeiansnns 297,690 2,979 2,662
INTErESt EXPENSE . . . oo vvuvevrnre s ssnnn s eneee s {115,595) (159,140) (357,168)
Other EXPENSE . ..o ovvvitvnneraemcrair s (8,010} (16,515) {17,015)
Total other income (EXPENSE) . ..o v v nrvnn ins 174,085 (172,676) (371,521)
L EOSE o oot ee et e et ettt it e e (8,081,826 (3,129,731) (2,289,920)
Accretion of preferred stock ... (470,796) (515,586) (512,997)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders .................. $(8,552,622) $(3,645,317) $(2,802,917)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders per share—basic and
B )L S U S $ (142) $ 0.89) $ (0.81)
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic and diluted ......... 6,022,792 4,079,224 3,467,985
(1) Amounts include stock-based compensation expense, as follows:
Years ended March 31,
2007 2006 2005
COSE OF TEVEIMUES -+ e v v e e et e iaesenectiie e aaaceaans $ 437,177 $ 185537 § 41,500
Research and development ......... ... .c.cciiiiiiiiiiiaeas 504,609 180,015 57,311
Marketing and Sales . .. .. ...t 986,090 401,322 162,143
General and administrative . . .. oot vreen i inrnreanie e 2,437,435 311,420 251,536

$ 4365311 $ 1,078294 § 512,490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SALARY.COM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Accumulated Total

Additional Other Stockholders’
_CommonStock  “pygq, TreasuryStock oo oription Accumulated Comprebensive  Equity
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Receivable Deficit Loss {Deficit)

Balance at March 31,

2004 ..., 3359534 § 336 $ 1325602 — § — § —  $(14,395455) $— $(13,069,517)
Issuance of common stock

for warrant and opticns

EXEICISeS v, 532,559 53 119777 — — —_ —_ —_ 119,830
Accretion of preferred stock

10 redemption value ., ... —_ — _ — — — (512,997) —_ (512,997}
Stock-based compensation

EXPENSE . . ... .. eass — — 512490 — — —_ —_ - 512,490
Netloss ................ —_ - — _— — — (2,289,920) (2,289,920)
Balance at March 31,

2005 ...l 3892093 $ 389 51957869 — % — % —  $(17,198,372) 5$— $(15,240,114)
Issuance of common stock

for warrant and options

exercises . ............. 766,219 77 172978 — — — —_ — 173,055
Purchase of treasury

stock ............. ... —_ —_ — 4480 (1,000) — — — (1,000)
Subscription receivable . ... —_ — —_ — — (279,139) —_ —_ (279,139)
Accretion of preferred stock

to redemption valee .. . .. — — — — — — (515,586) — (515,5860)
Stock-based compensation

EXPENSE .. .o it — — 1,078,294 — — — — — 1,078,294
Netloss .....oovuvinnnnn —_ — — — — — (3,129.731) (3,129,731}
Balance at March 31,

2006 ... 4,658,312 § 466 § 3,209,141 4,480 $(1,000) $(279,139) $(20,843,689) $— $(17,914,221)
Issuance of common stock :

for warrant and options

exercises and bonuses ... 100,929 10 276,536 — — — — — 276,546 |
Vesting of restricted

Stock .. ...l 1,554,020 155 491,293 — — — — — 497,448 I
Subscription receivable . ... — — _ — — 279,139 —_ _ 279,139 \
Initial public offering, net of

offering costs .......... 5,248,200 525 48,022,793 — — —_ — _ 48,023,318
Conversion of preferred

Stock ... 1,758,599 175 11,008,728 — —_ — — —_ 11,008,903
Accretion of preferred stock

to redemption value .. ... _ —_ —_ — — —_ {470,796) {470,796)
Retirement of treasury

stock ... 4480y — (1,000) (4,480) 1,000 — — — —
Stock-based compensation

EXPENSE .. v vnvennnnnan 4,365,311 4,365,311
Comprehensive loss:
Cumulative translation

adjustment ............ — — _ — — — _ (666) (666)
Netloss ................ — — —_ — — — (8.081,826) — (8,081,826)
Comprehensive loss ... ., .. (8,082,492}
Balance at March 31,

2007 ... 13,315,580 $1,331 $67378802 — § — § —  $(29,396,311) $(666) $ 37,983,156

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SALARY.COM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS -

Years ended March 31,
2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
L T 1 T L R R R R R E R $(8,081,826) $(3,129,731) $(2,289.920)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, equipment and software ................. 841,678 49557 330,921
Amortization of intangible assets ....... . i 133,144 — —
NoRCaSh INETESt BRPEISE ..« . cvuvivrrvran e e racaesasn it ananareiasaes — — 127,400
Stock-based COMPENSALON L ...\ ivirverec et 4,365,311 1,078,294 512,490
Bonus paid in commOn SI0ck .. ... i u e e 250,000 — —
Provision {credit) for doubtful 4cCOUDLS .. ... .. 13,397 (123,185 104,754
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
(Increase) decrease in:
ACCOUTHS FECEIVADIE . ...ttt ettt e e (477.386)  (1,293,899) (558,500)
Prepaid expenses and other CUITEN ASSEIS . ... .o .ovvvt v erniniiii e (739,283) (111,818) (40,383}
Deferred customer acquisition COSES .. ... vvvvnevarirnrirrea iy (396,114} {(105,117) (104,131)
SECUTtY EPOSIS .. .. vuvtirte e aaia et a e 72,825 (293,813) {120,720)
(811 T = 7 TP R — 76,799 14,009
Increase (deCTEASE) il ... v\ vv v e e et ninna e e
Accounts payable .. ........c.i e 317,720 79,491 64,436
Accrued expense and other current liabilities .. ..... ... 1,048,302 959,053 606,472
Other long-term Liabilities . ........ooienioiiiiii i — (5,581) (228,795)
Defermed TeVerUE . .o v vt i et a i e e 5,719,570 4,164,524 2,520,678
Net cash provided by operating activities ..., 3,067,338 1,790,588 938,711
Cash flows from investing ectivities:
Cash paid for acquisition of BUSINESS .......vvueeiciii {660,000) — —_
Cash paid for acquisition of data . ... (1,500,000) —_ —_
Cash paid for Patents . . ...\ v v ettt e (42,776) — —
Purchases of property and eqUIPMENT ... ... .onveenin i (1,301,342) (655,126) (581,922}
Capitalization of software developImEnt COSIS .. .....ootiaiiir i erae e (268,500) (167,998) {100,941)
Net cash used in investing activities ..........coviiiiiiiaiea i, (3,773,018) {823,124) (682,863)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of stock issuance costs ..........ovvvvive et 48,023,318 — —
Proceeds from revolving line of credit, related party .. .......ooovviiaiiiiinn _ 100,000 —
Repayments of revolving line of credit, related party ......oovvvie i (800,000) 400,000) (930,935)
Proceeds from issuance of Series A-4 preferredstock ......... ... — 125,000 -
Proceeds from Series A-4 preferred stock subscription receivable ... — — 275,000
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options and WaITants . .. .....ovivieverarinns 26,551 173,055 119,830
Repurchase of unvested exercised Stock OPHONS ... vuiii e (35,833) — —_—
Repurchase of COMIMON S10CK .. . ..ot tiuin i — (1,000) _
Proceeds from subscription payable ... ... ... e 415,847 811,069 —
Payments for subscription receivable . ......... .. ..o — (279,139) —
Proceeds from subscription receivable .. .. . .o 279,139 — —
Repurchase of Series A-4 preferred stock .. ... ... - {75.000) —
Repayments of subordinated notes payable to stockholders ... _ — (750,000)
Proceeds from revolving line of creditand termloan ... ... i 7,400,000 — —
Repayments of borrowings under line of creditand term loan ... ......ocovvviiianien (7,400,000) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .............c..coooonne 47,909,020 453,985 (1,286,105)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . .......o.ovvniiininns (666) — -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cashequivalents .............o.oiviiiiin 47,202,674 1,421,449 (1,030,257)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year . ........ovi i 1,813,715 392,266 1,422,523
Cash and cash equivalents, end Of YEar .. .. ...oovvnoniiii i $49.016,389 $ 1,813,715 $ 392,266
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid fOr IMIETESE . . . ..\ttt e e e enaebui et a et $ 118959 § 159462 $ 164,130
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing activities:
Liabilities assumed on acquisition of business .. ..o $ 120000 % — 3 —
Supplemental disclosure of noncash financing activities:
Accretion and dividends on redeemable preferred stock ... $ 470,796 $ 515586 $ 512,997
Conversion of convertible preferred stock to common Stock ... ....uiiii i $11,008899 § — 8 —_

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SALARY.COM, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS

Salary.com (the “Company™) is a leading provider of on-demand compensation management solutions. The
Company's comprehensive on-demand software applications are integrated with its proprietary data sets to
automate the essential elements of its customers’ compensation management processes. As a result, the
Company’s solutions can significantly improve the effectiveness of its customers’ compensation spending. The
Company enables employers of all sizes to replace or supplement inefficient and expensive traditional
approaches to compensation management, including paper-based surveys, consultants, internally developed
software applications and spreadsheets. The Company was incorporated in Delaware in 1999 and its principal
operations are located in Waltham, Massachusetts. Since December of 20086, the Company has operated a facility
in Shanghai, China, primarily for research and development activities. The Company conducts its business
primarily in the United States.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, SDC China, Ltd., established December 18, 2006, and Salary.com Securities Corporation,
established March 26, 2007. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

For the non-U.S. subsidiary, which operates in a local currency environment, assets and liabilities are
translated at period-end exchange rates, and income statement items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. The local currency for all foreign subsidiaries is considered to be the functional currency and,
accordingly, translation adjustments are reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity under the
caption “accumulated other comprehensive loss.”

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. The Company invests its excess cash in money market accounts and overnight
repurchase agreements, These investments are subject to minimal credit and market risks. At March 31, 2007 and
2006, the Company has classified as cash equivalents, investments totaling approximately $48,018,000 and $0,
respectively. The carrying amount of these investments approximates fair market value.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management reviews accounts receivable on a periodic basis to determine if any receivables will potentially be
uncollectible. Estimates are used to determine the amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts necessary to
reduce accounts receivable to its estimated net realizable value. These estimates are made by analyzing the status
of significant past due receivables and by establishing general provisions for estimated losses by analyzing
current and historical bad debt trends. Actual collection experience has not varied significantly from estimates,
due primarily to credit and collection policies and the financial strength of the Company’s customers.
Receivables that are ultimately deemed uncollectible are charged off as a reduction of receivables and the
allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts receivable balances are not collateralized.




SALARY.COM, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-—(Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The company may invest in high-quality money
market instruments, securities of the U.S. government and high quality corporate issues. At March 31, 2007 and
2006, the Company had cash balances at certain financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits.
However, the Company does not believe that it is subject to unusual credit risk beyond the normal credit risk
associated with commercial banking relationships.

Accounts receivable are typically uncollateralized and are derived from revenues earned from customers
primarily located in the United States

Security Deposits

Security deposits consist of certificates of deposit totaling approximately $342,000 and $415,000 as of
March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The security deposits are held in the Company’s name with a major
financial institution to collateralize the Company’s office leases.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated over the estimated useful life, generally three
years, using the straight-line method. The Company’s policy is to generally capitalize any item with an
acquisition cost of $1,000 or more. Depreciation of leasehold improvements is recorded over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the leasehold improvement or the remaining lease term. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged to operations when incurred, while additions and betterments are capitalized. When
assets are retired or disposed, the asset’s original cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from
the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in the statement of operations.

Deferred Customer Acquisition Costs

Deferred customer acquisition costs are the direct incremental costs associated with establishing
noncancelable subscription contracts with customers and consist of sales commissions paid to the Company’s
sales force. The commissions are deferred and amortized over the related contract period of generally one year.
Amortization of deferred commissions is included in sales and marketing expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Goodwill and Intangible Assels

The Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 142”). Under SFAS No. 142,
goodwill and certain other intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer amortized, but instead are
reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. The Company reviews the
carrying value of its goodwill by comparing the carrying value of the related business component to its estimated
fair value. The fair value is based on management’s estimate of the future discounted cash flows to be generated
by the respective business component. Changes in the underlying business could affect these estimates, which in
turn could affect the recoverability of goodwill. If goodwill becomes impaired, some or all of the goodwill could
be written off as a charge to operations. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the
Company performed its annual impairment test in accordance with SFAS 142 and determined that the carrying
value of its goodwill was not impaired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives or contract periods, as applicable.
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Software Development Cests

The Company capitalizes certain internal software development costs under the provisions of Statement of
Position No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use
(“SOP 98-17). SOP 98-1 requires computer software costs associated with internal use software to be charged to
operations as incurred until certain capitalization criteria are met.

The Company incurs software development costs related to its applications developed for subscription
services and for management information systems. Costs are incurred in three stages of development: the
preliminary project stage, the application development stage, and the post-implementation stage. Costs incurred
during the preliminary project stage and the post-implementation stage are expensed as incurred. Certain
qualifying costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized as property, equipment and
software. These costs generally consist of internal labor during configuration, coding, and testing activities.
Capitalization begins when the preliminary project stage is complete, management with the relevant authority
authorizes and commits to the funding of the software project, it is probable that the project will be completed,
the software will be used to perform the function intended and technical feasibility has been determined. These
costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software, which is
generally three years. All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assels to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on
assets to be held and used are recognized based on the excess of the asset’s carrying amount over the fair value of
the asset, while long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less
cost to sell.

Revenue

The Company derives its revenues from subscription fees and, to a lesser extent, through advertising on its
website and syndication fees. Subscription revenues are comprised primarily of subscription fees from enterprise
and small business customers who pay a bundled fee for the Company’s on-demand software applications and
data products and implementation services related to the Company’s subscription products, as well as syndication
fees from the Company’s website partners and premium membership subscriptions sold primarily to individuals.
To a lesser extent, subscription revenues also include fees for discrete professional services which are not
bundled with the Company's subscription products and revenue from the sale of the Company’s Compensation
Market Study and Salary.com Survey products, which are not sold on a subscription basis. These discrete
professional services generally represent stand-alone compensation related to consulting and benchmarking of
specific jobs. Because the Company provides its application as a service, the Company follows the provisions of
SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB") No, 101 “Revenue Recognition in the Financial Statements”, as
amended by No. 104, Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized ratably over the contractual period and
amounts are earned when all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) there is persuasive evidence of an
arrangement; (2) the service has been provided to the customer; (3) the amount of fees to be paid by the customer
is fixed or determinable; and (4) the collection of fees from the customer is probable.

Subscription revenue is recognized ratably over the contract period. Customers are generally billed for the
subscription on an annual basis. For all customers, regardless of their billing method, subscription revenue is
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initially recorded as deferred revenue in the accompanying balance sheets. As services are performed, the
Company recognizes subscription revenue over the applicable service period. For selected products where an
implementation process occurs prior to the on-demand applications becoming useful to customers, revenue
recognition is deferred until after the product has been implemented and then recognized as revenue ratably over
the remaining applicable subscription period.

Subscription agreements that are related to the Company’s TalentManager suite of products may contain
multiple service elements and deliverables. These elements include access to the Company’s on-demand software
and often specify initial services including configuration and training. Except where the Company becomes the
subject of a bankruptcy proceeding which is not dismissed within 60 days of filing or the Company makes an
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, these particular subscription agreements do not provide customers the
right to take possession of the software at any time. In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (EITF
00-21). EITF 00-21 was issued to address how companies should determine whether an arrangement involving
multiple deliverables contains more than one unit of accounting. In applying the guidance in EITF 00-21, the
Company determined that it does not have objective and reliable evidence for the fair value of the TalentManager
subscription fees after delivery of specified initial services, consisting of configuration and training. The
Company cannot establish the fair value of the TalentManager subscription element of the contract due to the
variability of the sales price between different customers for the subscription element of the contract.
Furthermore, the initial services do not have stand-alone value to the customer without being bundled with the
subscription element of the contract because the Company does not sell the initial services separately and
because such services are not provided by a third party. The Company therefore accounts for these subscriptions
arrangements and its related service fees as a single unit of accounting.

Discrete professional services represent a separate earnings process and revenue is recognized as services
are performed. Professional services engagements are generally priced on a fixed-fee basis. Revenue under
fixed-fee arrangements is recognized proportionally to the performance of the services utilizing milestones if
present in the arrangement, or at the completion of the project.

Revenues for the Company’s Compensation Market Study and Survey products, which are not sold on a
subscription basis, are recognized only when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery of the study
or survey has occurred, risk of ownership has passed to the customer, the price is fixed and determinable, and
collection is reasonably assured.

Advertising revenues are comprised of revenues that the Company generates through agreements to display
third party advertising on the Company’s website for a fixed period of ime or fixed number of impressions.
Advertising revenues are recognized as the advertising is displayed on the website.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue primarily consists of billings to customers in advance of revenue recognition from the
Company’s subscription service described above and is recognized as the revenue recognition criteria are met.
Deferred revenue to be recognized in the succeeding 12-month period is included in current deferred revenue
with the remaining amounts included in non-current deferred revenue.
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Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues consists primarily of costs for data development and data acquisition, fees paid to the
Company’s network provider for the hosting and managing of its servers, related bandwidth costs, compensation
and related personnel costs for the support and implementation of the Company’s products and amortization of
capitalized software costs.

Redeemable Stock

The Company accounts for stock subject to provisions for redemption outside of its control as mezzanine
equity. These securities are recorded at fair value at the date of issue and are accreted to the redemption amount
at each balance sheet date. The resulting increases in the carrying amount of the redeemable stock are reflected
through decreases in additional paid-in capital or, in the absence of additional paid-in capital, through
accumulated deficit. The Company’s redeemable convertible preferred stock was converted to common stock
immediately prior to the closing of the Company’s initial public offering in February 2007.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair value because of their short-term nature.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” requires that changes in comprehensive income (loss)
be shown in a financial statement that is displayed with the same prominence as other financial statements. The
Company has presented other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’
Equity (Deficit). Other comprehensive loss consists of the cumulative translation adjustment.

Advertising Expenses

The Company expenses advertising as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended March 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 was approximately $68,000, $85,000 and $10,000, respectively.

Segment Data

The Company manages its operations on a consolidated, single segment basis for purposes of assessing
performance and making operating decisions. Accordingly, the Company does not have reportable segments of
its business.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax
liabilities and assets are determined based upon the temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of liabilities and assets, using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences are expected
to reverse. Realization of the Company’s net deferred tax assets is contingent upon generation of future taxable
income. Due to the uncertainty of realization of the tax benefits, the Company has provided a valuation
allowance for the full amount of its net deferred tax assets.
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Other Taxes

Non-income taxes such as sales tax are presented on a net basis.

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders per Share

Net loss attributable to common stockholders per share is presented in accordance with SFAS No. 128,
“Earnings per Share,” which requires the presentation of “basic” earnings (loss) per share and “diluted” earnings
(loss) per share. Basic net loss attributable to common stockholders per share is computed by dividing net loss
attributable to comumon stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the
period. Diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders per share includes the potential dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock.

The following summarizes the potential outstanding common stock of the Company as of the end of each
period:

March 31,
2007 2006 2005

Options to purchase common stock .......... ... i 1,941,103 640,341 2,331,092
Warrants to purchase common or preferred stock ..................... 147,868 108,666 194,770
Shares of common stock into which outstanding preferred stock is

CONVEIBIE . . . e e it — 1,758,599 1,736,199
Restricted shares (1) ...ttt e it i 1,991,585 3,630,488 —
Total options, warrants, restricted shares and preferred stock exercisable or

convertible into common Stock ... ... . .. e 4,080,556 6,138,094 4,262,061

(1) Represents stock options that have been exercised, but unvested as of the reporting date.

If the outstanding options, warrants and preferred stock were exercised or converted into common stock, the
result would be anti-dilutive. Therefore, basic and diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders per share
is the same for all periods presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to April 1, 2005, stock options issued to employees under the Company’s stock option plan were
accounted for using the intrinsic value method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 257) and related interpretations. The Company has applied the
disclosure only provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 1237). All
stock-based awards to nonemployees are accounted for at their fair value in accordance with SFAS 123 and EITF
96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments that Are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services (“EITF 96-187).
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In accordance with SFAS 123, the fair value of each stock option grant has been estimated on the date of the

grant using the minimum value method of the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following table
summarizes the weighted average assumptions used in calcutating pro forma stock-based compensation expense:

March 31,
2005
Risk-freerate ...... ... it i i e e 3.49 - 3.89%
Expectedlife ......... . i e 5 years
Expected volatility . .. ... ... . e i 0%
Expecteddividend yield ...... . ... ... . ... .. .. . . i 0%

Had the fair value method prescribed in SFAS 123 been applied to the Company’s outstanding stock options
in the financial statements, the net loss for the year ended March 31, 2005 would have been:

March 31,
005

Reported net loss attributable to common stockholders .................. $(2,802,917)
Add: stock-based compensation expense included in the determination of :

reported netloss ... .. e 512,490
Deduct: total stock-based compensation expense determined under the fair

value based methods forallawards ............... ... ... .ciiiinn. (151,098)
Pro forma loss attributable to common stockholders ... ... .. ... ......... $(2,441,525)
Pro forma loss per share attributable to common stockholders . ............ $ (0.70)

On April 1, 2005, the Company elected to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payments
(*SFAS 123R”}) and has applied the prospective method application which requires stock-based compensation to
be recognized on awards granted after April 1, 2005. Additionally, the Company followed the provisions of the
SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 Share-Based Payment (“SAB 107") in its adoption of SFAS 123R. SAB
107 provides the SEC staff’s interpretation of SFAS 123R and provides further guidance on the valuation of
share-based payments. The Company has also elected to adopt the alternative method of calculating the historical
pool of tax benefits as permitted by FASB Staff Position No. SFAS 123R-3, Transition Election Related to
Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards. Under the prospective method, the Company
will continue to account for stock-based compensation awards granted before Aprl 1, 2005 using the intrinsic
value method as prescribed by APB 25. Stock-based compensation expense for all stock-based compensation
awards granted after April 1, 2005 is based on the grant date fair value, estimated in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 123R. The Company recognizes compensation expense for stock-based compensation
awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award. All stock-based awards to
non-employees granted after April 1, 2005 will be accounted for at their fair value, in accordance with SFAS
123R and EITF 96-18.

SFAS 123R requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of
grant using an option-pricing model. The fair value of each grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. The risk free rate was determined by reference to the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at or
near the time of grant for the expected term of the award. The expected life was determined based upon review of
the period that the Company’s share-based awards are expected to be outstanding and is estimated based on
historical experience of similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual term of the awards, vesting
schedules, employee turnover and expectations of employee exercise behavior. The expected volatility is based
upon an average of the historical volatilities of similar entities’ common stock. The expected dividend yield

F-13




SALARY.COM, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-~(Continued)

assumption is based on the Company’s history and expectation of dividend payouts. The estimated forfeiture rate
was based upon an analysis of the Company’s historical data.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (“SFAS 159”), which permits entities to choose
to measure many financial instraments and certain other items at fair value. The provisions of SFAS 159 are
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not yet determined the impact of
adopting SFAS 159 on its financial statements,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157"}, which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
The Company has not yet determined the impact of adopting SFAS 157 on its financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes —an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax
positions. This Interpretation requires that the Company recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax
position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the
position. FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is currently
evaluating what impact, if any, the adoption of FIN 48 will have on its financial position and results of
operations.

3. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

On April 3, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets of the eComp Data Services Division (“eComp”)
from Aon Consulting, Inc., a global human capital consulting firm located in New York City. eComp Data
Services is a leading provider of executive compensation data. The assets acquired included the eComp database
and certain software and proprietary assets, including all intellectual property rights. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement, the Company paid $585,000 with $292,500 due at the closing date of April 3, 2006, and the
remaining balance was paid in September 2006. Included in the acquisition was $75,000 which was paid by the
Company to a former principal of eComp for a non-compete agreement. Accordingly, the purchase price was
allocated based upon the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company allocated $266,000
of the purchase price to goodwill based upon the estimated fair value of the assets acquired in the acquisition.
The results of operations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 include the impact of this acquisition since
April 3, 2006.
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The Company has allocated the purchase price based upon the estimated fair value of the net assets

acquired, as follows:

Amount
Non-compete (amortization perfiod S years) ........oovinoi i, $ 365,000
Customer relationships (amortization period 5years} ......... ... .oon.... 120,000
Hosting and servicing (amortization period 2months) .................... 29,000
Assumed Habilities . ... ... ... . . . e e e (120,000)
Goodwill ... ... e e e 266,000
Total purchase price . ........ ... ... ..t $ 660,000
4. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE
Property, equipment and software at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:
2007 2006
Computer equipment and software . . ... ... .......... ... ... ... $2,596,855 31,619,890
Office eqUIPMENt . . .. .. ...t iiae e 249,902 194,718
Fumiture and fixtures ... ... . .. .. . i i e 280,100 255,950
Capitalized software developmentcosts ........................... 792,814 523,914
Leaschold Improvements ............... . .coveuireennecnnenann. 319,638 74,594
4,239,309 2,669,066
Less: accumulated depreciation ........... ... .. .. oiiiiiiaann 2,302,059 1,460,380
Property and equipment, BEt ... ..........0iiiiit i $1,937,250 $1,208,686

Depreciation expense for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $716,000,

$430,000 and $270,000, respectively.

During the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company capitalized approximately

$269,000 and

$168.000, respectively, of costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use. These costs are
being amortized to cost of revenues on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of three years.
Amortization expense related to capitalized software development costs amounted to approximately $126,000,

$66,000 and $61,000 during the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets as of March 31, 2007, consist of the following:

Accumulated Carrying

Cost Amortization Amount Useful Life
Non-compete agreements .............c.ocuuunnn.. $ 365000 §$ 72998 $ 292,002 5 years
Customer relationships .......................... 120,000 24,000 96,000 5 years
Palents ...ttt e, 42,776 7,146 35,630 16~ 18 years
Data acquisiion costs . .............ovuvrrnen..n. 1,500,000 —_ 1,500,000 1-3 years

$2,027,776  $104,144  $1,923,632
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On December 30, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with a vendor to obtain additional data sets
that runs for an initial one year term following the date of the initial delivery. The fee for the initial term is $1.5
million. At the end of the initial term, the agreement shall automatically renew for up to six subsequent one year
terms unless terminated by the Company. The annual fees due to the vendor related to years two through seven of
the agreement are $0.5 million, $0.6 mitlion, $0.6 million, $0.7 million, $0.8 million, and $0.9 million,
respectively. The fees for years two through seven will be recorded as intangible assets as the data is delivered
and payments are made in accordance with the agreement,

All of the Company’s finite-lived acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization over their estimated
useful lives. No residual value is estimated for these intangible assets. Acquired intangible asset amortization for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 was approximately $133,000. Amortization for the data acquisition costs
will begin once the acquired data is integrated into the related product and that product is available to our
customers.

Estimated annual amortization expense for the next five years related to intangible assets is as follows:

Year ending March 31,
2008 . e e e e s $ 624472
2009 e e e 574,472
4 499,472
72 0 1 e 199,474
. 2,472
$1,900,362

6. DEBT
Revolving Line of Credit, Related Party

On April 11, 2003, the Company entered into a $2,171,000 revolving line of credit with an entity owned by
a stockholder of the Company (the “2003 Line”). Principal amounts outstanding under the 2003 Line accrued
interest at a per annum rate equal to the prime rate plus 4.25% (11.75% at March 31, 2006), payable semi-
monthly. The 2003 Line was collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. In addition, the
2003 Line carried a commitment fee equal to 6.00% of the balance available, but not drawn down. On January 1,
2006, the 2003 Line was assigned to a stockholder, and was extended indefinitely. Availability under the 2003
Line totaled $0 and $700,000 as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In September 2006, the 2003 Line
was repaid in full and was terminated. Interest expense incurred on this line of credit for the years ended
March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $48,000, $159,000 and $164,000, respectively.

Revolving Line of Credit and Term Loan

On August 10, 2006, the Company entered into a $5,000.000 Working Capital Line of Credit with Silicon
Valley Bank. Up to $1,000,000 of the line may be used to secure letters of credit and cash management services.
In addition, up to $1,000,000 may be borrowed as a 36-month term loan to refinance shareholder debt and
general corporate purposes. The Working Capital Line of credit expires two years from the closing date.
Borrowings on the term loan bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 1.00%, and interest is payable on a
monthly basis. Borrowings on the revolving line bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 0.25% interest. The
line of credit was collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s assets. In addition, the line carries an
unused revolving line facility fee of 0.375% of the balance available, but not drawn down. The agreement
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contains financial covenants that require the Company to maintain an unrestricted cash balance at the Bank plus
the committed availability of at least $750,000 and certain Adjusted Net Income levels across the period of time
the line is available. As of March 31, 2007, the Company is in compliance with all debt covenants. Also, as part
of the agreement, the Company is required to maintain its primary depository, and operating accounts with
Silicon Valley Bank. As of March 31, 2007, there were no outstanding borrowings under either the term loan or
the line of credit.

Subordinated Notes Payable to Stockholders

On June 16, 2002 and December 1, 2002, the Company entered into $300,000 and $250,000 Subordinated
Notes Payable with certain stockholders, respectively. The notes provided for annual interest at the rate of
12% per annum, payable monthly, and matured three years from the date of their respective issuance.

In conjunction with the subordinated notes, the Company issued the holders warrants to purchase 28,000
shares of common stock at $0.89 per share and 750,000 shares of Series B preferred stock at $1.00 per share. The
proceeds from the subordinated notes were allocated to the loans and the warrants based on their relative values,
resulting in approximately $283,000 being ascribed to the warrants (see Note 9).

The resulting discount on the subordinated notes was being amortized to interest expense over the life of the
Subordinated Notes resulting in approximately $95,000 of additional non-cash interest expense during the year
ended March 31, 2004. The subordinated notes were paid in full during fiscal 2005 and the remaining discount
was amortized in full, resulting in approximately $127,000 of additional interest expense during the vear ended
March 31, 2005.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has various noncancelable operating leases, primarily related to real estate, that expire
through 2009. Total rent expense charged to operations was approximately $1,245,000, $647,000 and $392,000
for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases at March 31, 2007 are as follows:

2008 L e e e e $1,724,000

2000 L e e e e e e 1,535,000

2000 L e e 117,000

Thereafter ...t e e —

Total future minimum lease payments ..................cciiiieunnn... $3,376,000
Employment Agreements

Certain members of the Company’s management have employment agreements that provide for the
continuation of salary and benefits, for a period of time, upon ceasing to be an employee as a result of either
termination from or a change in ownership of the Company.
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Litigation and Claims

On December 29, 2006, the Company commenced a declaratory judgment action in the Superior Court of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts against a former independent consultant to the Company. The former consultant
was under contract to Salary.com and assisted the Company in completing a strategic partnership in 2000. The
contract expired by its terms in November 2000. Pursuant to that contract, the former consultant was entitled to a
success fee consisting of a right to purchase 33,600 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of
thirty-six cents per share, which at the time represented approximately three percent of the Company’s capital
stock. In November 2006, after the Company commenced its initial public offering, the former consultant
informed the Company that he was in possession of a version of a contract that allegedly gave him the right to
purchase three percent of the Company’s equity as of an unspecified date at a price of thirty-six cents per share.
The basis for this claim appears to be certain hand-written changes to the expired contract that the Company did
not make or authorize, and had never seen until the former consultant sent the Company a copy of a contract
containing these changes in November 2006. In the court action, the Company is secking to have the court
declare that the consultant is not entitled to anything other than the 33,600 options described in the expired
contract. In addition, the Company is seeking damages due to the former consultant’s attempt to defraud the
Company and its stockholders by making these hand-written changes subsequent to the contract’s execution and
without the Company’s knowledge or consent. The Company also is seeking damages for tortious interference
with business relations as well as for unfair and deceptive business acts and practices. At this time, the Company
cannot predict the outcome or the amount of gain or loss, if any, from these proceedings.

On February 1, 2007, Mercer filed a Complaint against the Company in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York. The Complaint alleges copyright infringement, unfair competition, false
representation, fraud, breach of contract and tortious interference with business relations. Specifically, the
Complaint asserts that the Company’s use of Mercer surveys infringes upon Mercer’s copyrights, that the
Company has breached, and induced its customers to breach, license agreements with Mercer, that the Company
has attempted to deceive Mercer in connection with the Company’s acquisition of Mercer surveys, and that the
Company has misrepresented its rights to use Mercer’s surveys to the Company’s current and potential
customers. The Complaint seeks injunctive relief and monetary damages. The Company believes that its
purchase and use of all third party surveys (including Mercer’s) complies with copyright law and any applicable
license agreements and the Company intends to vigorousty defend the claims by Mercer. The Company has filed
several counterclaims against Mercer in the New York action, including claims for torticus interference with
business relations, breach of contract and misrepresentation. Although Mercer has made similar assertions to the
Company in the past, the Company has not received any correspondence from Mercer since 2004 on these issues
and the Company has not purchased any Mercer data since that time. This previously acquired data comprises a
very small portion of the data used to generate the Company’s proprietary data sets. Those proprietary data sets
are not reliant on any one data source and the Company could remove the data it historically purchased from
Mercer from such data sets and regenerate them without materially affecting the quality of the data sets. In a
separate action, the Company filed a Complaint against Mercer in the United States District Court for the District
of Massachusetts on May 15, 2007. That Complaint alleges copyright infringement, unfair competition, breach of
contract and antitrust violations by Mercer based on the unlawful spidering of the Company’s proprietary
database and the repeated unauthorized use of the Company’s proprietary data sets by Mercer employees.

In addition to the matters noted above, from time to time the Company is subject to legal proceedings and
claims in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate expense with
respect to any other current legal proceedings and claims will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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8. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

During fiscal year 2006, the Company issued 500,000 shares of Series A-4 preferred stock at a price of $0.25 per share.
The issuance resulted in cash proceeds of $125,000. The Company also repurchased 300,000 shares of Series A-4 preferred
stock at a price of $0.25 per share. The repurchase resulted in repayments of $75,000.

The changes in Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4 and Series B are as follows:
Series A-1 Series A-2 Series A-3 Serles A-d sﬁeb?:flli}:n Setles B
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Receivable Shares  Amount

Balance, March 31,

2004, 808,251 § 110,220 1,350,000 $ 281,813 3,568,720 $ 1,489,939 3,530,500 § 895,864 $(275,000) 5,805,719 § 6,681,688
Series A-4 subscription
receivable ......... — — — —_— —_— —_ —_ — 275,000 —_ .

Accretion of prefemred
stock to redemption
value ...l — 5,280 —_ 13,500 — 71,374 — 52,958 —_ — 369,885

Balance, March 31,

2005, ... 808,251 115500 1,350,000 295,313 3,568,720 1,561,313 3,530,500 948,822 — 5,805,719 7,051,573
Issvance of Series A-4

redeemable

convertible preferred

stock ............. — — — — — — 300,000 125,000 — — —
Repurchase of Series

A-4 redeemable

convertible preferred

stock ..........ls. — — — — — —  (300,000) (75,000 — — —
Accretion of preferred

stock to redemption

value ........... 0 — 5,280 — 13,500 — 71,374 — 55,547 — — 369,885

Balance, March 31,

200600 808,251 120,780 1,350,000 308,813 3,568,720 1,632,687 3,730,500 1,054,369 — 5,805,719 7,421,458
Accretion of preferred

stock to redemption

value ... .......... _ 4,615 — 11,799 — 62,378 — 48,905 — — 343,099
Mandatory converston

to commen stock . ... (808,251) (125,395)(1,350,000) (320,612)(3,568,720) (1,695,065)(3,730,500) (1,103,274) — (5,805,719} (7,764,557)

Balance, March 31,
2007 ..o e — % — — 3 —_ — 3 — — 8 — % — — § —_

Voting

The holders of each series of the preferred stock have voting rights equivalent to the number of shares of common stock
into which their shares are convertible.

Dividends

The holders of Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4, and Series B preferred stock are entitled to receive 6%
cumulative dividends. No dividend may be declared or paid on commeon stock uatil such time as all dividends have been paid on
the preferred stock, As of March 31, 20035, accrued but unpaid dividends on the Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4,
and Series B preferred stock were approximately $28,000, $70,000, $372,000, $66,000 and $1,306,000, respectively. As of
March 31, 2006, accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4, and Series B were
approximately $33,000, $84,000, $443,000, $122,000 and $1,654,000, respectively.

Liquidation
In the event of liguidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, distributions shall be made to the holders of the
preferred stock, prior and in preference to any distribution of assets, a per share amount equal to $0.10877 for Series A-1,

$0.166667 for Series A-2, $0.333333 for Series A-3, $0.25 for Series A-4 and $1.00 for Series B plus the amount of cumulative
unpaid dividends, The liquidation amount is subject to adjustment to reflect stock dividends, stock splits, and recapitalizations.
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After payment to the preferred stockholders, the preferred stock and commeon stock share ratably in the
remaining assets of the Company. If the assets of the Company legally available for distribution shall be
insufficient to permit the payment in full to holders of the Preferred Stock, then the entire assets of the Company
legally available for distribution shall be distributed ratably among the holders of the preferred stock in
accordance with the aggregate liquidation preference of each class of preferred stock.

Redemption

Unless as otherwise requested by the holders of the preferred stock and subject to certain other conditions,
the Company shall redeem the preferred stock outstanding on January 15, 2008 (the “Redemption Date™) for
$0.108877, $0.166667, $0.333333, $0.25 and $1.00 per share for Series A-1, A-2, A-3, A-4, and B preferred
stock, respectively, plus accrued dividends. In the event that any holder of preferred stock shall request that the
shares of Preferred Stock held by such holder not be redeemed by the Company, each share of preferred stock
held shall automatically be converted into shares of Common Stock utilizing the then effective conversion ratio.

Conversion to Common Stock

In accordance with the terms of the preferred stock agreements, upon consumimation of the Company’s
initial public offering on February 14, 2007, each share of Series A-1, Series A-2, and Series A-4 preferred stock
was converted into .112 shares of common stock. Each share of Series A-3 and Series B preferred stock was
converted into .11426 and .11908 shares of common stock, respectively.

9. COMMON STOCK
Authorized Shares and Activity

At March 31, 2007, the Company had authorized 100,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 of
preferred stock. An aggregate of 7,577,811 shares of common stock were reserved for restricted shares, the
employee stock purchase plan and the exercise of options and warrants at March 31, 2007.

On January 17, 2007, the Company amended its certificate of incorporation to:

« effect a 1 for 8.93 reverse stock split of the outstanding common stock;

« adjust the conversion prices applicable to each series of preferred stock to reflect the reverse stock
split; and

s set the authorized capital stock of the Company at 105,000,000 shares,

The stock split was approved by the Board of Directors on January 12, 2007 and was effective as of
January 17, 2007. All common stock, option and warrant share and per share data have been retroactively
adjusted to reflect the 1 for 8.93 stock spfit.

Stock Opftions

On January 12, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved the adoption of the
2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan under (the “2007 Plan”) which the maximum number of shares of common
stock that may be issued is the sum total of 3,000,000 shares plus all stock option awards or grants returned to the
#2000 Plan” and the “2004 Plan” as a result of expiration or cancellation or termination of such stock option
awards. The maximum contractual term of stock options granted under the “2007 Plan” may range from five to
ten years from the date of grant.
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Under the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan"), the Company may grant up to 672,000
incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options. In April 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved an increase in the number of options available for grant under the 2000 Plan to the higher of 1,344,000
or 30% of the fully dituted outstanding common shares. Under the 2004 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the
“2004 Plan”), the Company may grant stock options for up to 37.5% of the fully diluted outstanding common
shares to a maximum of 2,800,000 options.

At March 31, 2007, the number of shares reserved for future grants was 2,997,255.

Stock option activity, under all plans, during the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was as
follows:

Year Ended March 31, 2005

Weighted

Average
Restricted  Exercise  Nnmber of Weighted Average
Shares (1) Price Optlons Exercise Price

1,324,145 $0.4813

Outstanding—beginning of period .....................

Granted ......... it e — 1,616,798 0.2232
Exercised . ... i e — (523,242) 0.2255
Canceled .......... ..ottt i e — M) 0.3339
Outstanding—end of period ......... ... ... .o — 2,331,092 $0.3098
Exercisable—end of peried .......................... — 387,419 $0.4228
Year Ended March 31, 2006
Weighted
Average
Restricted  Exerciss  Numberof  Weighted Average
Shares (1) Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding—beginning of period ................... — 2,331,002 $0.3098
Granted .......... . i e —_ 3,079,811 0.2232
Exercised .. ...t e i 3,630,488 $0.2232 (4,475,298) 0.2355
Canceled .......iiit i e e — (295,264) 0.3528
Outstanding—end of period ........................ 3,630,488 $0.2232 640,341 $0.2679
Exercisable—end of period . ........................ 187,072 $0.3732
Year Ended March 31, 2007
Weighted
Average
Restricted  Exercise = Number of  Weighted Average
Shares (1) Price Optlons Exercise Price
QOutstanding—beginning of period ................... — 640,341 $0.2679
Granted .............. e e e — 1,559,145 8.2903
Exercised . ... e 1,991,585 $0.3483  (119,860) 3.6417
Canceled ........ciiiiiiiii i s — (138,523) 2.4653
Outstanding—end of period ........................ 1,991,585 $0.3483 1,941,103 $6.3465
Exercisable—end of period ......................... 279,605 $3.8500

(1) Represents stock options that have been exercised, but unvested as of the reporting date.
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The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$4.8218, $2.3223 and $0.7518, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended
March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was approximately $322,000, $15,239,000 and $181,000, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at March 31, 2007:

Options Vested and
Options Qutstanding Currently Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining Weighted Average Weighted Average

Number of  Contractual Life Exercise Price Number of Exercise Price
Exercise Price Qptions (Years) (Per Share) Options (Per Share)
$0.223-50892 .............. 492,769 7.5 $ 0.2547 162,938 $ 0.3188
$6.607-58214 .............. 857,858 9.7 3 6.9833 55,264 $ 6.8489
$1050-511.133 . ............ 590,476 9.8 $10.5354 61,403 $10.5215

1,941,103 9.2 $ 6.3465 279,605 $ 3.8500

Under the 2000 Plan and 2004 Plan, option recipients (“Option Holders™) are permitted to exercise options
in advance of vesting. Any options exercised in advance of vesting result in the Option Holder receiving
Restricted Stock, which is then subject to vesting under the respective option’s vesting schedule. Restricted Stock
is subject to a right of repurchase by the Company from any Option Holder who is an employee who leaves the
Company (either voluntarily or involuntarily), the Company has the right (but not the obligation) to repurchase
the Restricted Stock at the original price paid by the Option Holder at the time the options were exercised.
Because the Company has the right to repurchase the Restricted Stock upon the cessation of employment, the
Company has recognized this potential liability for repurchase on the balance sheet as “Subscription Payable.”
Upon vesting of the restricted shares, the Subscription Payable is relieved and recorded in equity.

A summary of the Company’s unvested shares, incleded unvested stock options and shares of unvested
restricted stock, as of March 31, 2007, and changes during the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, is
presented below:

APB 25 SFAS 123R Total
Welghted Welghted Welighted
Unvested Average Unvested Average Unvested Average
Options  Grant Options  Grant Options  Grant
And Date And Date And Date
Restricted Intrinsic Restricted Intrinsie Restricted Intrinsic

Shares Value Amount Shares Value Amount Shares Value Amount

Unvested Options and Restricted

Shares Outstanding at

March 31,2005 ............. 1,943,722 $0.384 $ 744,952 — $ — s — 1943722 $0384 § 744952
Granted ............c..0uies — — — 3,032,580  2.348 7,108,764 3,032,580 2.348 7.108,764
Vested .....o.oiiiniiiiaiens (516,070 0313 (159,500) (124,114) 1.455 (180,508) (640.184) 0.527 (340,008)
Canceled .................... (223,183) 0.339 (75,541) (29.078) 1.643 (47,879) (252,261) 0.491 (123,420)
Unvested Options and Restricted

Shares outstanding at March 31,

2000 ... 1,204,469 0420 509,911 2,879,388 2393 6,880,377 4,083,857 1813 7,390,288
Granted .........coovvvinnann — — — 1,512,392 4841 7,321,288 1,512,392 4.841 7,321,288
Vested .......ooiiiiiinnninns (711,653} 0423  (301,132) (932,363} 1812  (1,689,207)(1,644016) 1.211  (1,990,339)
Canceled ... ivviannians (59,197 0239 (14,121) (239,953) 2.663 (639,065) (299,150) 2.183 (653,186)
Unvested Options and Resiricted

Shares outstanding at March 31,

2007 ..o e 433619 $0.449 $ 194,658 3219464 $3.688 $11,873,393 3,653,083 $3.304 $12,068,051

As of March 31, 2007 and 2006, there were 1,991,585 and 3,630,488 shares of unvested restricted stock
outstanding.
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As of March 31, 2007, there was approximately $9.7 million of total unrecognized compensation expense
related to unvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Company’s Stock Option Plans
(relating to the effect of SFAS 123R and APB 25). That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 3.3 years. The total fair value of shares vested during the year ended March 31, 2007 was
approximately $3,144,000.

Effective April 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS 123R using the prospective method of application,
which requires the Company to recognize compensation expense on a prospective basis; therefore, prior period
financial statements have not been restated. Compensation expense recognized includes the expense of stock
options granted on and subsequent to April 1, 2005. Stock options granted by the Company prior to that time are
specifically excluded from SFAS 123R and will continue to be accounted for in accordance with APB 25. These
options were valued using the minimum value method.

In fiscal 2006, the Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to value option grants and
determine the related compensation expense, The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based
payment awards represent management’s best estimates.

The Company estimates expected volatility based on that of the Company’s publicly-traded peer companies
and expects to continue to do so until such time as the Company has adequate historical data from our traded
share price. Management believes that the historical volatility of the Company’s stock price does not best
represent the expected volatility of the stock price. Prior to the Company’s initial public offering in February
2007, the Company was a private company and therefore lacked company-specific historical and implied
volatility information, The Company intends to continue to ¢onsistently use the same group of publicly-traded
peer companies to determine volatility in the future unti! such time that we have accumulated sufficient historical
information regarding the volatility of our now publicly traded share price.

The risk-free interest rate used for each grant is equal to the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time
of grant for instruments with a similar expected life.

The expected term of the options granted was determined based upon review of the period that the
Company’s share-based awards are expected to be outstanding and is estimated based on historical experience of
similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual term of the awards, vesting schedules and expectations of
employee exercise behavior.

SFAS 123R also requires that the Company recognize compensation expense for only the portion of options that
are expected to vest. Therefore, the Company has estimated expected forfeitures of stock options with the adoption of
SFAS 123R. In developing a forfeiture rate estimate, the Company considered its historical experience, ifs growing
employee base and the limited liquidity of its common stock. If the actual number of forfeitures differs from those
estimated by management, additional adjustments to compensation expense may be required in future periods.

The following table provides the assumptions used in determining the fair value of the share-based awards
for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Risk-Free Rate ........ ... ...ttt iiaans 445-480% 3.72-482%
Expected Life ....... ..o o i 5 years 5 years
Expected Volatility ... ... . ... i 62 - 65% 60 -75%
Expected Dividend Yield ............. ... ... il 0% 0%
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Compensation expense related to the adoption of SFAS 123R amounted to approximately $3,144,000 and
$281,000, which is included in the statement of operations for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and is based on awards ultimately expected to vest and reflects an estimate of awards that will be
forfeited. SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R,
forfeitures were recorded as they occurred.

In connection with the preparation of the financial statements for the Company’s initial public offering and
solely for the purposes of accounting for stock-based compensation for financial statement purposes, the
Company’s management reassessed the fair value of the Company's common stock for the equity awards granted
on or after April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2006. Based upon this reassessment of the fair value of the
Company’s common stock, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense to the extent that the
reassessed value of the Company’s common stock at the date of the grant exceeded the exercise price of the
equity awards. Reassessed values are inherently uncertain and highly subjective. For stock options granted prior
to March 31, 2004, no expense was recorded as management determined that the estimated fair value of the
Company’s stock at the date of grant did not exceed the exercise price. The stock-based compensation is being
amortized on a straight-line basis over the stock option vesting period of generally five years. During each of the
years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company recognized approximately $132,000 of stock-based
compensation expense related to options granted to employees during fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively based
on the reassessed vatues of the underlying common stock.

During fiscal 2006 and 2005, the Company offered certain holders of stock options the limited opportunity
to exercise their options at a price equal to the deemed fair value of the Company’s stock at the time of the offer.
To the extent that the offer was not accepted, the affected options retained their original exercise price. However,
because of the Company’s offer, these options became subject to variable accounting as prescribed in FASB
Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation (an Interpretation of
APB Opinion No. 25) (“FIN 44”). The majority of these awards became fixed upon exercise under the bonus
offer during March 2006, as described in the following paragraph, which was accounted for as a modification
under SFAS 123R. Compensation expense related to these options has been recognized during fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2005, since the modified option exercise prices were below the reassessed per share fair value of the
Company’s common stock at that time. The Company recorded compensation expense amounting to
approximately $912,000, $632,000 and $380,000 for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

During March 2006, the Company offered certain holders of stock options, totaling 143 employees, the
limited opportunity to receive a cash bonus to exercise all of their outstanding stock options. As part of this offer,
unvested stock options could be exercised into restricted stock. This offer was accounted for as a modification
under SFAS 123R. The additional compensation expense for the modification was deemed immaterial to the
Company’s financial statements. There are 1,991,585 shares of common stock subject to restriction as of
March 31, 2007 related to this offer.

On February 7, 2007, in connection with the negotiation of a new employment agreement with the
Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, the Compensation Committee accelerated the vesting of
854,449 shares of restricted stock held by the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer. These shares
had been issued to the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer in March 2006 upon the exercise of
stock options granted to him between June 2003 and March 2006 under the 2000 Plan and the 2004 Plan. The
Company recognized a non-cash compensation charge of approximately $1.3 million to general and
administrative expenses in the quarter ending March 31, 2007 as a result of this acceleration.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On January 17, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved the adoption of the
2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”) under which an aggregate amount of 500,000 shares
of common stock may be issued. The Purchase Plan provides full-time employees, nearly all of whom are
eligible to participate, the opportunity to purchase common shares, on a semi-annual basis, at 90% of the fair
market value of the shares on either the first or last day of the applicable semi-annual offering period, whichever
is lower. The Company has authorized 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for issuance under the
Purchase Plan. The first purchase of shares under the Purchase Plan will be on September 30, 2007.

Subscription Notes Receivable

The Company extended loans to a number of employees in March 2006. The notes require that the proceeds of
the loans be used by the employees solely to exercise stock options. The loans earn interest at 7% per annum, and
interest is payable at the loan maturity date. If a default occurs, the outstanding loan balance becomes immediately
due. The loans mature in either six months or ten months. All loans had been repaid by March 31, 2007.

Warrants

In conjunction with the subordinated notes payable to stockholders in 2002, the Company issued warrants to
the holders to purchase 28,000 shares of common stock at $0.89 per share and 750,000 shares of Series B
preferred stock at $1.00 per share. The Series B preferred stock warrants were replaced with 750,000 warrants to
purchase Series A-4 preferred stock at $0.25 per share in November 2003. In November 2006, the Company
issued a warrant to acquire 44,800 shares of its common stock at an exercise price of $6.61 per share to an
existing stockholder that is affiliated with a director of the Company. The Company recorded stock-based
compensation expense of approximately $114,000 related to this warrant.

As of March 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase 147,868 shares of common stock
at exercise prices ranging from $0.09 to $6.61 per share.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006 March 31, 2005

Number of Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average
Warrants Exercise Price Warrants Exercise Price Warrants Exercise Price

Outstanding—beginning of

Vear ... ............ ... 108,666 $0.214 194,770 $1.080 194,770 $1.080
Granted .................. 44,800 $6.607 — —_
Exercised ................. (5,598) $0.357 (58,104) $2.188 —
Canceled ................. — (28,000) $2.230 —_
Outstanding—end of year . ... 147,868 $0.215 108,666 $0.214 194,770 $1.080
Exercisable—end of year . ... 147,868 $0.215 108,666 $0.214 194,770 $1.080
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10. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of the Company’s effective income tax rate to the statutory federal income tax rate of 34%
for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2007 2006 2005
SHAtUIOTY TA1E . .. ittt [N 34.00% (34.0)% (34.00%
State taxes, net of federal benefit .. ...... ... . ... . i i (7.6) 10.0 (4.2)
Stock-based COMPENSAON .. ... ..ot toi it e 0.0 15.0 7.6
Officer’s life iNSUTANCE . . ... oo ittt ia it aaanas 0.0 0.1 0.0
0711 R 4.5) (2.2) 1.1
Expiration of state net operating 10sses .............. oo 1.8 12.9 0.0
Change in valuation allowance ..............ooieiiiiiii e, 44.3 (1.8) 29.5

0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of the Company’s deferred tax assets for the years ended March 31, 2607 and 2006 are as follows:

March 31,
2007 2006

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards .............. .. .o, $ 5,978,047 $ 5435422
ACCIUEd EXPENSES . ..o vt vt e ittt 854,848 283,433
Property and equipment ......... .. ..ot 83,921 57,399
Intangibles ........ ..o i 12,731 _
Deferred FEVEIUE .. ...t ivrrm i aeeantiannonrnesnsnnnrns 83,872 59,342
Stock-based compensation ................0 et 1,654,002 —_
RESBIVES & ot i vt et ettt ettt ae e itananeeas ey 67,135 66,975
TAX CTEAILS « . o oo ettt et i te it ne e etnaanaan ot iaras 509,487 —_—
Foreign NOL . ... ..o i it ans 67,368 —

Total gross deferred tax assets .............oovv v, 9311411 5,902,571
Valuation alloWance ... ... viatiniirncnrr e anaaanns (9,311,411)  (5,902,571)

Total deferred taX ASSELS . . . . oo vr oo e e e eeeervaan s $ — $ —

As of March 31, 2007, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $16,428,000 for
federal income tax purposes and $6,146,000 for state income tax purposes. Federal and state net operating losses
may be available to offset future federal income tax liabilities. The net operating losses for federal income tax
purposes expire at various dates through 2027 and state net operating losses expire at various dates through 2012,
As required by SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, management has determined that is more likely
than not that the Company will not recognize the benefit of federal and state deferred tax assets, and as a result, a
valuation allowance of $9,311,411 and $5,902,571 has been established at March 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The increase in the valuation allowance was $3,408,840 for the year ended March 31, 2007.

Ownership changes, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, may substantially limit the amount of net
operating loss carryforwards that can be utilized annually to offset future taxable income. Subsequent ownership
changes could further affect the limitation in future years. Such annual limitations could result in the expiration
of net operating loss carryforwards before utilization.
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11. BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a retirement savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the 401(k)
Plan). Participants may contribute up to a maximum percentage of their annual compensation to the plan as
determined by the Company, limited to a maximum annual amount set by the Internal Revenue Service. The
Company has not made any matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan during the years ended March 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In April 2003, the Company entered into the 2003 Line with an entity owned by a stockholder of the
Company and affiliated with the Company's Chief Executive Officer. On January 1, 2006, the 2003 Line was
assigned to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and was repaid in full and terminated in September 2006.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 15, 2007, the Company acquired the membership interests of ICR Limited, L.C. and the
outstanding share capital of ICR International Ltd. (collectively, “ICR"), a leading provider of industry-specific
market intelligence for employee pay and benefits for the global technology and specialty consumer goods
markets. Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreements, the Company paid $10 million to the owners of ICR,
of which $1 million has been placed in escrow for 12 months. The escrow fund will be available to compensate
us for any losses we may incur as a result of any breach of the representations or warranties of the owners of ICR
contained in the purchase agreements, and certain liabilities arising out of the ownership or operation of ICR
prior to the acquisition.

F-27




SALARY.COM, INC,
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Balance at Balance at
Beginning Charged to End
of Period Expense Deductions of Peried
Allowance for doubtful accounts (deducted from accounts
receivable)
Yearended March 31,2005 .. ....... ..ot $ 184,747 $ 104,754 $ — $ 289,501
Yearended March 31,2006 .......... . ...coiiiiin. 289,501 (86,923) (36,262) 166,316
Yearended March 31,2007 ... ..o vri i 166,316 13,396 — 179,712
Deferred tax valvation allowance (deducted from net
deferred taxes)
Yearended March 31,2005 ... ... ... ne, $5,295426 $ 674,280 $ —  $5,969,706
Yearended March 31,2006 .. .. ....... ... .. it 5,969,706 (67,135) — 5,902,571
Yearended March 31,2007 . . ... ... .o 5,902,571 3,408,840 — 9311411
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, G. Kent Plunkett, centify that:

L

2.

I have reviewed this annual repert on Form 10-K of Salary.com, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [Omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-37986];

c} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 28, 2007 fs/  G. Kent Plunkett

G. Kent Plunkett
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Kenneth S. Goldman, certify that:

L.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Salary.com, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [Omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986];

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internat control over financial reporting.

Date: June 28, 2007 fs/  Kenneth S. Goldman

Kenneth 8. Goldman
Senjor Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Salary.com, Inc. (the “Company’) on Form 10-K for the period
ended March 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),
G. Kent Plunkett, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Kenneth S. Goldman,
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to our best knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

This certification is being provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 and is not to be deemed a part of the Report,
nor is it to be deemed to be “filed” for any purpose whatsoever.

Date: June 28, 2007

Is/ G. Kent Plunkett

G. Kent Plunkett
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Date: June 28, 2007

/s/ Kenneth §. Goldman

Kenneth S. Goldman
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer
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Goodwin Procter LLP
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on The NASDAQ Global Market under
the symbol SLRY.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock & Trust Company
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Investor Information/SEC Form 10-K

Information on Salary.com, as well as Salary.com’s Annual
Repart on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2007 and other SEC filings, can be obtained free of
charge either on our website at http://www.salary.com or
by contacting Investor Relations at Salary.com, Inc., 195
West Street, Waltham, MA 02451, You can also e-mail
investor relations at investor@salary.com.

Safe Harbor Statement

This document contains forward-looking statements within
the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
Forward-looking statements relate to future events or our

future financial performance. The cutcome of the events
described in these forward-looking statements is subject
to risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which
are outside of our control, including our ability to become
profitable; the ability of our solutions to achieve market
acceptance; a highly competitive market for compensation
management; failure of our customers to renew their
subscriptions for our products; our inability to adequately
grow our operations and attain sufficient operating scale;
our inability to effectively protect our intellectual property
and not infringe on the intellectual property of others; our
inability to raise sufficient capital when necessary or at
satisfactory valuations; the loss of key personnel; and
other factors discussed elsewhere in this document.
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